ISSN 0378-6986

Official Journal

of the European Communities

C 197

Volume 23

4 August 1980

English edition

Information and Notices

Contents

I Information

European Parliament

1980/1981 session

Minutes of the sitting of Monday, 7 July 1980

3.	Composition of committees	2
4.	Petitions	2
5.	Documents received	3
6.	Texts of treaties forwarded by the Council	
7.	Withdrawal of a motion for a resolution	4
8.	Urgent debate	4
9.	Order of business	4
10.	Speaking time	7
11.	Deadline for tabling amendments	8
12.	Procedure without report	8
13.	Electronic voting system	9
14.	Decision on urgency	9
15.	Action taken by the Commission on the opinions and proposals of Parliament	9
16.	Question Time Questions to the Commission	9
17. -	Development of an air traffic control system (debate)	10
18.	Agenda for next sitting	11
1.	Approval of minutes	12
2.	Composition of committees	12
3.	Statement by the President	12
4.		12
5.	First anniversary of the election of Parliament by direct universal suffrage	
6.	Tabling of proposals for the total rejection of the new draft general budget for 1980	13
7.	Council statement on the Luxembourg presidency (followed by a debate)	13
8.	Urgent debate	13
9.	Agenda	13
10.	Council statement on the Luxembourg presidency (followed by a debate)	
11.	Amendment of Parliament's Rules of Procedure (debate)	14
12.	Urgent debate	14
13.	Question Time Questions to the Council	14
	Questions to the Foreign Ministers meeting in political cooperation	15
14.	Agenda for next sitting	15
	(Continued over	leaf)

1. Resumption of session 2. Composition of Parliament — Verification of credentials

Price: £ 1.80/£ Irl. 2.10

Contents (continued) Min	Minutes of the sitting of Wednesday, 9 July 1980		
1.	Approval of minutes	16	
2.	Documents received	16	
3.	Referral to committee	17	
4.	Composition of Parliament	17	
5.	Decision on urgency	17	
6.	Proposals for the total rejection of the 1980 budget	18	
7.	Agenda	18	
8.	Economic development of the Community in the first half of 1980 (debate)	18	
9.	Urgent debate	19	
10.	Proposals for the total rejection of the 1980 budget (vote)	19	
11.	Amendment of Parliament's Rules of Procedure (vote)	20	
12.	Resolution on the economic development of the Community in the first half of 1980 and the implementation of the Council's Decision on convergence	25	
13.	Urgent debate	27	
	Agenda for next sitting	27	
	nutes of the sitting of Thursday, 10 July 1980		
	Approval of minutes	41	
	Documents received	41	
3.	Composition of committees	41	
4.	Decision on urgency	41	
5.	Agenda	42	
6.	Preliminary draft budget of the Communities for 1981	42	
7	Air traffic control (debate)	43	
8.		43	
9.	0	43	
	Resolution on the development of a coordinated European air traffic control system	,44	
11.	Restructuring of the steel industry (debate)	45	
12.		10	
12	names, electrical equipment and biodegradability — Powered industrial trucks (debate)	46	
13.		47	
14.	Projects of Community interest in transport infrastructure (debate)	47 48	
15.	Implementation of the 1979 budget (debate)	48	
16.			
17.		48 48	
18.	Composition of Parliament	48	
19.	Agenda for next sitting:	70	
Mii	nutes of the sitting of Friday, 11 July 1980		
	Approval of minutes	50	
2.	Documents received	. 50	
3.		51	
4.	Petitions	51	
5.	Composition of Parliament	51	
6.	Composition of committees	. 51	
7.		. 52	
8.		. 52	
	Decision on urgency	52	
	Aid to refugees in the South China Sea — Aid to Kampuchea — Border incident between Vietnamese and Thai troops (debate)	52	
	Human rights in Argentina (debate)	. 53	
12.	Importation of fresh lemons (debate)	. 53	
13.	Conservation and management of fishery resources (debate)	53	
14.	Statistical surveys of areas under vines (debate)	53 over)	

Contents (continued)	15.	Resolution on: I. the communication from the Commission on the social aspects of the restructuring of the steel industry and II. the revised draft of a Commission Decision concerning the creation of special temporary allowances to assist workers in the iron and steel industry under the Community restructuring plan	57
		Opinion on the proposal for a Decision with regard to contributions to be granted to the European Coal and Steel Community out of the general budget of the European Communities	60
	16.	Opinion on the proposal for a Directive on a special Community certification procedure for industrial products originating in third countries	62
		Opinion on the proposals for Directives: I. on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to rear-view mirrors for two or three-wheeled motor vehicles II. (a) on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to roll-over protective structures (ROPS) for certain construction plant (b) on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to falling-object protective structures (FOPS) for certain construction plant III. amending Directive 71/307/EEC on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to textile names IV. on the approximation of the laws of the Member States concerning electrical equipment for use in potentially explosive atmospheres in mines susceptible to fire-damp	
		V. on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to methods of testing the biodegradability of non-ionic surfactants and amending Directive 73/404/EEC	66
	17.	States relating to powered industrial trucks Resolution on the report by the Commission to the Council on the objectives to be pursued	67
		in the long term and the measures to be taken to promote partial or total integration of railway undertakings at Community level	72
	18.	Opinion on the amendment to the proposal for a Regulation on support for projects of Community interest in transport infrastructure	74
	19.	Resolution on the implementation of the 1979 budget (financial situation of the European Communities as at 31 December 1979)	76
	20.	Resolution on the budgetary control aspects of the Data-Processing Centre of the Commission of the European Communities	- 79
	21.	Resolution on the dramatic situation of the refugees, especially the children amongst them, in the Horn of Africa	81
	22.	Resolution on aid to refugees in the South China Sea	83
		Resolution on the border incident between Vietnamese troops from Cambodia and Thai troops in Thailand	84
	23.	Resolution on relations between the EEC and the United States in the steel sector	85
	24.	Resolution on the serious violations of human rights and international law by the Argentinian military regime	86
	25.	Opinion on the proposal for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No 471/76 as regards the period of suspension of the application of the condition on prices governing the importation into the Community of fresh lemons originating in certain Mediterranean countries	87
	26	Opinion on the proposals for: I. a Regulation allocating catch quotas between Member States for vessels fishing in Faroese waters II. a Regulation allocating catch quotas between Member States for vessels fishing in Swedish waters III. a Regulation allocating certain catch quotas between Member States for vessels fishing in the Norwegian exclusive economic zone, and IV. a Regulation laying down for the year 1980 certain measures for the conservation and management of fishery resources off the West Greenland coast applicable to vessels flying the flag of the Member State	88
	27.	Opinion on the proposal for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No 357/79 on statistical surveys of areas under vines	89
	28.	Composition of committees	90
		Composition of Parliament	90
		ACP-EEC Consultative Assembly	90
		Dates for next part-session	91
		Approval of minutes	91
•		Adjournment of session	91

I

(Information)

EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

1980/81 SESSION

Sittings from 7 to 11 July 1980

Palais de l'Europe — Strasbourg

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SITTING OF MONDAY, 7 JULY 1980

IN THE CHAIR: MRS VEIL

President

(The sitting was opened at 5 p.m.)

1. Resumption of session

The President declared resumed the session of the European Parliament adjourned on 27 June 1980.

2. Composition of Parliament — Verification of credentials

The President announced to Parliament that the competent French authorities had informed her that Mr

Maurice Doublet had been appointed member of Parliament to replace Mr Messmer, who had resigned.

The President welcomed the new member and pointed out that, pursuant to Rule 3 (3), any member whose credentials had not yet been verified provisionally took his seat in Parliament and on its committees with the same rights as other members.

On a proposal from the Bureau, made pursuant to Rule 3 (1), Parliament ratified the mandates of Mr Vitale and

Mr Fanton, whose appointments had been announced on 26 June 1980 (see item 2 of minutes of that date).

3. Composition of committees

At the request of the Communist and Allies Group, Parliament ratified the appointment of Mr Vitale as member of the Committee on Agriculture to replace Mr Papapietro.

4. Petitions

The President announced that she had received:

- a petition from Mr Alex Seiderer, Mr Hans Schäfer and Mrs Gabriele Sprigath on the 'Berufsverbote' (exclusion from public sector employment) in the Federal Republic of Germany;
- a petition from Mr Antonio Muolo on the abolition of national frontiers;
- a petition from Mr Antonio Muolo on economic and monetary union;
- a petition from Mr Antonio Muolo on Community action to help the Mezzogiorno;
- a petition from Mr Antonio Muolo on the international role of the European Community;
- a petition from Mr Antonio Muolo on the creation of a Palestinian State;
- a petition from Mr Antonio Muolo on a uniform procedure for the European elections in 1984;
- a petition from Mr Martin Ennals on the abolition of the death penalty in the European Community;
- a petition from Amnesty International US Group 151 Brookline on an appeal in favour of Constantine Bolotos- and religious freedoms in Greece;
- a petition from ARCI, Bologna, on the peaceful co-existence of nations.

These petitions had been given Nos 34 to 43/80 and had been entered in the register provided for in Rule 48 (2). Pursuant to paragraph 3 of that same Rule, they had been referred to the Committee on the Rules of Procedure and Petitions.

The President informed Parliament that at the request of the Committee on the Rules of Procedure and Petitions:

- petition Nos 13/79, 7/80, 9/80, 13/80 and 14/80 had been declared inadmissible and therefore filed without further action, pursuant to Rule 48 (3) (No 9/80 had been forwarded for information to the Political Affairs Committee; No 14/80 had been forwarded for information to the Political Affairs Committee and the Legal Affairs Committee);
- petition Nos 29/79, 34/79, 43/79, 48/79 and 18/80 had been filed without further action pursuant to Rule 48 (4);
- petition Nos 22/79—and 23/79 had been filed without further action pursuant to Rule 48 (4) and had also been forwarded for information to the petitions committee of the Bundestag;
- petition Nos 11/80 and 12/80 had been filed without further action pursuant to Rule 48 (4) and had also been forwarded for information to the Political Affairs Committee;
- petition Nos 21/80 and 22/80 had been filed without further action pursuant to Rule 48 (4) and had also been forwarded for information to the Political Affairs Committee and the Legal Affairs Committee;
- petition No 4/79 had been forwarded to the Commission;
- petition Nos 2/80 and 3/80 had been referred to the Committee on Agriculture for an opinion and forwarded for information to the Ad Hoc Committee on Women's Rights;
- petition Nos 4/80 and 5/80 had been referred to the Committee on Youth, Culture, Education, Information and Sport for an opinion;
- petition No 6/80 had been referred to the Political Affairs Committee for an opinion;
- petition Nos 8/80, 10/80 and 20/80 had been referred to the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection for an opinion;

- petition No 15 had been referred to the Committee on Youth, Culture, Education, Information and Sport for an opinion;
- petition No 17/80 had been referred to the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection, the Committee on Transport and the Committee on Regional Policy and Regional Planning for opinions;
- petition Nos 19/80 and 26/80 had been referred to the Political Affairs Committee and the Legal Affairs Committee for opinions;
- petition No 31/80 had been referred to the Political Affairs Committee for an opinion.

Parliament took note of this information.

5. Documents received

The President announced that she had received:

- (a) from the Council, requests for opinions on:
 - the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Directive determining the scope of Article 14 (1) (d) of Directive 77/388/EEC as regards exemption from value added tax on the final importation of certain goods (Doc. 1-290/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs;

— the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Directive concerning the assessment of the environmental effects of certain public and private projects (Doc. 1-293/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection;

- (b) from the committees, the following reports:
 - interim report by Mr Kellett-Bowman, on behalf of the Committee on Budgetary Control, on the budgetary control aspects of the Data Processing Centre of the Commission of the European Communities (Doc. 1-283/80);

- report by Mr Giummarra, on behalf of the Committee on External Economic Relations, on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council (Doc. 1-34/80) for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No 471/76 as regards the period of suspension of the application of the condition on prices governing the importation into the Community of fresh lemons originating in certain Mediterranean countries (Doc. 1-285/80);
- report by Mr D'Angelosante, on behalf of the Committee on the Rules of Procedure and Petitions, on petition No 1/79 concerning the non-uniform interpretation by the Member States of Regulation (EEC) No 1408/71 (Doc. 1-286/80);
- report by Mr von Bismarck, on behalf of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs, on the economic development of the Community in the first half of 1980 and the implementation of the Council's decision on convergence (Doc. 1-288/80);
- report by Mr Marshall, on behalf of the Committee on Development and Cooperation, on the dramatic situation of the refugees, especially the children amongst them, in the Horn of Africa (Doc. 1-289/80);
- (c) the following oral questions:
 - oral questions pursuant to Rule 47A for Question Time on 7 and 8 July 1980 by Lord Douro, Mr Seligman, Mrs Ewing, Mr Seal, Mr Capanna, Mrs Cinciari Rodano, Mr Newton Dunn, Mr Boyes, Mr Patterson, Mr Romualdi, Mr Tyrrell, Mr Remilly, Mr Adam, Mrs Lizin, Mr Hord, Mr Hume, Mr Welsh, Mr Nyborg, Mr Moreland, Mr Ansquer, Mr Buchou, Mr Deleau, Mr Provan, Mrs Le Roux, Mr van Aerssen, Miss Hooper, Sir Peter Vanneck, Mr Cottrell, Mrs Cresson, Mrs Squarcialupi, Mr Paisley, Mr Moorhouse, Mr O'Donnell, Mrs Desmond, Mrs Martin, Mr C. Jackson, Ms Clwyd, Mr Debre, Mr Donnez, Mr Bettiza, Mr Curry, Mr Griffiths, Mr Lalor, Mr Adam, Sir John Stewart-Clark, Mr Seal, Mrs Ewing, Mr Remilly, Mr Kavanagh, Mr Seligman, Mr Purvis, Mr Penders, Mr Fuchs, Mr Ansquer, Mrs Le Roux, Mr Wurtz, Mr Lalor, Mr Antoniozzi, Miss Hooper, Mr Deleau, Mrs Scrivener, Mr Curry, Mr Van Miert, Mr Romualdi, Mr Fergusson, Mr Hutton, Mr Penders, Mr Lalor, Mr Israel, Mr Seligman, Ms Clwyd, Mr Hume and Mrs Lizin (Doc. 1-287/80).

- (d) the following motion for a resolution tabled pursuant to Rule 25:
 - motion for a resolution by Mr Pininfarina, on a European policy for the motor industry (Doc. 1-280/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs as the committee responsible and the Committee on External Economic Relations for an opinion;

(e) from the Commission

 report drawn up by the Commission of the European Communities on the financial situation of the Communities at 31 March 1980 (Doc. 1-291/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Budgetary Control;

(f) from the Council

 a letter concerning the draft general budget of the European Communities for the financial year 1980, as modified by the Council on 30 June 1980 (Doc. 1-292/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Budgets.

6. Texts of treaties forwarded by the Council

The President announced that she had received from the Council certified true copies of the following documents:

- Agreement in the form of an exchange of letters rectifying certain duty-free quotas opened by the United Kingdom in accordance with Protocol 1 to the Free Trade Agreement between the European Economic Community and the Kingdom of Sweden;
- Convention between the European Economic Community and the United Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine refugees (UNRWA) concerning aid to refugees in the countries of the Near East for 1979 and 1980;
- Agreement in the form of an exchange of letters on the amendment of the Agreement between the European Economic Community and the Swiss Confederation on the application of the rules on Community transit;

— Agreement in the form of an exchange of letters on the amendment of the Agreement between the European Economic Community and the Republic of Austria on the application of the rules on Community transit.

7. Withdrawal of a motion for a resolution

The President announced that Mr Pisani had informed her that he was withdrawing the motion for a resolution which he and other colleagues had tabled on a new common agricultural policy (Doc. 1-800/79) (see item 4 of minutes of 10 March 1980).

8. Urgent debate

The President announced that she had received:

— a request from the Council for urgent debate pursuant to Rule 14 in respect of a proposal for a Regulation on the structural problems affecting the United Kingdom and a proposal for a Regulation concerning the financial mechanism (Doc. 1-273/80).

The request for urgent debate was justified by the fact that the Council was due to discuss these proposals at its meeting on 22 July.

a motion for a resolution from Mr Schieler and others, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Wawrzik and others, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), and Mrs Agnelli and others, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, with request for urgent debate pursuant to Rule 14, on aid to refugees in the South China Sea (Doc. 1-284/80).

The reasons supporting this request for urgent debate were contained in the document itself.

She announced that, pursuant to Rule 14 (1), second subparagraph, the vote on these requests for urgent debate would be taken at the beginning of the next day's sitting.

9. Order of business

The President stated that the draft agenda for the present part-session, drawn up by the enlarged Bureau pursuant to Rule 12, had been distributed.

She announced that, having noted the various problems relating to the present part-session, the enlarged Bureau had decided at its meeting that morning to propose the following adjustments to the agenda:

— the deadline for tabling proposals for total rejection of the new draft general budget of the European Communities for the financial year 1980 was fixed at 10 a.m. on Tuesday, 8 July.

In this connection the enlarged Bureau reminded Parliament that requests to amend the proposals for total rejection could not be submitted in the form of amendments to these proposals but that they should take the form of a proposal for total rejection.

Statements on the proposals for total rejection would be made at 9 a.m. on Wednesday, 9 July and the vote would be held at 3 p.m. on that day.

Speaking time for these statements was allocated as follows:

- three minutes for the authors of the proposals (one author for each proposal),
- five minutes for each political group,
- five minutes in total for the non-attached members.

Mr Pannella spoke.

Parliament agreed to this proposed adjustment to the agenda.

— At the request of the Committee on Transport, the enlarged Bureau proposed that the vote on the Janssen van Raay report (Doc. 1-274/80) be held that evening.

Parliament agreed to this proposal on the understanding that the vote could not be held that evening unless the debate was closed.

The enlarged Bureau proposed that the debate on the Luster report (Doc. 1-148/80/corr.), which was scheduled for the sitting of Wednesday, 9 July, be placed on the agenda for Tuesday, 8 July after the statement by the Council on the Luxembourg presidency.

The President stated that the rapporteur had already introduced his report in May and that the speaking time proposed for the sitting of Tuesday, 8 July should be

divided by those concerned between the debate on the Council statement and the debate on the Luster report.

The President announced that she had received from Mr Blaney, Mr Pannella and Mr Bonde, on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, a proposed amendment to the agenda pursuant to Rule 12 (2), seeking:

- to remove from the agenda the debate on the Luster report (Doc. 1-148/80/corr.),
- if this proposal was rejected, not to apply Rule 28 to the debate on the Luster report.

The following spoke: Mr Blaney, Mr Fanti, on behalf of the Communist and Allies Group, Mr D'Angelosante and Mr Pannella.

Parliament rejected the request to remove the debate on the Luster report from the agenda.

Parliament rejected the request that Rule 28 should not be applied to the debate on the Luster report.

Parliament agreed to the proposal to place the debate on the Luster report on the agenda for the sitting of Tuesday, 8 July.

— The enlarged Bureau proposed to organize the sitting of Wednesday, 9 July as follows:

morning:

- statements on the proposals for total rejection of the 1980 budget;
- von Bismarck report on the economic situation (Doc. 1-288/80).

Speaking time for this debate: 2 hours 30 minutes, allocated as follows:

- rapporteur: 10 minutes,
- Commission: 10 minutes,
- members: 120 minutes, broken down as follows:
 - Socialist Group: 25 minutes,
 - Group of the European People's Party (CD Group): 24 minutes,

- European Democratic Group: 16 minutes,
- Communist and Allies Group: 13 minutes,
- Liberal and Democratic Group: 12 minutes,
- Group of European Progressive Democrats:
 9 minutes,
- Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members:
 7 Minutes,
- non-attached members: 14 minutes.

3 p.m. to 7 p.m.:

— vote on the proposals for total rejection of the 1980 budget, the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Luster and the motions for resolutions on which the debate had closed.

Parliament agreed to this proposal from the enlarged Bureau.

The enlarged Bureau also proposed the inclusion on the agenda for the sitting of Thursday, 10 July of a joint debate on the reports by Mr Peters (Doc. 1-215/80) and Mrs Hoff (Doc. 1-266/80) on the steel industry, and an oral question by the Committee on External Economic Relations to the Commission on relations between the EEC and the USA in the steel sector (Doc. 1-296/80) (the author of the question would not be given priority in the debate and his speaking time would be included in the time allocated to his political group).

Parliament agreed to this proposal from the enlarged Bureau.

Mr von der Vring spoke.

Parliament adopted the following agenda for that part-session:

That afternoon until 8 p.m.:

- procedure without report;
- decision on urgency;
- Commission statement on action taken on the opinions and proposals of Parliament;
- Question Time (questions to the Commission: 1¹/₂ hours);

— Janssen van Raay report on development of an air traffic control system (possibly followed by vote).

Tuesday, 8 July 1980

9 a.m. to 1 p.m. and 3 p.m. to 7 p.m.:

- Council statement on the Luxembourg presidency (followed by a debate);
- Luster report amending Parliament's Rules of Procedure (debate) (1).

5.30 p.m. to 7 p.m.:

 Question Time (questions to the Council and Foreign Ministers).

Wednesday, 9 July 1980

9 a.m. to 1 p.m.:

- statements on the proposals for total rejection of the 1980 budget;
- von Bismarck report on economic development of the Community during the first half of 1980.

3 p.m. to 7 p.m.

— vote on the proposals for total rejection of the 1980 budget and motions for resolutions on which the debate has closed.

Thursday, 10 July 1980

10 a.m. to 1 p.m., 3 p.m. to 8 p.m. and 9 p.m. to 12 midnight:

- possibly, continuation of Wednesday's agenda;
- Commission statement on the preliminary draft budget of the Communities for 1981;
- Prout report on consumer credit;
- joint debate on the Peters report, the Hoff report and an oral question to the Commission on the steel industry;
- von Wogau report on a certification procedure for industrial products originating in third countries;
- von Wogau report on directives on motor vehicles, certain construction plant, textile names, electrical

⁽¹⁾ The report was presented on 20 May 1980.

equipment in explosive atmospheres and biodegradability;

- De Ferranti report on powered industrial trucks;
- Cottrell report on integration of railway undertakings;
- Buttafuoco report on transport infrastructure;
- Aigner report on implementation of the 1979 budget;
- interim Kellett-Bowman report on budgetary control of the Data-Processing Centre;
- Penders report on human rights in Poland;
- Marshall report on refugees in the Horn of Africa.

3 p.m.:

- voting time.

Friday, 11 July 1980

9 a.m.:

- procedure without report;
- possibly, continuation of Thursday's agenda;
- Giummarra report on importation of fresh lemons;
- possibly, report by the Committee on Agriculture on fishery resources;
- possibly, Colleselli report on areas under vines;
- possibly, Blaney report on markets in flax and hemp.

Votes:

- 9 a.m.: decision on any requests for urgent debate and requests for an early vote;
- 10.30 a.m.: vote on motions for resolutions on which the debate has closed;

— after 10.30 a.m.: motions for resolutions will be put to the vote at the end of each debate.

Mr Pannella and Mr Glinne spoke.

10. Speaking time

Pursuant to Rules 28 and 36A, speaking time was allocated as follows:

- overall speaking time for the items on Tuesday's agenda:
 - Council: 60 minutes,
 - Commission: 45 minutes,
 - members: 240 minutes, allocated as follows:
 - Socialist Group: 58 minutes,
 - Group of the European People's Party (CD Group): 55 minutes,
 - European Democratic Group: 35 minutes,
 - Communist and Allies Group: 25 minutes,
 - Liberal and Democratic Group: 24 minutes,
 - Group of European Progressive Democrats: 15 minutes,
 - Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members: 10 minutes,
 - non-attached members: 18 minutes;
- overall speaking time for the items on Wednesday's agenda:
 - statement on the proposals to reject outright the 1980 budget:
 - 3 minutes for the authors of the proposals (one author for each proposal),
 - 5 minutes for each political group,
 - 5 minutes in all for the non-attached members;
 - von Bismarck report on economic development:
 - rapporteur: 10 minutes,
 - Commission: 10 minutes,

- members: 120 minutes, allocated as follows:
 - Socialist Group: 25 minutes,
 - Group of the European People's Party (CD Group): 24 minutes,
 - European Democratic Group: 16 minutes,
 - Communist and Allies Group: 13 minutes,
 - Liberal and Democratic Group: 12 minutes,
 - Group of European Progressive Democrats: 9 minutes,
 - Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members: 7 minutes,
 - non-attached members: 14 minutes;

- members: 90 minutes, allocated as follows:
 - Socialist Group: 20 minutes,
 - Group of the European People's Party (CD Group): 19 minutes,
 - European Democratic Group: 13 minutes,
 - Communist and Allies Group: 10 minutes,
 - Liberal and Democratic Group: 9 minutes,
 - Group of European Progressive Democrats: 6 minutes,
 - Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members: 5 minutes,
 - non-attached members: 8 minutes.

- overall speaking time for the items on Thursday's agenda:
 - Commission: 80 minutes,
 - rapporteurs: 60 minutes (5 minutes each),
 - members: 360 minutes, allocated as follows:
 - Socialist Group: 90 minutes,
 - Group of the European People's Party (Christian-Democratic Group): 85 minutes,
 - European Democratic Group: 53 minutes,
 - Communist and Allies Group: 38 minutes,
 - Liberal and Democratic Group: 35 minutes,
 - Group of European Progressive Democrats:
 22 minutes,
 - Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members: 13 minutes,
 - non-attached members: 24 minutes;
- overall speaking time for the items on Friday's agenda:
 - Commission: 20 minutes,
 - rapporteurs: 20 minutes (5 minutes each),

11. Deadline for tabling amendments

On a proposal from the President, and after Mr Pannella had spoken, Parliament fixed the following deadlines for tabling amendments during that part-session:

- 7 p.m. on 7 July for items entered on the agenda for 7, 8 and 9 July (the deadline for tabling amendments to the Luster report on the Rules of Procedure (Doc. 1-148/80/corr.) had expired at 12 noon on 27 June);
- 6 p.m. on 8 July for items entered on the agenda for 10 July;
- 6 p.m. on 9 July for items entered on the agenda for 11 July.

12. Procedure without report

The President announced that, pursuant to Rule 27A (5), the following Commission proposal had been placed on the agenda for that sitting for consideration without report:

 proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No 456/80 on the

granting of temporary and permanent abandonment premiums in respect of certain areas under vines and of premiums for the renunciation of replanting (Doc. 1-211/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

The President reminded Parliament that unless any member asked leave to speak on this proposal or amendments were tabled to it before the opening of the sitting on Friday, 11 July 1980, she would, at that sitting, declare this proposal to be approved pursuant to Rule 27A (6).

13. Electronic voting system

The President reminded the House that the voting cards had been distributed.

In order that the votes to be held during that part-session might be conducted without difficulty, she requested members who had not yet done so to collect their cards from room 1138.

14. Decision on urgency

The next item was the decision on the urgency of the motion for a resolution by Mr Collins and others on the development of better cooperation between Parliament and Council (Doc. 1-282/80) (see item 2 of minutes of 27 June 1980).

The following spoke: Mr Hänsch, Mr Johnson and Mr Klepsch on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group).

Urgent procedure was rejected.

Pursuant to Rule 25, this motion for a resolution was referred to the appropriate committee, in this case the Political Affairs Committee.

15. Action taken by the Commission on the opinions and proposals of Parliament

The President announced that the Commission's statement on the action taken by it on the opinions and proposals put forward by Parliament at its first June 1980 part-session had been distributed at the same time

as the document drawn up by the secretariat on the same subject (1).

The following spoke on points 3 and 4 of the statement by the Commission: Mr Scott-Hopkins, Mr Natali, Vice-President of the Commission, and Mr Kirk.

Mr Adam expressed his concern at the action taken by the South African Government on the motion for a resolution on the political rights of the people of South Africa (Doc. 1-253/80).

The following spoke on points 3 and 4 of the statement: Mr Scott-Hopkins, Mr Natali, Mr Sherlock, Mr Natali, Mr Kirk, Mr Natali, Mr Patterson, on a general point, Mr Kirk, Mr Natali, Mr Kirk and Mr Scott-Hopkins.

16. Question Time

Parliament considered a number of questions put to the Commission, the Council, or the Foreign Ministers meeting in political cooperation (Doc. 1-287/80).

Questions to the Commission

Question No 1 by Lord Douro: VAT on bloodstock

Mr Tugendhat, Member of the Commission, answered the question and a supplementary question by Lord Douro.

IN THE CHAIR: MR PFLIMLIN

Vice-President

Mr Tugendhat answered a further supplementary question by Mr Turner.

Question No 2 by Mr Seligman: Arab telecommunications satellite project (Arabsat)

Mr Davignon, Member of the Commission, answered the question and a supplementary question by Mr Seligman.

Question No 3 by Mrs Ewing: Forecasting and assessment in the field of science and technology (FAST) \cdot

Mr. Vredeling, Vice-President of the Commission, answered the question and supplementary questions by

⁽¹⁾ See Annex to the report of proceedings of 7 July 1980.

Mrs Ewing, Sir Peter Vanneck, Mr Hutton, Mr Seligman and Mr Seal.

Mr Patterson, Mr Enright, Mr Hume, Miss Brookes and Mrs Hammerich.

Question No 4 by Mr Seal: The EEC textile industry

Mr Davignon, Member of the Commission, answered the question and a supplementary question by Mr Seal.

Mr Spicer spoke on the conduct of Question Time.

Mr Davignon answered further supplementary questions by Mr Beazley, Mr Key and Mr Martin.

Mr Hume spoke and Mr Pannella raised a point of order.

Question No 5 by Mr Capanna: Use of EEC appropriations for the earthquake area in Friuli, Italy

Mr Natali, Vice-President of the Commission, answered the question and a supplementary question by Mr Capanna.

Question No 6 by Mrs Cinciari Rodano: Meeting of the Council of Education Ministers

Mr Jenkins, *President of the Commission*, answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Papapietro, Mrs Nielsen, Mr Normanton, Mr Megahy, Mr Bøgh, Mrs Viehoff and Mr van Aerssen.

Question No 7 by Mr Newton Dunn: Fishing

Mr Jenkins answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Newton Dunn, Mrs Ewing, Mr Spicer and Mr Harris.

Question No 8 by Mr Boyes: Spanish steel

Mr Davignon, Member of the Commission, answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Boyes and Mr Bonde.

Together with more than four other members, Mr Normanton requested, pursuant to Rule 47B, that a debate be held immediately following Question Time on the answer given by the Commission to this question.

Question No 9 by Mr Patterson: Year of the Disabled

Mr Vredeling, Vice-President of the Commission, answered the question and supplementary questions by

Question No 10 by Mr Romualdi: Attacks on Libyan refugees in Community countries

Mr Jenkins, President of the Commission, answered the question.

Question No 11 by Mr Tyrrell: Exports of butter to the USSR

Mr Jenkins answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Tyrrell, Mr Hord, Mr Seligman and Mr Harris.

In view of the time factor and the contents of the agenda, Mr Normanton agreed that the debate he had requested on the Commission's answer to Question No 8 should be held over to the September part-session.

The President stated that he would submit this proposal to the Bureau.

The President declared the first part of Question Time closed.

17. Development of an air traffic control system (debate)

The next item was the report drawn up by Mr Janssen van Raay on behalf of the Committee on Transport, on the development of a coordinated European air traffic control system (Doc. 1-274/80).

The following spoke: Mr Pannella, Mr Moreland, Mr Moorhouse, Mr Seefeld, Chairman of the Committee on Transport, and Mr Berkhouwer, the latter on the conduct of the debate.

In view of the time factor which meant that it would not be possible to conclude the debate during that sitting, Mr Janssen van Raay requested that this debate be held at the sitting on Thursday, 10 July.

Mr Cottrell, Mr Pannella, Mr Herman and Mr Cardia spoke.

Parliament agreed to Mr Janssen van Raay's request.

18. Agenda for next sitting

The President announced the following agenda for the sitting on Tuesday, 8 July 1980:

 Council statement on the Luxembourg presidency (followed by a debate);

- Luster report amending Parliament's Rules of Procedure (debate).

5.30 p.m. to 7 p.m.:

— Question Time (questions to the Council and the Foreign Ministers).

9 a.m. to 1 p.m. and 3 p.m. to 7 p.m.:

- decision on urgency;

(The sitting was closed at 8 p.m.)

H.-J. OPITZ

Simone VEIL

Secretary-General

President

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SITTING OF TUESDAY, 8 JULY 1980

IN THE CHAIR: MRS VEIL

President

(The sitting was opened at 9 a.m.)

Mr Pannella and Mrs Scrivener spoke on the holding of committee meetings during part-sessions.

1. Approval of minutes

The minutes of the previous day's sitting were approved.

2. Composition of committees

At the request of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, Parliament ratified the appointment of Mr de la Malène as member of the Joint Parliamentary Committee of the EEC-Greece Association.

3. Statement by the President

The President informed Parliament that, in accordance with the wish expressed by the latter during the previous day's sitting when it was clearly no longer possible consider during that sitting the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Janssen van Raay on the development of a coordinated European air traffic control system (Doc. 1-274/80), she had sent the President-in-Office of the Council a telegram asking him to draw the attention of the Ministers currently meeting to discuss Eurocontrol to the contents of the abovementioned document and pointing out that Parliament had decided to take up a position at its sitting on Thursday, 10 July and that it expected the Ministers to take account of its deliberations before taking any final decisions, particularly as regards the future of Eurocontrol.

4. Decision on urgency

The first item was the decision on the urgency of two proposals for Regulations and one motion for a resolution.

 Proposals for Regulations concerning the United Kingdom's contribution to the general budget of the Communities and a financial mechanism (Doc. 1-273/80)

Mr Lange, Chairman of the Committee on Budgets, which had been asked for an opinion, spoke.

Mr Adam spoke.

Urgent procedure was rejected.

— Motion for a resolution by Mr Schieler and others on aid to refugees in the South China Sea (Doc. 1-284/80)

The following spoke: Mr Schieler, Mrs Agnelli and Mrs Macciocchi, on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members.

Urgent procedure was adopted.

This motion for a resolution was entered on the agenda for the sitting on Friday, 11 July.

5. First anniversary of the election of Parliament by direct universal suffrage

The President reviewed the activities of the directly elected European Parliament since its election.

Tuesday, 8 July 1980

6. Tabling of proposals for the total rejection of the new draft general budget for 1980

The President informed Parliament that the deadline for tabling proposals for the total rejection of the new draft general budget of the European Communities for the 1980 financial year had expired.

She announced that she had received two proposals for total rejection of the budget:

- the first from Mr Balfe, Mr Megahy, Mr Lomas, Mr Seal, Mr Boyes, Mrs Buchan, Mr Adam, Mr Caborn, Mr Gallagher, Mr Griffiths, Mr Key, Mrs Castle, Miss Quin and Ms Clwyd (Doc. 1-294/80),
- the second from Mr Pannella, Mrs Bonino, Mrs Macciocchi, Mr Coppieters and Mr Capanna (Doc. 1-300/80).

She reminded members that, in accordance with the decision taken the previous day, the statements on these proposals for total rejection of the budget would be heard at the beginning of the sitting on Wednesday, 9 July and that the vote would be held at 3 p.m. the same day.

7. Council statement on the Luxembourg presidency (followed by a debate)

Mr Thorn, *President-in-Office of the Council*, presented to Parliament the programme of the Luxembourg presidency for the coming six months.

The following spoke: Mr Glinne on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Scott-Hopkins on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Berlinguer, Communist and Allies Group, Mr Lecanuet on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Rey on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group and Mrs Ewing on behalf of the Group of European Progressive Democrats.

IN THE CHAIR: MR VANDEWIELE

Vice-President

The following spoke: Mr Pannella, Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, Mr de Goede, non-attached member, Mr Kirk, Mr Piquet, Mrs Dienesch, Mr Ryan,

Mr Curry, Mr Coppieters, Mr Almirante, Mr Narducci, Lord O'Hagan, Mr Romualdi and Mr Alber.

Mr Pannella spoke on the conduct of the debate.

(The sitting was suspended at 1.05 p.m. and resumed at 3.05 p.m.)

Mr Pannella raised a point of order.

8. Urgent debate

The President announced that he had received from Mr Israel, Mr Baudis, Mr Berkhouwer, Mr Bersani, Mr Bettiza, Mr Cariglia, Mrs Cassanmagnago Cerretti, Mr Cecovini, Mrs Chouraqui, Mr Delorozoy, Mr Donnez, Mr Doublet, Mrs Ewing, Mr Fanton, Mr Labbé, Mr Michel, Mr Modiano, Mr Nord, Mr d'Ormesson, Mr Pannella, Mr Puletti, Mr Prout, Mrs Pruvot, Mr Remilly, Mr Rey, Mr Sablé, Mr Schinzel, Mr Seitlinger, Mr Vandewiele and Mrs Weiss a motion for a resolution with request for urgent debate, pursuant to Rule 14, on the follow-up to the Geneva International Conference on humanitarian aid to Kampuchea (Doc. 1-301/80/rev.).

The reasons supporting this request for urgent debate were contained in the document itself.

Pursuant to Rule 14 (1), second subparagraph, the vote on this request for urgent debate would be held at the beginning of the next day's sitting.

9. Agenda

The President announced to Parliament that Mr Penders had informed him that he had no objection to his report on human rights in Poland (Doc. 1-291/80), which had been placed on the agenda for the sitting on Thursday, 10 Jüly, being held over until the September part-session, in accordance with the enlarged Bureau's request.

This report was therefore held over until the September part-session.

Tuesday, 8 July 1980

10. Council statement on the Luxembourg presidency (continuation of debate)

On a proposal from the President, and after Lord Harmar Nicholls had spoken, Parliament suspended the sitting to await the arrival of the President-in-Office of the Council.

(The sitting was suspended at 3.10 p.m. and resumed at 3.15 p.m.)

Mr Thorn, President-in-Office of the Council, spoke.

The President declared the debate closed.

11. Amendment of Parliament's Rules of Procedure (debate)

The next item was the debate on the report by Mr Luster, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on the Rules of Procedure and Petitions, amending the Rules of Procedure of the European Parliament (Doc. 1-148/80/corr.), which had been presented on 20 May 1980 (see item 4 of that day's minutes).

The following spoke: Mrs Vayssade, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Adonnino, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Patterson, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Pannella and Lord Harmar-Nicholls, who both spoke on the conduct of the debate, Mr Chambeiron, Communist and Allies Group, Mr Nord, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Mrs Dekker, non-attached member, Mr Pannella, Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, and Mr D'Angelosante.

IN THE CHAIR: MR B. FRIEDRICH

Vice-President

The following spoke: Mr Galland, Mr Coppieters, Mr Tyrrell, Mrs Hammerich, Mr Capanna, Mr Spicer, and the rapporteur.

The President stated that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote, together with the amendments tabled to it, at the next voting time (see item 11 of minutes of 9 July 1980).

He declared the debate closed.

12. Urgent debate

The President announced that he had received the following motions for resolutions with request for urgent debate, pursuant to Rule 14:

- motion for a resolution by Mr Seal, Mr Megahy, Mr Lomas, Mrs Castle, Mr Caborn, Mrs Weber, Mr Gallagher, Mr Muntingh, Mr Balfe, Mr Enright, Mrs Wieczorek-Zeul, Mr van Minnen, Mr Griffiths, Mr Rogers, Mr Collins, Ms Clwyd, Mr Boyes, Mr Adam, Mrs Buchan, Mr Key and Miss Quin on the neutron bomb (Doc. 1-307/80),
- motion for a resolution by Mr Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg, Mr Klepsch, Mr van Aerssen, Mr Janssen van Raay, Mr Giavazzi, Mr Filippi and Mr Herman, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group) on the outcome of the Third Conference on the Law of the Sea (Doc. 1-308/80).

The reasons supporting these requests for urgent debate were contained in the documents themselves.

He stated that, pursuant to Rule 14 (1), second subparagraph, the vote on these requests for urgent debate would be taken at the beginning of the next day's sitting.

13. Question Time

The next item was the continuation and conclusion of Question Time (Doc. 1-287/80).

Questions to the Council

Question No 43 by Mr Adam: New Community energy initiative

Mr Thorn, President-in-Office of the Council, answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Adam, Mr Griffiths, Mrs Ewing and Mr Moreland.

Question No. 44 by Sir John Stewart-Clark: Protection of animals during international transport

Mr Thorn answered the question and supplementary questions by Sir John Stewart-Clark and Mr Howell.

Question No 45 by Mr Seal: Treaty of Rome and application of Community legislation in Member States

Mr Thorn answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Seal, Mr Welsh, Mr Megahy and Mr van Aerssen.

Tuesday, 8 July 1980

Question No 46 by Mrs Ewing: European Institute for Economic and Social Policy Research

Mr Thorn answered the question and supplementary questions by Mrs Ewing and Miss Quin.

Question No 47 by Mr Remilly: Indexation of oil prices

Mr Thorn answered the question.

Question No 48 by Mr Kavanagh: Meeting of Education Ministers

Mr Thorn answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Kavanagh, Mr Key, Mr Schwencke, Mr Price, Mr Møller and Mrs Dienesch.

Question No 49 by Mr Seligman: International harmonization of energy prices and taxes

Mr Thorn answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Seligman and Mr Galland.

Questions to the Foreign Ministers Meeting in Political Cooperation

Question No 62 by Mr Van Miert: Consultation with the United States

Mr Thorn, President-in-Office of the Foreign Ministers meeting in political cooperation, answered the question.

Question No 63 by Mr Romualdi on attacks on Libyan refugees in Community countries would be answered in writing since the author was absent and had not appointed a deputy.

Question No 64 by Mr Fergusson: Danger of chemical warfare to civilian population and

Question No 65 by Mr Hutton: Prevention of chemical warfare

Mr Thorn answered the questions and supplementary questions by Mr Fergusson and Mr Hutton.

Question No 66 by Mr Penders: CSCE (Madrid follow-up conference)

Mr Thorn answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Penders and Mrs Maij-Weggen.

Question No 67 by Mr Lalor: Solutions to the Afghanistan crisis

Mr Thorn answered the question and supplementary questions by Mr Lalor, Mr Spicer and Lord Harmar-Nicholls.

Question No 68 by Mr Israel: Conference in Madrid

Mr Thorn answered the question and a supplementary question by Mr Israel.

The President declared Question Time closed.

Questions which had not been dealt with would be answered in writing unless their authors withdrew them or requested that they be held over until the next Question Time.

14. Agenda for next sitting

The President announced the following agenda for the sitting on Wednesday, 9 July:

9 a.m. to 1 p.m.:

- decision on urgency;
- statements on the proposals for the total rejection of the 1980 budget;
- von Bismarck report on the Community's economic development during the first half of 1980.

3 p.m. to 7 p.m.:

— vote on the proposals for the total rejection of the 1980 budget and on the motions for resolutions on which the debate has closed.

(The sitting was closed at 7.05 p.m.)

H.-J. OPITZ

Gérard JAQUET

Secretary-General

Vice-President

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SITTING OF WEDNESDAY, 9 JULY 1980

IN THE CHAIR: MR JAQUET

Vice-President

(The sitting was opened at 9 a.m.)

1. Approval of minutes

The minutes of the previous day's sitting were approved.

2. Documents received

The President announced that he had received:

- (a) from the committees, the following reports:
 - report by Mr Colleselli, on behalf of the Committee on Agriculture, on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council (Doc. 1-133/80) for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No 357/79 on statistical surveys of areas under vines (Doc. 1-302/80)
 - report by Mr Gautier, on behalf of the Committee on Agriculture, on the proposals from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for:
 - I. a Regulation allocating catch quotas between Member States for vessels fishing in Faroese waters
 - II. a Regulation allocating catch quotas between Member States for vessels fishing in Swedish waters
 - III. a Regulation allocating certain catch quotas between Member States for vessels fishing in the Norwegian exclusive economic zone (Doc. 1-232/80)
 - IV. a Regulation laying down for the year 1980 certain measures for the conservation and management of fishery resources off the

West Greenland coast applicable to vessels flying the flag of a Member State (Doc. 1-272/80)

(Doc. 1-304/80);

- report by Mr Blaney, on behalf of the Committee on Agriculture, on the proposals from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council (Doc. 1-134/80) for:
 - I. a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC)
 No 1308/70 on the common organization of
 the market in flax and hemp
 - II. a Regulation on the measures encouraging the use of flax fibres for the 1980/81 and 1981/82 marketing years

(Doc. 1-306/80);

- (b) an oral question with debate by Sir Fred Catherwood, Mrs Wieczorek-Zeul, Mr van Aerssen and Mr Seal, on behalf of the Committee on External Economic Relations, to the Commission on relations between the EEC and the United States in the steel sector (Doc. 1-296/80);
- (c) the following motions for resolutions, tabled pursuant to Rule 25:
 - motion for a resolution by Mrs Lizin, Mr. Delmotte and Mr. Radoux on the position of refugees in Somalia (Doc. 1-295/80)
 - which had been referred to the Committee on Development and Cooperation as the Committee responsible, and to the Committee on Budgets for an opinion;
 - motion for a resolution by Mr Coppieters on the need for closer cooperation among the frontier regions in the Community, particularly the Flemish region in Belgium and Nord/Pas-de-Calais region in France (Doc. 1-297/80)

Which had been referred to the Committee on Transport as the committee responsible, and to the Committee on Regional Policy and Regional Planning for an opinion;

- motion for a resolution by Mr Coppieters on a European Charter to protect the rights of peoples and minorities (Doc. 1-298/80)
 which had been referred to the Legal Affairs Committee;
- motion for a resolution by Sir Fred Catherwood, Mr Moreland, Mr Scott-Hopkins, Mr Moorhouse, Mr Turner, Miss Forster, Mr Howell, Sir Henry Plumb, Mr Spencer, Mr Simmonds, Mr Battersby, Mr Forth, Mr J. M. Taylor, Mr de Gourcy Ling, Mr Newton Dunn, Mr Tuckman, Mr Simpson, Mr Cottrell, Mr Curry, Mr Prout and Mr Beazley, on the improvement of transport infrastructure from the Midlands of the United Kingdom to other parts of the Community through the east coast ports of the United Kingdom (Doc. 1-299/80)
- which had been referred to the Committee on Transport as the committee responsible, and to the Committee on Budgets for an opinion;
- motion for a resolution by Mr Patterson and Miss Brookes on the International Year of the Disabled (Doc. 1-303/80)
 which had been referred to the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment;
- motion for a resolution by Mr C. Jackson and Mr Tyrrell on parliamentary procedure with regard to Community policy (Doc. 1-305/80)
 which had been referred to the Political Affairs Committee.

3. Referral to committee

The President announced that the motion for a resolution by Mr Aigner, Mr Klepsch, Mr Notenboom, Mr Barbi and Mr Herman, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), and Mr Curry, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, on unusual speculative movements in the trade of milk products exported by the nine Member States of the European Community and abuses of the provisions of the EAGGF, Guarantee Section, to the detriment of the Community budget (Doc. 1-246/80), which had been referred to the Committee on Agriculture as the committee responsible, and to the Committee on Budgets and the Committee on Budgetary Control for

opinions (see item 5 of minutes of 18 June 1980), had now been referred to the Committee on Budgetary Control as the committee responsible, and to the Committee on Agriculture for an opinion.

4. Composition of Parliament

The President announced that Mr Labbé had informed him of his resignation as Member of Parliament.

Pursuant to Article 12 (2), second subparagraph, of the Act concerning the election of the representatives of the Assembly by direct universal suffrage, the Assembly established that there was a vacancy and duly informed the Member State concerned.

5. Decision on urgency

The next item was the decision on the urgency of three motions for resolutions:

— motion for a resolution by Mr Israel and others on Cambodia (Doc. 1-301/80/rev.)

Mr Israel spoke.

Urgent procedure was adopted.

This motion for a resolution was placed on the agenda for the sitting on Friday, 11 July.

— motion for a resolution by Mr Seal and others on the neutron bomb (Doc. 1-307/80)

The following spoke: Mr Glinne, Mr Seal, Mr de la Malène, Mr d'Ormesson, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group) and Mr Galland, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group.

Urgent procedure was rejected.

Pursuant to Rule 25, this motion for a resolution was referred to the appropriate committee, in this case, the Political Affairs Committee.

— motion for a resolution by Mr Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg and others on the Law of the Sea (Doc. 1-308/80)

The following spoke: Mr Herman, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Walter, Mr Calvez, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Mr Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg and Mr Moreland, on behalf of the European Democratic Group.

Urgent procedure was rejected.

Pursuant to Rule 25, this motion for a resolution was referred to the appropriate committee, in this case the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs as the committee responsible and the Legal Affairs Committee for an opinion.

6. Proposals for total rejection of the 1980 budget

The next item was the presentation of the two proposals for total rejection of the general budget for 1980 and the explanations of vote relating thereto.

Mr Balfe moved the proposal for total rejection of the new draft budget for 1980 which he had tabled, together with Mr Megahy, Mr Lomas, Mr Seal, Mr Boyes, Mrs Buchan, Mr Adam, Mr Caborn, Mr Gallagher, Mr Griffiths, Mr Key, Mrs Castle, Miss Quin and Ms Clwyd, pursuant to Article 6 (1) of Annex I to the Rules of Procedure (Doc. 1-294/80).

Mr Pannella moved the proposal for total rejection of the new draft budget of the European Communities for the financial year 1980 which he had tabled, together with Mrs Bonino, Mr Capanna, Mr Coppieters and Mrs Macciocchi, pursuant to Article 6 (1) of Annex I to the Rules of Procedure (Doc. 1-300/80).

The following spoke; Mr Glinne, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Langes, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Scott-Hopkins, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Baillot, Communist and Allies Group, Mrs Scrivener, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Mr Ansquer, on behalf of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, Mr Bonde, Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, Mr Spinelli, Communist and Allies Group, Mr Blaney, Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, Mr Romualdi, non-attached, and Mr Tugendhat, Member of the Commission.

The President stated that the vote on these two proposals for total rejection would be taken at the next voting time (see item 10 of these minutes).

7. Agenda

On a proposal from the President, following a request by the rapporteurs, Parliament decided to hold a joint debate on the reports by Mr von Wogau (Doc. 1-236/80 and 1-141/80) and Mr de Ferranti (Doc. 1-224/80), which had been placed on the agenda for the sitting on Thursday, 10 July.

8. Economic development of the Community in the first half of 1980 (debate)

Mr von Bismarck introduced his report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs, on the economic development of the Community in the first half of 1980 and the implementation of the Council's decision on convergence (Doc. 1-288/80).

The following spoke: Mr Delors, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Beumer, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD-Group), and Mr Hopper, on behalf of the European Democratic Group.

IN THE CHAIR: MR GONELLA

Vice-President

The following spoke: Mr Bonaccini, on behalf of the Communist and Allies Group, Mr De Clercq, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Mr Poncelet, on behalf of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, Mrs Castellina, Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, Mr De Goede, non-attached member, Mr Rogers, Mr Macario and Mr Møller

IN THE CHAIR: MR DANKERT

Vice-President

The following spoke: Mr Pranchere, Mr Almirante, Mrs Castle, Mr Herman, Sir Brandon Rhys-Williams, Mr Petronio, Mr Bonde, Mr Ortoli, Vice-President of the Commission, and the rapporteur.

The President announced that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote, together with the

amendments tabled to it, at the next voting time (see item 12 of these minutes).

He declared the debate closed.

9. Urgent debate

The President announced that he had received the following motions for resolutions, with request for urgent debate pursuant to Rule 14:

- motion for a resolution by Mr Sarre, Mrs Charzat, Mr Motchane, Mr Schwartzenberg, Mr Oehler, Mr Peters, Mr Sutra, Mr Schieler, Mr Rogers, Mr Faure, Mrs Salisch, Mr Josselin, Mr Van Miert, Mr van Minnen, Mr von der Vring, Mr Lomas, Mr Boyes, Ms Clwyd, Mr Estier, Mr Moreau, Mr Pisani, Mr Balfe, Mr Jaquet, Mr Glinne and Mrs Roudy, on the future of the car industry (Doc. 1-311/80);
- motion for a resolution by Mr Rinsche, Mr Janssen van Raay, Mr Jonker, Mr Cottrell, Mrs Kellett-Bowman, Mr Spicer, Mr De Clercq, Mr Haagerup, Mr Wawrzik, Mrs von Alemann, Mr Brok, Mr Prag, Mrs Agnelli, Mr Bettiza, Mr Irmer, Mr Damseaux, Mrs Dekker, Mr Baudis, Mr Cecovini, Mr Berkhouwer, Mr Majonica, Mr van Aerssen, Mr Bocklet, Mr Früh, Mr Travaglini, Mr Penders, Mr Blumenfeld, Mr Mertens and Mrs Lenz, on the border incident between Vietnamese troops from Cambodia and Thai troops in Thailand (Doc. 1-312/80).

He announced that the reasons supporting these requests for urgent debate were contained in the documents themselves.

Pursuant to Rule 14 (1), second subparagraph, the vote on these requests for urgency would be held at the beginning of the next day's sitting.

(The sitting was suspended at 1 p.m. and resumed at 3 p.m.)

IN THE CHAIR: MRS VEIL

President

10. Proposals for total rejection of the 1980 budget (vote)

The next item was the vote on the two proposals for total rejection of the new draft general budget of the European Communities for the 1980 financial year.

The President reminded members of the instructions for the use of the electronic voting system.

Mr Pannella raised a point of order.

Mr Lange, Chairman of the Committee on Budgets, and Mr Pannella spoke.

- Proposal by Mr Balfe and others (Doc.1-294/80)

The President announced that she had received a request from Mr Balfe and 16 other signatories for a roll-call vote on this proposal.

The President drew attention to the provisions of Rule 35, which stipulated that such a request must be supported by at least 21 members or a political group.

More than 21 members rose in support of Mr Balfe's request.

Referring to Rule 35 (6), the President decided that the electronic voting system would be used for this vote and for all other roll-call votes which might be requested.

A roll-call vote was taken using the electronic voting system.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 202 (1),
- abstentions: 9,
- for: 22,
- against: 171.

This proposal for total rejection was rejected.

The following raised points of order: Mr Lomas, Mrs Castle, Mr Seal, Mr Lomas and Mr Pannella.

Mr Damseaux spoke.

⁽¹⁾ See Annex.

— Proposal by Mr Pannella and others (Doc. 1-300/80)

Parliament rejected this proposal for total rejection.

The President noted that Parliament had rejected the proposals for total rejection of the new draft budget of the Communities for the financial year 1980.

She reminded the House that, at its sitting of Monday, 7 July, Parliament had fixed the deadline for tabling proposals for total rejection at 10 a.m. on Tuesday, 8 July.

Since no further proposals for total rejection could be submitted to Parliament, the President declared that the procedure provided for in Article 203 of the EEC Treaty had been completed and that the general budget of the European Communities for 1980 had been finally adopted.

11. Amendment of Parliament's Rules of Procedure (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Luster (Doc. 1-148/80/corr.).

Pursuant to Rule 32 (1) (b), Mr Coppieters requested that the report be referred back to committee.

The following spoke: Mr Nyborg, Chairman of the Committee on the Rules of Procedure and Petitions, Mr Rogers and Mrs Hammerich.

Parliament rejected Mr Coppieters' request.

Three amendments had been tabled whose-adoption would involve rejection of the amendments proposed in the motion for a resolution and of all the amendments to these texts:-

- No 171 by Mrs Bonino, seeking to replace the whole motion for a resolution with a new text,
- No 53 by Ms Clwyd, Mr Boyes and Mr—Seal, seeking to replace the text of paragraph 1 with a new text.
- No 54 by the same authors, seeking to replace the text of paragraph 2 with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Mr Pannella requested a split vote on amendment No 171, the indents as a whole to be voted first and then each paragraph separately.

The indents were rejected.

Paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 were rejected in succession.

Amendment No 53 was rejected.

Amendment No 54 therefore fell.

Rule 14

11 amendments seeking to replace the text proposed by the rapporteur with a new text had been tabled:

- No 34 by Mr Coppieters,
- No 59 by Mr Galland and Mr Nord, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group,
- No 94 by Mr Capanna,
- No 95 by Mr Pannella,
- No 98 by Mrs Macciocchi,
- Nos 96 and 97, 93 and 114 by Mrs Bonino,
- No 35 by Mr Blaney, on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members,
- No 47 by Mrs Krouwel-Vlam and Mr van Minnen, the latter two being identical.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 34 was rejected.

Mr D'Angelosante requested a separate vote on paragraph 2 of amendment No 59.

Paragraph 1 of amendment No 59 was adopted.

Paragraph 2 of amendment No 59 was adopted.

Paragraphs 3 to 6 of amendment No 59 were adopted.

All the other amendments to Rule 14 therefore fell.

The following raised points of order: the rapporteur, Mr Blaney and Lord Harmar-Nicholls, and Mr Blaney spoke on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members.

Rule 26 (3)

10 amendments had been tabled:

- No 64 by Mr Pannella,
- No 86 by Mrs Macciocchi,
- No 140 by Mrs Bonino,
- No 36 by Mr Blaney, on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members,
- No 139 by Mrs Bonino,
- No 33 by Mrs Dekker,
- No 38 by Mr Blaney,
- No 19 by Mr Patterson, on behalf of the European Democratic Group,
- Nos 55 and 58 by Mr Adonnino.

The rapporteur spoke.

Mr D'Angelosante requested a split vote on amendment No 19, subparagraphs (a) to (e) to be voted first and then subparagraphs (f) to (i).

Amendment No 64 was rejected.

Amendment No 86 was rejected.

Amendment No 140 was rejected.

On behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, Mr Blaney requested a roll-call vote on amendment No 36, pursuant to Rule 35 (4).

A roll-call vote was taken using the electronic voting system.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 253 (1),
- abstentions: 5,
- for: 37.
- against: 211.

Amendment No 36 was therefore rejected.

Amendment No 139 was rejected.

Amendment No 33 was rejected.

Amendment No 38 was rejected.

On amendment No 19:

- Mr Nyborg requested, on behalf of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, a separate vote on subparagraph (c),
- Mr Blaney requested, on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, that the vote be taken by roll call,
- Mrs Vayssade requested, on behalf of the Socialist Group, a separate vote on subparagraphs (e) and (f),
- Mr Chambeiron made a proposal concerning the voting procedure,
- Mr von der Vring requested a separate vote on subparagraph (f).

A roll-call vote was taken on subparagraphs (a) and (b) of amendment No 19 using the electronic voting system.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 253 (1),
- abstentions: 1,
- for: 239,
- against: 13.

Subparagraphs (a) and (b) were therefore adopted.

Mr Patterson and Mr Nyborg, Chairman of the Committee on the Rules of Procedure and Petitions.

The President pointed out that subparagraph (i) was missing from the French version of amendment No 19.

A roll-call vote was taken on subparagraph (c) of amendment No 19 using the electronic voting system.

⁽¹⁾ See Annex.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 256 (1),
- abstentions: 4,
- for: 245,
- against: 7.

Subparagraph (c) of amendment No 19 was therefore adopted.

A roll-call vote was taken on subparagraph (d) of amendment No 19 using the electronic voting system.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 247 (1),
- abstentions: 2,
- for: 230,
- against: 15.

Subparagraph (d) of amendment No 19 was therefore adopted.

A roll-call vote was taken on subparagraph (e) of amendment No 19.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 244 (1),
- abstentions: 2,
- for: 170,
- against: 72.

Subparagraph (e) of amendment No 19 was therefore adopted.

Mr Ferri, Chairman of the Legal Affairs Committee, raised a point of order.

A roll-call vote was taken on subparagraph (f) of amendment No 19 using the electronic voting system.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 254 (1),
- abstentions: 1,
- for: 169,
- against: 84.

(1) See Annex.

Subparagraph (f) of amendment No 19 was therefore adopted.

A roll-call vote was taken on subparagraphs (g), (h) and (i) of amendment No 19 using the electronic voting system.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 243 (1),
- abstentions: 3,
- for: 169,
- against: 71.

Subparagraphs (g), (h) and (i) of amendment No 19 were therefore adopted.

All the other amendments to Rule 26 therefore fell.

Rule 31A

Eight amendments had been tabled:

- No 111 by Mr Pannella,
- No 112 by Mr Capanna,
- No 110 and No 113 by Mrs Bonino,
- No 5 by Mr Chambeiron,
- No 32 by Mrs Dekker,
- No 37 by Mr Blaney, on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members,
- No 50 by Mrs Krouwel-Vlam and Mr van Minnen.

The rapporteur pointed out that amendment Nos-111, 112, 110, 113, 5, 32 and 37 had fallen and there remained only amendment No 50 to be put to the vote.

Mr Blaney requested, on behalf of the Group fot the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, that a roll-call vote be taken on amendment No 50, pursuant to Rule 35 (4).

A roll-call vote was taken using the electronic voting system.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 241 (1),
- abstentions: 9,
- for: 40,
- against: 192.

Amendment No 50 was therefore rejected.

Parliament then voted on the motion for a resolution proper.

The President announced that, after the vote on the preamble, a separate vote would be taken on each Rule (14, 26 and 31A) and that these votes would be subject to the qualified majority stipulated in Rule 54 (2).

Mr Sieglerschmidt spoke.

Before the first indent of the preamble, Mrs Bonino had tabled amendment No 169 seeking to insert a new indent.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 169 was rejected.

Parliament adopted the first and second indents of the preamble.

After the second indent of the preamble, Mrs Bonino had tabled amendment No 170 seeking to insert a new indent.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 170 was rejected.

Parliament adopted the third indent of the preamble.

Mr Blaney requested, on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, a roll-call vote on Rule 14 as amended by the preceding votes.

A roll-call vote was taken using the electronic voting system.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 252 (1),
- abstentions: 17,
- for: 179,
- against: 56.

Rule 14 in its amended form was not adopted as it failed to secure the votes of the majority of Members of Parliament, which at Parliament's current membership was 205 votes.

The existing text of Rule 14 was therefore retained.

The following raised points of order: the rapporteur, Mr de Goede, Mr Galland and Mr Patterson.

Mr Blaney requested, on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, roll-call votes on Rules 26 and 31A as amended and on the motion for a resolution as a whole, pursuant to Rule 35 (4).

A roll-call vote was taken on Rule 26 as amended using the electronic voting system.

Result of the vote:

- members voting: 262 (1),
- abstentions: 19,
- for: 181,
- against: 62.

Rule 26 in its amended form was not adopted as it failed to secure the votes of the majority of Members of Parliament, which at Parliament's current membership was 205 votes.

The existing text of Rule 26 was therefore retained.

The President announced that there was no reason to vote on Rule 31A as Rule 26 had not been amended.

She also announced that there was no longer any reason to vote on the motion for a resolution as it no longer contained any proposed amendments.

⁽¹⁾ See Annex.

The following gave explanations of vote: Mrs Vayssade, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Patterson, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr D'Angelosante, on behalf of the Communist and Allies Group, Mr Galland, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Mr Coppieters and Mr Sieglerschmidt.

Mr Nyborg, Chairman of the Committee on the Rules of Procedure and Petitions, and the rapporteur spoke.

Lord Harmar-Nicholls and Mr Blaney, on behalf of the Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, also gave explanations of vote.

Mr Ferri, Chairman of the Legal Affairs Committee, spoke.

Further explanations of vote were given by Mr Pannella, Mr Arndt, Mrs Dekker, Mr Møller, Mr Capanna and Mr Bonde.

Mr Enright spoke on the agenda for the next day's sitting.

12. Economic development of the Community in the first half of 1980 (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr von Bismarck (Doc. 1-288/80).—

Parliament adopted the preamble.

On paragraph 1, Mr Bonaccini had tabled amendment. No 1 seeking to delete this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 1 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 1 and then paragraphs 2 and 3.

On paragraph 4, Mr Scott-Hopkins, Lady Elles and Mr Hopper, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, had tabled amendment No 2 seeking to replace the text of this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 2 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 4 and then paragraphs 5 to 10.

On paragraph 11, Mr Scott-Hopkins, Lady Elles and Mr Hopper, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, had tabled amendment No 3 seeking to replace the text of this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 3 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 11 and then paragraphs 12 to 14.

On paragraph 15, Mr Scott-Hopkins, Lady Elles and Mr Hopper, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, had tabled amendment No 4 seeking to replace the text of this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 4 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraphs 16 and 17.

On paragraph 18, Mr Scott-Hopkins, Lady Elles and Mr Hopper, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, had tabled amendment No 5 (withdrawn).

Parliament adopted paragraphs 18 to 20.

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

on the economic development of the Community in the first half of 1980 and the implementation of the Council's Decision on convergence

The European Parliament,

- having regard to the communication from the Commission to the Council (COM(80) 100 final and COM(80) 101 final),
- having regard to the economic development of the Community in the first half of 1980,
- having regard to the following trends noted by the Commission in the Community as a whole, although to a differing degree in the various Member States:
 - (a) distinct acceleration of inflation,
 - (b) deceleration of growth,
 - (c) increasing unemployment,
 - (d) rising consumer prices,
 - (e) a further rise in energy prices because of continuing sharp increases in crude oil prices,
 - (f) insufficient investment growth following years of under-investment,
 - (g) a deteriorating competitive situation vis-à-vis third countries,
 - (h) a widening gap between the economies of Member States,
 - (i) public sector deficits remaining ominously high,
 - (j) a deterioration in the balance of trade not only as a result of oil prices,
 - (k) continuing coverage for the time being of the deficit on current account by running down currency reserves,
 - (l) a further increase in the balance of payments deficit,
 - (m) the Commission's assessment scarcely a confident one of the outlook for 1981, which is at present clouded by a number of imponderables,
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs (Doc. 1-288/80),
- 1. Notes that particularly where the economy is concerned, the Member States of the European Community have been and still are living beyond their means;
- 2. Maintains the basic points it made in its opinion on the Commission's report on the economic situation in 1979 and the outlook for 1980;
- 3. Stresses that failing greater monetary stability, neither the growth essential to full employment nor the conditions necessary for external economic equilibrium can be secured;
- 4. Regrets that, despite the Council Decision of 18 February 1974, neither the unfavourable developments within the Community nor the changes in world economic indicators, which for years have been going against the Community, have prompted the governments represented in the Council to create the necessary decision-making structures

or at least to grasp the opportunities offered by the Treaty for effective measures by majority decision;

- 5. Considers that the previously established coordination and consultation procedures in the area of economic policy are an inadequate response by the Community to the changing world economic situation; calls on the Commission to carry out the task of improving the coordination procedures as urged by Parliament in points 13 and 15 of its resolution of 17 November 1978 (1);
- 6. Finds specific support for this view in the fact that the Community has so far been unable to decide on a coordinated energy policy and on effective energy saving measures and to develop the necessary capital market strategy to recycle the OPEC surpluses created by higher oil prices;
- 7. Considers that the political, economic and social disparities threatening the Community can be reduced only by decision-making structures that will more effectively meet the Community's objectives; that the Council, by doing nothing to deal with what is the most urgent task of all, will be left with the full responsibility for the further crises which will inevitably hit the Community;
- 8. Calls for more intensive consultations between Council and Commission and between these two institutions and Parliament on economic policy matters; deplores that the Commission has not yet complied with points 16 and 19 of its resolution (2) calling for an improvement in the procedure for consulting the European Parliament;
- 9. Strongly criticizes the fact that the Council is apparently not even willing to take measures to secure the objectives laid out in the preambles (3) to its own decision on the attainment of a high degree of convergence of economic policies (4) and to its Directive on stability, growth and full employment in the Community (5);
- 10. Calls for fuller implementation of the directive on stability, growth and full employment and more effective cooperation between governments and the social partners;
- 11. Requests that the Commission submit a report stressing the drastic effect which index-linking has had on prices in some Member States;
- 12. Requests that the Commission submit to the Council a review of the political situation pointing out the consequences in the last 10 years of the dilatory way it has set about achieving virtually all, and not simply the economic, objectives laid out in the Treaties;
- 13. Requests that in conjunctural and structural policy the Commission make full use of the opportunities afforded by the Treaty for short and medium-term measures;

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 296, 11. 12. 1978, p. 64.

⁽²⁾ OJ No C 296, 11. 12. 1978, p. 65.

⁽³⁾ These same considerations led to the Council's Decision on economic and monetary union of 22 March 1971.

⁽⁴⁾ OJ No L 63, 5. 3. 1974, p. 16.

⁽⁵⁾ OJ No L 63, 5. 3. 1974, p. 19.

- 14. Calls on the Commission to state specifically in its annual report on the 1980 economic situation and the outlook for 1981 what steps it can take to exert a positive influence on short-term economic developments;
- 15. Requests the Commission and Council to seek the views of, and involve more closely, the European Parliament when taking decisions under Article 103 of the EEC Treaty in relation to conjunctural policies;
- 16. Calls for a new, comprehensive, medium-term economic programme which takes into account the radically altered situation since 1976;
- 17. Warns against considering the European Monetary System as a secure achievement and stresses the point made in the Ruffolo report, that unless a central, largely autonomous authority (Monetary Fund) is soon set up, the European Monetary System cannot fulfil its purpose in the long run;
- 18. Calls on the Commission to realize that, in addition to observing and commenting on short and medium-term economic developments, its essential task is to put forward proposals that are not simply suited to what is politically expedient at the time, but properly designed to create an integrated market for the free movement of capital, goods and services under equal conditions of competition, thus creating one of the main conditions for completely free movement of persons;
- 19. Considers that the above requirements are borne out by the Commission's diagnosis of the 1980 economic situation approved by Parliament;
- 20. Instructs its President to forward this resolution to the Council and Commission and to the governments and parliaments of the Member States.

13. Urgent debate

The President announced that she had received the following motions for resolutions, with request for urgent debate pursuant to Rule 14:

- motion for a resolution by Mr Capanna, Mr Pisani, Mrs Cassanmagnago Cerretti, Mr D'Angelosante, Mr Bettiza, Mrs Lizin, Mr Rumor, Mrs Spaak, Mr Purvis, Mr van Minnen, Mr Gendebien, Mr Cecovini, Mr Muntingh, Mr Coppieters, Mrs Castellina, Mrs Macciocchi, Mr Pannella, Mrs Dekker, Mr de Goede, Mr Didò, Mr Bonaccini, Mr Macario, Mr Ferrero, Mr Veronesi, Mr Ippolito, Mrs Squarcialupi, Mrs Barbarella, Mr Ferri, Mr Puletti, Mr Blaney, Mr Filippi, Mr Ghergo and Mr Lima, on the Council of Ministers' failure to adopt the 'Seveso' Directive (Doc. 1-313/80)
- motion for a resolution by Ms Clwyd, Mr Caborn, Mrs Salisch, Mrs Buchan, Mr Megahy, Mr Seal, Mr Lomas, Mr Boyes, Mr Enright, Mr Adam, Mr

Griffiths, Mr Gabert, Mrs Weber, Mr Muntingh, Mrs Krouwel-Vlam, Mrs Seibel-Emmerling, Mr Wettig, Mrs Viehoff, Mrs Gredal, Mr Rogers and Mr Jaquet, on behalf of the Socialist Group, on the dangers of poor hygiene standards in air-conditioning systems (Doc. 1-315/80).

She announced that the reasons supporting these requests for urgency were contained in the documents themselves.

Pursuant to Rule 14 (1), second subparagraph, the vote on these requests for urgent debate would be held at the beginning of the next day's sitting.

14. Agenda for next sitting

The President announced the following agenda for the sitting on Thursday, 10 July 1980:

10 a.m. to 1 p.m., 3 p.m. to 8 p.m. and 9 p.m. to 12 midnight:

- decision on urgency;
- Janssen van Raay report on development of an air traffic control system;
- Commission statement on the preliminary draft budget of the Communities for 1981;
- Prout report on consumer credit;
- joint debate on the Peters report, the Hoff report and an oral question to the Commission on the steel industry;
- joint debate on a von Wogau report on a Community certification procedure for industrial products originating in third countries, a von Wogau report on Directives concerning motor vehicles, certain construction plant, textile names,

- electrical equipment and biodegradability, and a de Ferranti report on powered industrial trucks;
- Cottrell report on the integration of railway undertakings;
- Buttafuoco report on transport infrastructure;
- Aigner report on the implementation of the 1979 budget;
- interim report by Mr Kellett-Bowman on the budgetary control of the Data-Processing Centre;
- Marshall report on the refugees in the Horn of Africa.

3 p.m.:

— voting time.

(The sitting was closed at 5.50 p.m.)

H.-J. OPITZ
Secretary General

Hans KATZER Vice-President

ANNEX

Results of roll-call votes

- (A) = Absent or did not vote
- (+) = Yes
- $(-1)_{i} = No$
- (O) Abstention

Doc. 1-294/80

Abens (A), Adam (+), Adonnino (-), Aerssen van (-), Agnelli (A), Aigner (-), Albers (A), Alemann von (-), Almirante (-), Ansart (A), Ansquer (-), Antoniozzi (A), Arfè (A), Arndt (A), Baduel Glorioso (A), Baillot (O), Balfe (+), Balfour (A), Bangemann (-), Barbagli (-), Barbarella (A), Barbi (-), Battersby (-), Baudis (-), Beazley (-), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (-), Bethell (-), Bettiza (A), Beumer (-), Bismarck von (-), Blaney (-), Blumenfeld (A), Bocklet (-), Bøgh (A), Bonaccini (A), Bonde (A), Bonino (A), Boot (-), Boserup (+), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (-), Brookes (A), Buchan(+), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (-), Caborn (+), Caillavet (A), Calvez (-), Capanna (+), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (A), Cariglia (A), Carossino (A), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (-), Castellina (+), Castle (+), Catherwood (-), Cecovini (-), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (O), Charzat (A), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (A), Clinton (-), Clwyd (+), Cohen (A), Colla (A), Colleselli (-), Collins (+), Collomb (A), Combe (A), Coppieters (+), Costanzo (-), Cottrell (-), Courcy Ling de (-), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (-), Curry (-), D'Angelosante (A), Dalsass (-), Dalziel (-), Damette (A), Damseaux (A), Dankert (O), Davern (-), De Clercq (A), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (A), De March (A), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (-), Del Duca (-), Delatte (-), Deleau (-), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (-), Delors (-), Denis (A), Deschamps (-), Desmond (A), Diana (-), Didò (A), Dienesch (A), Diligent (A), Donnez (-), Doublet (-), Douro (A), Elles (-), Enright (A), Estgen (A), Estier (A), Ewing (A), Fanti (A), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (A), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (-), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (-), Ferrero (A), Ferri (A), Fich (O), Filippi (-), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (A), Forster (-), Forth (-), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (-), Frischmann (A), Früh (A), Fuchs (-), Fuillet (A), Gabert (A), Gaiotti de Biase (-), Gallagher (-), Galland (-), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (A), Gautier (A), Gendebien (O), Geurtsen (-), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (-), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (A), Goede de (-), Gonella (-), Göppel (A), Gouthier (A), Gredal (A), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (+), Groes (A), Gun van der (-), Haagerup (-), Habsburg (-), Hahn (-), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (A), Hänsch (A), Harmar-Nicholls (-), Harris (-), Hassel von (-), Helms (A), Henckens (-), Herklotz (A), Herman (-), Heuvel van den (A), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (-), Hord (-), Howell (-), Hume (A), Hutton (-), Ippolito (A), Irmer (-), Israel (-), Jackson C. (-), Jackson R. (A), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (-), Jaquet (A), Johnson (-), Jonker (-), Josselin (A), Jürgens (A), Katzer (-), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (-), Kellett-Bowman El. (-), Key (+), Kirk (-), Klepsch (-), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (-), Krouwel-Vlam (A), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (-), Lange (A), Langes (-), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (-), Lega (-), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (A), Lenz (-), Leonardi (A), Lezzi (A), Ligios (A), Lima (A), Linde (A), Linkohr (A), Lizin (A), Lomas (+), Loo (A), Louwes (-), Lücker (-), Luster (-), Lynge (A), Macario (A), Macciocchi (+), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (-), Maij-Weggen (-), Majonica (-), Malangré (A), Malène de la (-), Marchais (A), Marshall (-), Martin M. (O), Martin S. (A), Martinet (A), McCartin (-), Megahy (+), Mertens (-), Michel (A), Mihr (A), Minnen van (A), Modiano (A), Møller (-), Moorhouse (-), Moreau J. (A), Moreau L. (-), Moreland (-), Motchane (A), Müller-Hermann (-), Muntingh (A), Narducci (-), Newton Dunn (-), Nielsen J. (-),-Nielsen T. (-), Nord (-), Nordlohne (-), Normanton (-), Notenboom (-), Nyborg (-), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (-), O'Hagan (-), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (-), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (+), Papapietro (A), Patterson (-), Pearce (-), Pedini (A), Pelikan (A), Penders (-), Percheron (A), Peters (A), Petronio (-), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (A), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (-), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (-), Poirier (A), Poncelet (-), Poniatowski (A), Pöttering (-), Prag (-), Pranchère (O), Price (-), Prout (-), Provan (-), Pruvot (-), Puletti (A), Purvis (-), Quin (+), Rabbethge (-), Radoux (A), Remilly (-), Rey (-), Rhys Williams (-), Rinsche (-), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (-), Rogers (+), Romualdi (-), Rossi (-), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (-), Sablé (A), Salisch (A), Sälzer (-), Sarre (A), Sassano (-),

Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (-), Schall (A), Schieler (A), Schinzel (A), Schleicher (-), Schmid (A), Schmitt (A), Schnitter (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (-), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (-), Scrivener (-), Seal (+), Seefeld (A), Seeler (A), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (A), Seitlinger (-), Seligman (-), Sherlock (-), Sieglerschmidt (A), Simmonds (-), Simonnet (A), Simpson (-), Skovmand (A), Spaak (A), Spencer (O), Spicer (-), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (A), Stewart-Clark (-), Sutra (A), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (-), Tindemans (A), Tolman (-), Travaglini (-), Tuckman (-), Turner (-), Tyrrell (-), Van Miert (A), Vandewiele (A), Vanneck (-), Vayssade (A), Veil (A), Vergeer (-), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (-), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (A), Verroken (-), Vetter (A), Viehoff (A), Visentini (A), Vitale (A), Vring von der (A), Wagner (A), Walter (A), Walz (-), Warner (-), Wawrzik (-), Weber (A), Weiss (A), Welsh (-), Wettig (+), Wieczorek-Zeul (+), Wogau von (-), Woltjer (O), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A),

Amendment No 36

Abens (-), Adam (-), Adonnino (-), Aerssen van (-), Agnelli (-), Aigner (-), Alber (A), Albers (A), Alemann von (-), Almirante (+), Ansart (A), Ansquer (A), Antoniozzi (-), Arfè (A), Arndt (-), Baduel Glorioso (A), Baillot (+), Balfe (+), Balfour (-), Barbagli (-), Barbarella (+), Barbi (-), Battersby (-), Baudis (-), Beazley (-), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (-), Bethell (-), Bettiza (-), Beumer (-), Bismarck von (-), Blaney (+), Blumenfeld (-), Bocklet (-), Bøgh (+), Bonaccini (+), Bonde (+), Bonino (A), Boot (-), Boserup (+), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (-), Brookes (A), Buchan (+), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (A), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (-), Capanna (+), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (+), Cariglia (A), Carossino (A), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (-), Castellina (+), Castel (O), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (-), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (+), Charzat (A), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (+), Clinton (-), Clwyd (+), Cohen (-), Colla (+), Colleselli (-), Collins (A), Collomb (A), Combe (A), Coppieters (+), Costanzo (-), Cottrell (-), Courcy Ling de (-), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (=), Curry (-), D'Angelosante (+), Dalsass (-), Dalziel (-), Damette (A), Damseaux (-), Dankert (A), Davern (A), De Clercq (A), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (-), De March (+), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (+), Del Duca (-), Delatte (A), Deleau (A), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (A), Delors (-), Denis (+), Deschamps (-), Desmond (A), Diana (-), Didò (-), Dienesch (A), Diligent (-), Donnez (A), Doublet (A), Douro (-), Elles (-), Enright (-), Estgen (-), Estier (A), Ewing (-), Fanti (A), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (A), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (-), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (-), Ferrero (A), Ferri (+), Fich (+), Filippi (-), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (-), Forster (-), Forth (-), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (-), Frischmann (A), Früh (-), Fuchs (-), Fuillet (-), Gabert (-), Gaiotti de Biase (-), Gallagher (A), Galland (-), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (-), Gautier (A), Gendebien (+), Geurtsen (-), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (-), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (=), Goede de (+), Gonella (-), Goppel (A), Gouthier (+), Gredal (-), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (-), Haagerup (-), Habsburg (-), Hahn (-), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (+), Hänsch (-), Harmar-Nicholls (O), Harris (-), Hassel von (-), Helms (-), Henckens (-), Herklotz (-), Herman (-), Heuvel van den (-), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (-), Hord (-), Howell (-), Hume (A), Hutton (-), Ippolito (A), Irmer (-), Israel (A), Jackson C. (-), Jackson R. (-), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (-), Jaquet (-), Johnson (-), Jonker (-), Josselin (A), Jürgens (-), Katzer (-), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (-), Kellett-Bowman El. (-), Key (A), Kirk (-), Klepsch (-), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (-), Krouwel-Vlam (-), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (-), Lange (A), Langes (-), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (-), Lega (-), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (-), Lenz (-), Leonardi (+), Lezzi (A), Ligios (-), Lima (A), Linde (-), Linkohr (-), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (A), Louwes (-), Lücker (-), Luster (-), Lynge (A), Macario (-), Macciocchi (A), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (-), Maij-Weggen (-), Majonica (-), Malangré (A), Malène de la (A), Marchais (A), Marshall (-), Martin M. (+), Martin S. (-), Martinet (A), McCartin (-), Megahy (+), Mertens (-), Michel (-), Mihr (-), Minnen van (O), Modiano (-), Møller (-), Moorhouse (-), Moreau J. (-), Moreau L. (-), Moreland (-), Motchane (A), Müller-Hermann (-), Muntingh (A), Narducci (A), Newton Dunn (-), Nicolson (-), Nielsen J. (-), Nielsen T. (-), Nord (-), Nordlohne (-), Normanton (-), Notenboom (-), Nyborg (-), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (A), O'Hagan (-), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (-), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (A), Papapietro (A), Patterson (-), Pearce (-), Pedini (-), Pelikan (-), Penders (-), Percheron (A), Peters (-), Petronio (A), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (-), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (-), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (-), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (A), Pöttering (-), Prag (-), Pranchère (A), Price (-), Provan (-), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (-), Quin (A), Rabbethge (-), Radoux (-), Remilly (A), Rey (-), Rhys Williams (-), Rinsche (-), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (-), Rogers (A), Romualdi (+), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (-),

Sablé (A), Salisch (-), Sälzer (-), Sarre (A), Sassano (-), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (-), Schall (-), Schieler (-), Schinzel (A), Schleicher (-), Schmid (A), Schmitt (A), Schnitter (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (-), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (-), Scrivener (-), Seal (A), Seefeld (-), Seeler (-), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (O), Seitlinger (-), Seligman (-), Sherlock (-), Sieglerschmidt (O), Simmonds (-), Simonnet (-), Simpson (-), Skovmand (+), Spaak (+), Spencer (-), Spicer (-), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (+), Stewart-Clark (-), Sutra (A), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (-), Tindemans (-), Tolman (-), Travaglini (-), Tuckman (-), Turner (-), Tyrrell (-), Van Miert (-), Vandewiele (-), Vanneck (-), Vayssade (-), Veil (A), Vergeer (-), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (-), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (+), Verroken (-), Vetter (-), Vichoff (-), Visentini (A), Vitale (+), Vring von der (-), Wagner (A), Walter (-), Walz (-), Warner (-), Wawrzik (-), Weber (-), Weiss (A), Welsh (-), Wettig (-), Wieczorek-Zeul (-), Wogau von (-), Woltjer (-), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A),

Amendment No 19 (a) and (b)

Abens (+), Adam (A), Adonnino (+), Aerssen van (+), Agnelli (+), Aigner (+), Albers (+), Albers (A), Alemann von (+), Almirante (+), Ansart (A), Ansquer (A), Antoniozzi (+), Arfè (A), Arndt (+), Baduel Glorioso (A), Baillot (+), Balfe (+), Balfour (+), Bangemann (+), Barbagli (+), Barbarella (+), Barbi (+), Battersby (+), Baudis (+), Beazley (+), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (+), Bethell (+), Bettiza (+), Beumer (+), Bismarck von (+), Blaney (-), Blumenfeld (+), Bocklet (+), Bøgh (A), Bonaccini (+), Bonde (-), Bonino (A), Boot (+), Boserup (+), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (+), Brookes (A), Buchan (A), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (+), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (+), Capanna (-), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romaginoli (+), Cariglia (A), Carossino (A), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (+), Castellina (-), Castle (+), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (+), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (+), Charzat (+), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (+), Clinton (+), Clwyd (+), Cohen (+), Colla (+), Colleselli (+), Collins (A), Collomb (A), Combe (A), Coppieters (+), Costanzo (+), Cottrell (+), Courcy Ling de (+), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (+), Curry (+), D'Angelosante (+), Dalsass (+), Dalziel (+), Damette (A), Damseaux (+), Dankert (A), Davern (A), De Clercq (+), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (+), De March (+), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (-), Del Duca (+), Delatte (A), Deleau (A), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (A), Delors (+), Denis (+), Deschamps (+), Desmond (A), Diana (+), Didò (+), Dienesch (A), Diligent (+), Donnez (A), Doublet (A), Douro (+), Elles (+), Enright (+), Estgen (+), Estier (A), Ewing (+), Fanti (A), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (+), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (+), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (+), Ferrero (A), Ferri (+), Fich (+), Filippi (+), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (+), Forster (+), Forth (+), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (+), Frischmann (A), Früh (+), Fuchs (+), Fuillet (+), Gabert (+), Gaiotti de Biase (+), Gallagher (A), Galland (+), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (+), Gautier (A), Gendebien (+), Geurtsen (+), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (+), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (+), Goede de (-), Gonella (+), Goppel (A), Gouthier (+), Gredal (+), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (A), Haagerup (+), Habsburg (+), Hahn (+), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (-), Hänsch (+), Harmar-Nicholls (+), Harris (+), Hassel von (+), Helms (+), Henckens (+), Herklotz (A), Herman (+), Heuvel van den (+), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (+), Hord (+), Howell (+), Hume (A), Hutton (+), Ippolito (A), Irmer (+), Israel (A), Jackson C. (+), Jackson R. (+), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (+), Jaquet (+), Johnson (+), Jonker (+), Josselin (+), Jürgens (+), Katzer (+), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (+), Kellett-Bowman El. (+), Key (+), Kirk (+), Klepsch (+), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (+), Krouwel-Vlam (+), Kühn (A), Läbbé (A), Lalor (+), Lange (A), Langes (+), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (A), Lega (A), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (+), Lenz (+), Leonardi (+), Lezzi (A), Ligios (+), Lima (A), Linde (+), Linkohr (A), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (+), Louwes (+), Lücker (+), Luster (+), Lynge (A), Macario (+), Macciocchi (A), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (+), Maij-Weggen (+), Majonica (+), Malangré (A), Malène de la (A), Marchais (A), Marshall (+), Martin M. (+), Martin S. (+), Martinet (A), McCartin (+), Megahy (O), Mertens (+), Michel (+), Mihr (+), Minnen van (+), Modiano (+), Møller (+), Moorhouse (+), Moreau J. (+), Moreau L. (+), Moreland (+), Motchane (A), Müller-Hermann (+), Muntingh (+), Narducci (A), Newton Dunn (+), Nielsen J. (+), Nielsen T. (+), Nord (+), Nordlohne (+), Normanton (+), Notenboom (+), Nyborg (+), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (+), O'Hagan (+), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (+), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (-), Papapietro (A), Patterson (+), Pearce (+), Pedini (A), Pelikan (A), Penders (+), Percheron (A), Peters (-), Petronio (+), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (+), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (+), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (+), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (A), Pöttering (+), Prag (+), Pranchère (A), Price (+), Prout (+), Provan (+), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (+), Quin (A), Rabbethge (+), Radoux (+), Remilly (A), Rey (+), Rhys Williams (+), Rinsche (+), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (+), Rogers (A), Romualdi (+), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (+), Sablé (A), Salisch (+), Sälzer (+), Sarre (-),

Sassano (+), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (+), Schall (+), Schieler (-), Schinzel (+), Schleicher (+), Schmid (A), Schmitt (A), Schnittker (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (+), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (+), Scrivener (+), Seal (A), Seefeld (+), Seeler (+), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (+), Seitlinger (+), Seligman (+), Sherlock (+), Sieglerschmidt (+), Simmonds (+), Simonnet (+), Simpson (+), Skovmand (-), Spaak (+), Spencer (+), Spicer (A), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (+), Stewart-Clark (+), Sutra (A), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (+), Tindemans (+), Tolman (+), Travaglini (+), Tuckman (+), Turner (+), Tyrrell (+), Van Miert (-), Vandewiele (+), Vanneck (+), Vayssade (A), Veil (A), Vergeer (+), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (+), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (+), Verroken (+), Vetter (A), Viehoff (+), Visentini (A), Vitale (+), Vring von der (+), Wagner (A), Walter (+), Walz (+), Warner (+), Wawrzik (+), Weber (+), Weiss (A), Welsh (+), Wettig (+), Wieczorek-Zeul (+), Wogau von (+), Woltjer (A), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A),

Amendment No 19 (c)

Abens (+), Adam (-), Adonnino (+), Aerssen van (+), Agnelli (+), Aigner (+), Albers (A), Alemann von (+), Almirante (+), Ansart (A), Ansquer (A), Antoniozzi (+), Arfè (A), Arndt (+), Baduel Glorioso (A), Baillot (+), Balfe (+), Balfour (+), Bangemann (+), Barbagli (+), Barbarella (+), Barbi (+), Battersby (+), Baudis (+), Beazley (+), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (+), Bethell (+), Bettiza (+), Beumer (+), Bismarck von (+), Blaney (+), Blumenfeld (+), Bocklet (+), Bøgh (O), Bonaccini (+), Bonde (O), Bonino (A), Boot (+), Boserup (+), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (+), Brookes (A), Buchan (A), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (+), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (+), Capanna (+), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (+), Cariglia (A), Carossino (A), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (+), Castellina (+), Castle (+), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (+), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (+), Charzat (+), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (+), Clinton (+), Clwyd (+), Cohen (+), Colla (+), Colleselli (+), Collins (A), Collomb (A), Combe (A), Coppieters (+), Costanzo (+), Cottrell (+), Courcy Ling de (+), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (A), Curry (+), D'Angelosante (+), Dalsass (+), Dalziel (+), Damette (A), Damseaux (+), Dankert (A), Davern (A), De Clercq (+), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (+), De March (+), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (+), Del Duca (A), Delatte (A), Deleau (A), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (A), Delors (+), Denis (+), Deschamps (+), Desmond (A), Diana (+), Didò (+), Dienesch (A), Diligent (+), Donnez (A), Doublet (A), Douro (+), Elles (+), Enright (+), Estgen (+), Estier (A), Ewing (-), Fanti (A), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (+), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (+), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (+), Ferrero (A), Ferri (+), Fich (+), Filippi (+), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (+), Forster (+), Forth (A), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (+), Frischmann (A), Früh (+), Fuchs (+), Fuillet (+), Gabert (+), Gaiotti de Biase (+), Gallagher (A), Galland (+), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (A), Gautier (A), Gendebien (+), Geurtsen (+), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (+), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (+), Goede de (+), Gonella (+), Goppel (A), Gouthier (+), Gredal (+), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (+), Haagerup (+), Habsburg (+), Hahn (+), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (O), Hänsch (+), Harmar-Nicholls (+), Harris (+), Hassel von (+), Helms (+), Henckens (+), Herklotz (A), Herman (+), Heuvel van den (+), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (+), Hord (+), Howell (+), Hume (A), Hutton (+), Ippolito (A), Irmer (+), Israel (A), Jackson C. (+), Jackson R. (+), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (+), Jaquet (+), Johnson (+), Jonker (+), Josselin (+), Jürgens (+), Katzer (+), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (+), Kellett-Bowman El. (+), Key (+), Kirk (+), Klepsch (+), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (+), Krouwel-Vlam (+), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (-), Lange (A), Langes (+), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (A), Lega (+), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (+), Lenz (+), Leonardi (+), Lezzi (A), Ligios (+), Lima (A), Linde (+), Linkohr (A), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (+), Louwes (+), Lücker (+), Luster (+), Lynge (A), Macario (+), Macciocchi (+), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (+), Maij-Weggen (+), Majonica (-), Malangré (A), Malène de la (A), Marchais (A), Marshall (+), Martin M. (+), Martin S. (+), Martinet (A), McCartin (+), Megahy (+), Mertens (-), Michel (+), Mihr (+), Minnen van (+), Modiano (+), Møller (+), Moorhouse (+), Moreau J. (+), Moreau L. (+), Moreland (+), Motchane (A), Müller-Hermann (A), Muntingh (+), Narducci (+), Newton Dunn (+), Nicolson (+), Nielsen J. (+), Nielsen T. (+), Nord (+), Nordlohne (+), Normanton (+), Notenboom (+), Nyborg (-), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (+), O'Hagan (+), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (+), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (+), Papapietro (A), Patterson (+), Pearce (+), Pedini (A), Pelikan (A), Penders (+), Percheron (A), Peters (+), Petronio (A), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (+), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (+), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (+), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (+), Pöttering (+), Prag (+), Pranchère (A), Price (+), Prout (+), Provan (+), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (+), Quin (A), Rabbethge (+), Radoux (+), Remilly (A), Rey (+), Rhys Williams (+), Rinsche (+), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (+), Rogers (A), Romualdi (+), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (+), Sablé (A), Salisch (+), Sälzer (+), Sarre (+),

Sassano (+), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (+), Schall (+), Schieler (+), Schinzel (+), Schleicher (A), Schmid (A), Schmitt (A), Schmitter (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (+), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (+), Scrivener (+), Seal (A), Seefeld (+), Seeler (+), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (+), Seitlinger (+), Seligman (+), Sherlock (+), Sieglerschmidt (+), Simmonds (+), Simonnet (+), Simpson (+), Skovmand (O), Spaak (+), Spencer (+), Spicer (+), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (+), Stewart-Clark (+), Sutra (A), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (+), Tindemans (+), Tolman (+), Travaglini (+), Tuckman (+), Turner (+), Tyrrell (+), Van Miert (+), Vandewiele (+), Vanneck (+), Vayssade (+), Veil (A), Vergeer (+), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (+), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (+), Verroken (+), Vetter (-), Viehoff (+), Visentini (A), Vitale (+), Vring von der (+), Wagner (A), Walter (+), Walz (+), Warner (+), Wawrzik (+), Weber (+), Weiss (A), Welsh (+), Wettig (+), Wieczorek-Zeul (+), Wogau von (+), Woltjer (A), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A),

Amendment No 19 (d)

Abens (+), Adam (A), Adonnino (+), Aerssen van (+), Agnelli (+), Aigner (+), Alber (+), Albers (A), Alemann von (+), Almirante (+), Ansart (A), Ansquer (A), Antoniozzi (A), Arfe (A), Arndt (+), Baduel Glorioso (+), Baillot (+), Balfe (-), Balfour (+), Bangemann (+), Barbagli (+), Barbarella (+), Barbi (+), Battersby (+), Baudis (+), Beazley (+), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (+), Bethell (+), Bettiza (+), Beumer (+), Bismarck von (+), Blaney (-), Blumenfeld (+), Bocklet (+), Bøgh (A), Bonaccini (+), Bonde (-), Bonino (A), Boot (+), Boserup (-), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (+), Brookes (A), Buchan (A), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (A), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (+), Capanna (-), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (+), Cariglia (A), Carossino (A), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (+), Castellina (-), Castle (-), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (+), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (+), Charzat (A), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (+), Clinton (+), Clwyd (-), Cohen (A), Colla (O), Colleselli (+), Collins (A), Collomb (A), Combe (A), Coppieters (A), Costanzo (+), Cottrell (+), Courcy Ling de (+), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (A), Curry (+), D'Angelosante (+), Dalsass (+), Dalziel (+), Damette (A), Damseaux (+), Dankert (A), Davern (A), De Clercq (+), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (+), De March (+), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (+), Del Duca (+), Delatte (A), Deleau (A), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (A), Delors (A), Denis (+), Deschamps (+), Desmond (A), Diana (+), Didò (+), Dienesch (A), Diligent (+), Donnez (A), Doublet (A), Douro (+), Elles (+), Enright (+), Estgen (+), Estier (A), Ewing (+), Fanti (A), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (A), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (+), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (+), Ferrero (A), Ferri (+), Fich (-), Filippi (+), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (+), Forster (+), Forth (+), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (+), Frischmann (A), Früh (+), Fuchs (+), Fuillet (+), Gabert (+), Gaiotti de Biase (+), Gallagher (A), Galland (+), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (+), Gautier (A), Gendebien (-), Geurtsen (+), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (+), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (+), Goede de (+), Gonella (+), Goppel (A), Gouthier (+), Gredal (+), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (+), Haagerup (+), Habsburg (+), Hahn (+), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (-), Hänsch (+), Harmar-Nicholls (+), Harris (+), Hassel von (+), Helms (+), Henckens (+), Herklotz (A), Herman (+), Heuvel van den (+), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (+), Hord (+), Howell (+), Hume (A), Hutton (+), Ippolito (A), Irmer (+), Israel (A), Jackson C. (+), Jackson R. (+), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (+), Jaquet (+), Johnson (+), Jonker (A), Josselin (+), Jürgens (+), Katzer (+), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (+), Key (+), Kirk (+), Klepsch (+), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (+), Kellett-Bowman El. (+), Krouwel-Vlam (+), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (+), Lange (A), Langes (+), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (A), Lega (+), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (+), Lenz (+), Leonardi (+), Lezzi (A), Ligios (+), Lima (A), Linde (+), Linkohr (A), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (+), Louwes (+), Lücker (+), Luster (+), Lynge (A), Macario (+), Macciocchi (-), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (+), Maij-Weggen (+), Majonica (+), Malangré (A), Malène de la (A), Marchais (A), Marshall (+), Martin M. (+), Martin S. (+), Martinet (A), McCartin (+), Megahy (A), Mertens (+), Michel (+), Mihr (+), Minnen van (+), Modiano (+), Møller (+), Moorhouse (+), Moreau J. (+), Moreau L. (+), Moreland (+), Motchane (A), Müller-Hermann (+), Muntingh (+), Narducci (+), Newton Dunn (+), Nicolson (+), Nielsen J. (+), Nielsen T. (+), Nord (+), Nordlohne (+), Normanton (+), Notenboom (+), Nyborg (+), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (+), O'Hagan (+), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (+), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (-), Papapietro (A), Patterson (+), Pearce (+), Pedini (+), Pelikan (A), Penders (+), Percheron (A), Peters (+), Petronio (A), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (+), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (+), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (+), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (+), Pöttering (+), Prag (+), Pranchère (A), Price (+), Prout (+), Provan (+), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (+), Quin (A), Rabbethge (+), Radoux (A), Remilly (A), Rey (+), Rhys Williams (+), Rinsche (+), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (+), Rogers (A), Romualdi (+), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (+), Sablé (A), Salisch (+), Sälzer (+), Sarre (+), Sassano (+), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (A), Schall (+), Schieler (+), Schinzel (+), Schleicher (+), Schmid (A),

Schmitt (A), Schnitker (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (+), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (+), Scrivener (A), Seal (A), Seefeld (+), Seeler (+), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (-), Seitlinger (+), Seligman (+), Sherlock (+), Sieglerschmidt (O), Simmonds (+), Simonnet (+), Simpson (+), Skovmand (-), Spaak (+), Spencer (+), Spicer (+), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (+), Stewart-Clark (+), Sutra (A), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (+), Tindemans (+), Tolman (+), Travaglini (+), Tuckman (+), Turner (+), Tyrrell (+), Van Miert (+), Vandewiele (+), Vanneck (+), Vayssade (A), Veil (A), Vergeer (+), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (+), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (+), Verroken (+), Vetter (A), Viehoff (+), Visentini (A), Vitale (+), Vring von der (+), Wagner (A), Walter (+), Walz (+), Warner (+), Wawrzik (+), Weber (+), Weiss (A), Welsh (+), Wettig (+), Wieczorek-Zeul (+), Wogau von (+), Woltjer (A), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A),

Amendment No 19 (e)

Abens (-), Adam (-), Adonnino (+), Aerssen van (+), Agnelli (+), Aigner (+), Albers (A), Alemann von (+), Almirante (-), Ansart (A), Ansquer (A), Antoniozzi (A), Arfè (A), Arndt (-), Baduel Glorioso (-), Baillot (-), Balfe (-), Balfour (+), Bangemann (+), Barbagli (-), Barbarella (-), Barbi (+), Battersby (+), Baudis (+), Beazley (+), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (+), Bethell (+), Bettiza (+), Beumer (+), Bismarck von (+), Blaney (-), Blumenfeld (+), Bocklet (+), Bøgh (A), Bonaccini (-), Bonde (-), Bonino (A), Boot (+), Boserup (-), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (+), Brookes (A), Buchan (A), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (A), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (+), Capanna (-), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (-), Cariglia (A), Carossino (A), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (+), Castellina (A), Castle (-), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (+), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (-), Charzat (-), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (-), Clinton (+), Clwyd (-), Cohen (A), Colla (-), Colleselli (A), Collins (A), Collomb (A), Combe (A), Coppieters (A), Costanzo (+), Cottrell (+), Courcy Ling de (+), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (A), Curry (+), D'Angelosante (-), Dalsass (+), Dalziel (+), Damette (A), Damseaux (+), Dankert (A), Davern (A), De Clercq (+), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (+), De March (-), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (-), Del Duca (+), Delatte (A), Deleau (A), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (A), Delors (A), Denis (-), Deschamps (+), Desmond (A), Diana (+), Didò (-), Dienesch (A), Diligent (+), Donnez (A), Doublet (A), Douro (A), Elles (+), Enright (-), Estgen (+), Estier (A), Ewing (+), Fanti (-), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (-), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (+), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (+), Ferrero (A), Ferri (-), Fich (+), Filippi (+), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (+), Forster (+), Forth (+), Friedrich G. (A), Friedrich I. (+), Frischmann (A), Früh (+), Fuchs (+), Fuillet (-), Gabert (-), Gaiotti de Biase (A), Gallagher (A), Galland (+), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (-), Gautier (A), Gendebien (-), Geurtsen (+), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (+), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (-), Goede de (-), Gonella (+), Goppel (A), Gouthier (-), Gredal (-), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (+), Haagerup (+), Habsburg (+), Hahn (+), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (-), Hänsch (+), Harmar-Nicholls (+), Harris (+), Hassel von (+), Helms (+), Henckens (+), Herklotz (A), Herman (+), Heuvel van den (-), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (+), Hord (+), Howell (+), Hume (A), Hutton (+), Ippolito (A), Irmer (+), Israel (A), Jackson C. (+), Jackson R. (+), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (+), Jaquet (-), Johnson (+), Jonker (A), Josselin (-), Jürgens (+), Katzer (+), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (+), Kellett-Bowman El. (+), Key (-), Kirk (+), Klepsch (+), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (+), Krouwel-Vlam (-), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (+), Lange (A), Langes (+), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (A), Lega (+), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (+), Lenz (+), Leonardi (-), Lezzi (A), Ligios (+), Lima (A), Linde (+), Linkohr (A), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (-), Louwes (+), Lücker (A), Luster (+), Lynge (A), Macario (+), Macciocchi (-), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (+), Maij-Weggen (+), Majonica (+), Malangré (A), Malène de la (A), Marchais (A), Marshall (A), Martin M. (-), Martin S. (+), Martinet (A), McCartin (+), Megahy (-), Mertens (+), Michel (+), Mihr (-), Minnen van (-), Modiano (A), Møller (+), Moorhouse (+), Moreau J. (-), Moreau L. (+), Moreland (+), Motchane (A), Müller-Hermann (A), Muntingh (-), Narducci (+), Newton Dunn (+), Nicolson (+), Nielsen J. (+), Nielsen T. (+), Nord (+), Nordlohne (+), Normanton (+), Notenboom (+), Nyborg (+), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (+), O'Hagan (+), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (+), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (-), Papapietro (A), Patterson (+), Pearce (+), Pedini (+), Pelikan (A), Penders (+), Percheron (A), Peters (+), Petronio (A), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (+), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (+), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (+), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (+), Pöttering (+), Prag (+), Pranchère (A), Price (+), Prout (+), Provan (+), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (+), Quin (A), Rabbethge (+), Radoux (A), Remilly (A), Rey (+), Rhys Williams (+), Rinsche (+), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (+), Rogers (A), Romualdi (-), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (+), Sablé (A), Salisch (-), Salzer (+), Sarre (-), Sassano (O), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (A), Schall (+), Schieler (-), Schinzel (A), Schleicher (+), Schmid (+),

Schmitt (A), Schnitker (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (+), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (+), Scrivener (+), Seal (A), Seefeld (-), Seller (-), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (-), Seitlinger (+), Seligman (+), Sherlock (+), Sieglerschmidt (-), Simmonds (+), Simonnet (O), Simpson (+), Skovmand (A), Spaak (-), Spencer (+), Spicer (A), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (-), Stewart-Clark (+), Sutra (A), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (+), Tindemans (+), Tolman (+), Travaglini (+), Tuckman (+), Turner (+), Tyrrel (+), Van Miert (-), Vandewiele (+), Vanneck (+), Vayssade (-), Veil (A), Vergeer (+), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (+), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (-), Verroken (+), Vetter (A), Viehoff (+), Visentini (A), Vitale (-), Vring von der (+), Wagner (A), Walter (-), Walz (+), Warner (+), Wawrzik (+), Weber (-), Weiss (A), Welsh (+), Wettig (-), Wieczorek-Zeul (-), Wogau von (+), Woltjer (A), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A),

Amendment No 19 (f)

Abens (-), Adam (-), Adonnino (+), Aerssen van (+), Agnelli (+), Aigner (+), Albers (A), Alemann von (+), Almirante (-), Ansart (A), Ansquer (A), Antoniozzi (A), Arfe (A), Arndt (-), Baduel Glorioso (-), Baillot (-), Balfe (-), Balfour (+), Bangemann (+), Barbagli (+), Barbarella (-), Barbi (+), Battersby (+), Baudis (+), Beazley (+), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (+), Bethell (+), Bettiza (+), Beumer (+), Bismarck von (+), Blaney (-), Blumenfeld (+), Bocklet (+), Bøgh (A), Bonaccini (-), Bonde (-), Bonino (A), Boot (+), Boserup (-), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (+), Brookes (A), Buchan (A), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (A), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (+), Capanna (-), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (-), Cariglia (A), Carossino (-), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (+), Castellina (A), Castle (-), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (+), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (-), Charzat (-), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (-), Clinton (+), Clwyd (-), Cohen (A), Colla (-), Colleselli (+), Collins (A), Collomb (A), Combe (A), Coppieters (-), Costanzo (+), Cottrell (+), Courcy Ling de (+), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (A), Curry (+), D'Angelosante (-), Dalsass (+), Dalziel (+), Damette (A), Damseaux (+), Dankert (A), Davern (A), De Clercq (+), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (+), De March (-), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (-), Del Duca (+), Delatte (+), Deleau (A), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (A), Delors (-), Denis (-), Deschamps (+), Desmond (A), Diana (+), Didò (-), Dienesch (A), Diligent (+), Donnez (A), Doublet (A), Douro (+), Elles (+), Enright (-), Estgen (+), Estier (A), Ewing (+), Fanti (-), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure N. (-), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (+), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (+), Ferrero (A), Ferri (-), Fich (-), Filippi (+), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (-), Forster (+), Forth (+), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (+), Frischmann (A), Früh (+), Fuchs (+), Fuillet (-), Gabert (-), Baiotti de Biase (O), Gallagher (A), Galland (+), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (-), Gautier (A), Gendebien (-), Geurtsen (+), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (+), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (-), Goede de (-), Gonella (+), Goppel (A), Gouthier (-), Gredal (-), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (+), Haagerup (+), Habsburg (+), Hahn (+), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (-), Hänsch (-), Harmar-Nicholls (+), Harris (+), Hassel von (+), Helms (+), Henckens (+), Herklotz (A), Herman (+), Heuvel van den (-), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (+), Hord (+), Howell (+), Hume (A), Hutton (+), Ippolito (A), Irmer (+), Israel (A), Jackson C. (+), Jackson R. (+), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (A), Jaquet (-), Johnson (+), Jonker (+), Josselin (-), Jürgens (+), Katzer (+), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (+), Kellett-Bowman El. (+), Key (-), Kirk (+), Klepsch (+), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (+), Krouwel-Vlam (-), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (+), Lange (A), Langes (+), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (A), Lega (+), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (+), Lenz (+), Leonardi (-), Lezzi (A), Ligios (+), Lima (A), Linde (-), Linkohr (-), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (-), Louwes (+), Lücker (+), Luster (+), Lynge (A), Macario (+), Macciocchi (-), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (+), Maij-Weggen (+), Majonica (+), Malangré (A), Malène de la (A), Marchais (A), Marshall (A), Martin M. (-), Martin S. (+), Martinet (A), McCartin (+), Megahy (-), Mertens (+), Michel (+), Mihr (-), Minnen van (-), Modiano (+), Møller (+), Moorhouse (+), Moreau J. (-), Moreau L. (+), Moreland (+), Motchane (A), Müller-Hermann (+), Muntingh (-), Narducci (+), Newton Dunn (+), Nicolson (+), Nielsen J. (+), Nielsen T. (+), Nord (+), Nordlohne (+), Normanton (+), Notenboom (+), Nyborg (+), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (+), O'Hagan (+), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (+), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (-), Papapietro (A), Patterson (+), Pearce (+), Pedini (+), Pelikan (A), Penders (+), Percheron (A), Peters (A), Petronio (A), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (+), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (+), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (+), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (+), Pöttering (+), Prag (+), Pranchère (A), Price (+), Prout (+), Provan (+), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (A), Quin (A), Rabbethge (+), Radoux (A), Remilly (A), Rey (+), Rhys Williams (+), Rinsche (+), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (+), Rogers (A), Romualdi (-), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (+), Sablé (A), Salisch (-), Sälzer (A), Sarre (-), Sassano (+), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (A), Schall (+), Schieler (-), Schinzel (A), Schleicher (+), Schmid (-), Schmitt (A), Schnitker (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (+), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (+), Scrivener (+), Seal (A), Seefeld (-), Seeler (-), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (-), Seitlinger (+), Seligman (+), Sherlock (+), Sieglerschmidt (-), Simmonds (+), Simonnet (+),

Simpson (+), Skovmand (-), Spaak (-), Spencer (+), Spicer (+), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (-), Stewart-Clark (+), Sutra (A), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (+), Tindemans (+), Tolman (+), Travaglini (+), Tuckman (+), Turner (+), Tyrrell (+), Van Miert (-), Vandewiele (+), Vanneck (+), Vayssade (-), Veil (A), Vergeer (+), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (+), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (-), Verroken (+), Vetter (-), Viehoff (-), Visentini (A), Vitale (-), Vring von der (-), Wagner (A), Walter (-), Walz (A), Warner (+), Wawrzik (+), Weber (-), Weiss (A), Welsh (+), Wettig (-), Wieczorek-Zeul (-), Wogau von (+), Woltjer (A), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A),

Amendment No 19 (g), (h), (i)

Abens (-), Adam (-), Adonnino (+), Aerssen van (A), Agnelli (+), Aigner (+), Alber (+), Albers (A), Alemann von (+), Almirante (A), Ansart (A), Ansquer (A), Antoniozzi (+), Arfè (A), Arndt (A), Baduel Glorioso (-), Baillot (-), Balfe (-), Balfour (+), Bangemann (+), Barbagli (+), Barbarella (-), Barbi (+), Battersby (+), Baudis (+), Beazley (+), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (+), Bethell (+), Bettiza (+), Beumer (+), Bismarck von (+), Blaney (-), Blumenfeld (+), Bocklet (+), Bøgh (-), Bonaccini (-), Bonde (-), Bonino (A), Boot (+), Boesrup (-), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (+), Brookes (A), Buchan (A), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (A), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (+), Capanna (-), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (-), Cariglia (A), Carossino (-), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (+), Castellina (-), Castle (-), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (+), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (-), Charzat (-), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (-), Clinton (+), Clwyd (-), Cohen (A), Colla (A), Colleselli (+), Collins (A), Collomb (+), Combe (A), Coppieters (-), Costanzo (+), Cottrell (+), Courcy Ling de (+), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (+), Curry (+), D'Angelosante (-), Dalsass (+), Dalziel (+), Damette (A), Damseaux (+), Dankert (A), Davern (A), De Clercq (+), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (A), De March (-), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (O), Del Duca (+), Delatte (+), Deleau (A), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (A), Delors (-), Denis (-), Deschamps (+), Desmond (A), Diana (+), Didò (A), Dienesch (A), Diligent (+), Donnez (A), Doublet (A), Douro (+), Elles (+), Enright (-), Estgen (+), Estier (A), Ewing (+), Fanti (-), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (A), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (+), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (+), Ferrero (A), Ferri (-), Fich (+), Filippi (+), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (+), Forster (+), Forth (+), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (+), Frischmann (A), Früh (+), Fuchs (+), Fuillet (-), Gabert (-), Gaiotti de Biase (A), Gallagher (A), Galland (+), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (-), Gautier (A), Gendebien (-), Geurtsen (+), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (A), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (O), Goede de (O), Gonella (+), Goppel (A), Gouthier (-), Gredal (-), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (+), Haagerup (+), Habsburg (+), Hahn (+), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (+), Hänsch (+), Harmar-Nicholls (+), Harris (+), Hassel von (+), Helms (+), Henckens (+), Herklotz (A), Herman (+), Heuvel van den (-), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (+), Hord (+), Howell (+), Hume (A), Hutton (+), Ippolito (A), Irmer (+), Israel (A), Jackson C. (+), Jackson R. (+), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (+), Jaquet (-), Johnson (A), Jonker (+), Josselin (A), Jürgens (+), Katzer (A), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (+), Kellett-Bowman El. (+), Key (-), Kirk (+), Klepsch (+), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (A), Krouwel-Vlam (-), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (+), Lange (A), Langes (+), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (A), Lega (+), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (+), Lenz (+), Leonardi (-), Lezzi (A), Ligios (+), Lima (A), Linde (A), Linkohr (-), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (-), Louwes (+), Lücker (+), Luster (+), Lynge (A), Macario (+), Macciocchi (-), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (+), Maij-Weggen (+), Majonica (+), Malangré (A), Malène de la (A), Marchais (A), Marshall (A), Martin M. (-), Martin S. (+), Martinet (A), McCartin (+), Megahy (-), Mertens (-), Michel (+), Mihr (-), Minnen van (-), Modiano (+), Møller (+), Moorhouse (A), Moreau J. (-), Moreau L. (+), Moreland (+), Motchane (A), Müller-Hermann (+), Muntingh (-), Narducci (+), Newton Dunn (+), Nicolson (+), Nielsen J. (+), Nielsen T. (+), Nord (+), Nordlohne (+), Normanton (+), Notenboom (+), Nyborg (+), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (+), O'Hagan (+), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (+), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (A), Papapietro (A), Patterson (+), Pearce (+), Pedini (+), Pelikan (A), Penders (+), Percheron (A), Peters (A), Petronio (A), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (+), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (+), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (+), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (+), Pöttering (+), Prag (+), Pranchère (A), Price (+), Prout (+), Provan (+), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (A), Quin (A), Rabbethge (+), Radoux (A), Remilly (A), Rey (+), Rhys Williams (+), Rinsche (+), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (+), Rogers (A), Romualdi (+), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (+), Sablé (A), Salisch (-), Sälzer (+), Sarre (A), Sassano (+), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (A), Schall (+), Schieler (-), Schinzel (A), Schleicher (+), Schmid (-), Schmitt (A), Schnitker (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (+), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (+), Scrivener (-), Seal (A), Seefeld (-), Seeler (-), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (-), Seitlinger (+), Seligman (+), Sherlock (+), Sieglerschmidt (+), Simmonds (+), Simonnet (A),

Simpson (+), Skovmand (-), Spaak (-), Spencer (+), Spicer (+), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (-), Stewart-Clark (+), Sutra (-), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (+), Tindemans (+), Tulman (+), Travaglini (+), Tuckman (+), Turner (+), Tyrrell (+), van Miert (-), Vandewiele (+), Vanneck (+), Vayssade (-), Veil (A), Vergeer (+), Vergès (A), Vermaegen (+), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (-), Verroken (+), Vetter (-), Viehoff (-), Visentini (A), Vitale (-), Vring von der (-), Wagner (A), Walter (-), Walz (A), Warner (+), Wawrzik (+), Weber (-), Weiss (A), Welsh (+), Wettig (A), Wieczorek-Zeul (-), Wogau von (+), Woltjer (A), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A),

Amendment No 50

Abens (-), Adam (-), Adonnino (-), Aerssen van (A), Agnelli (-), Aigner (-), Albers (A), Alemann von (-), Almirante (+), Ansart (A), Ansquer (A), Atoniozzi (-), Arfè (A), Arndt (-), Baduel Glorioso (+), Baillot (+), Balfe (+), Balfour (-), Bangemann (=), Barbagli (-), Barbarella (+), Barbi (-), Battersby (-), Baudis (-), Beazley (-), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (-), Bethell (A), Bettiza (-), Beumer (-), Bismarck von (-), Blaney (-), Blumenfeld (-), Bocklet (-), Bøgh (O), Bonaccini (+), Bonde (A), Bonino (A), Boot (-), Boserup (+), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (-), Brookes (A), Buchan (A), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (A), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (-), Capanna (-), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (+), Cariglia (A), Carossino (+), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (-), Castellina (-), Castle (-), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (-), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (+), Charzat (A), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (+), Clinton (-), Clwyd (-), Cohen (A), Colla (+), Colleselli (-), Collins (A), Collomb (A), Combe (A), Coppieters (-), Costanzo (-), Cottrell (-), Courcy Ling de (-), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (-), Curry (-), D'Angelosante (+), Dalsass (-), Dalziel (-), Damette (A), Damseaux (-), Dankert (A), Davern (A), De Clercq (-), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (A), De March (+), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (O), Del Duca (A), Delatte (-), Deleau (A), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (A), Delors (O), Denis (+), Deschamps (-), Desmond (A), Diana (-), Didò (A), Dienesch (A), Diligent (-), Donnez (A), Doublet (A), Douro (-), Elles (-), Enright (+), Estgen (-), Estier (A), Ewing (-), Fanti (+), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (A), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (-), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (-), Ferrero (A), Ferri (A), Fich (-), Filippi (-), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (-), Forster (-), Forth (-), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (-), Frischmann (A), Früh (-), Fuchs (-), Fuillet (A), Gabert (-), Gaiotti de Biase (+), Gallagher (A), Galland (-), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (-), Gautier (A), Gendebien (O), Geurtsen (-), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (A), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (-), Goede de (O), Gonella (-), Goppel (A), Gouthier (+), Gredal (-), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (-), Haagerup (-), Habsburg (-), Hahn (-), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (O), Hänsch (-), Harmar-Nicholls (O), Harris (-), Hassel von (-), Helms (=), Henckens (-), Herklotz (A), Herman (-), Heuvel van den (+), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (-), Hord (-), Howell (-), Hume (A), Hutton (-), Ippolito (A), Irmer (-), Israel (A), Jackson C. (-), Jackson R. (-), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (-), Jaquet (-), Johnson (-), Jonker (-), Josselin (A), Jürgens (-), Katzer (-), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (-), Kellett-Bowman El. (-), Key (+), Kirk (-), Klepsch (-), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (A), Krouwel-Vlam (+), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (-), Lange (A), Langes (-), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (A), Lega (-), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (-), Lenz (-), Leonardi (+), Lezzi (A), Ligios (-), Lima (A), Linde (A), Linkohr (-), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (A), Louwes (-), Lücker (-), Luster (-), Lynge (A), Macario (-), Macciocchi (-), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (-), Maj-Weggen (-), Majonica (-), Malangré (A), Malène de la (A), Marchais (A), Marshall (A), Martin M. (A), Martin S. (-), Martinet (A), McCartin (-), Megahy (+), Mertens (-), Michel (-), Mihr (A), Minnen van (+), Modiano (-), Møller (-), Moorhouse (-), Moreau J. (-), Moreau L. (-), Moreland (-), Motchane (-), Müller-Hermann (-), Muntingh (+), Narducci (-), Newton Dunn (-), Nicolson (-), Nielsen J. (-), Nielsen T. (-), Nord (-), Nordlohne (-), Normanton (-), Notenboom (-), Nyborg (-), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (-), O'Hagan (-), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (-), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (A), Papapietro (A), Patterson (-), Pearce (-), Pedini (-), Pelikan (A), Penders (-), Percheron (A), Peters (A), Petronio (+), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (-), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (-), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (-), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (-), Pöttering (-), Prag (-), Pranchère (A), Price (-), Prout (-), Provan (-), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (A), Quin (A), Rabbethge (-), Radoux (A), Remilly (A), Rey (-), Rhys Williams (-), Rinsche (-), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (-), Rogers (A), Romualdi (+), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (-), Sablé (A), Salisch (A), Sälzer (A), Sarre (A), Sassano (-), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (A), Schall (-), Schieler (A), Schinzel (+), Schleicher (-), Schmid (+), Schmitt (A), Schnitker (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (-), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (-), Scrivener (-), Seal (A), Seefeld (-), Seeler (-), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (+), Seitlinger (A), Seligman (-), Sherlock (-), Sieglerschmidt (-), Simmonds (-), Simonnet (-),

Simpson (-), Skovmand (O), Spaak (O), Spencer (-), Spicer (-), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (+), Stewart-Clark (-), Sutra (+), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (-), Tindemans (-), Tolman (-), Travaglini (-), Tuckman (-), Turner (-), Tyrrell (-), Van Miert (-), Vandewiele (-), Vanneck (-), Vayssade (-), Veil (A), Vergeer (-), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (-), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (+), Verroken (-), Vetter (-), Viehoff (+), Visentini (A), Vitale (+), Vring von der (A), Wagner (A), Walter (+), Walz (-), Warner (-), Wawrzik (-), Weber (+), Weiss (A), Welsh (-), Wettig (+), Wieczurek-Zeul (+), Wogau von (-), Woltjer (A), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A).

Rule 14 (as a whole)

Abens (-), Adam (-), Adonnino (+), Aerssen van (+), Agnelli (+), Aigner (+), Alber (+), Albers (A), Alemann von (+), Almirante (A), Ansart (A), Ansquer (+), Antoniozzi (+), Arfe (A), Arndt (O), Baduel Glorioso (A), Baillot (O), Balfe (-), Balfour (A), Bangemann (+), Barbagli (+), Barbarella (O), Barbi (+), Battersby (+), Baudis (+), Beazley (+), Berkhouwer (A), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (+), Bethell (A), Bettiza (+), Beumer (+), Bismarck von (+), Blaney (-), Blumenfeld (+), Bocklet (+), Bøgh (-), Bonaccini (O), Bonde (-), Bonino (A), Boot (+), Boserup (-), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (+), Brookes (A), Buchan (-), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (A), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (+), Capanna (O), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (O), Cariglia (A), Carossino (A), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (+), Castellina (-), Castle (-), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (+), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (O), Charzat (A), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (O), Clinton (+), Clwyd (-), Cohen (A), Colla (-), Colleselli (+), Collins (-), Collomb (+), Combe (A), Coppieters (-), Costanzo (+), Cottrell (+), Courcy Ling de (+), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (+), Curry (+), D'Angelosante (O), Dalsass (+), Dalziel (+), Damette (A), Damseaux (+), Dankert (A), Davern (+), De Clercq (+), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (A), De March (O), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (-), Del Duca (+), Delatte (+), Deleau (+), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (A), Delors (-), Denis (O), Deschamps (+), Desmond (A), Diana (+), Didò (A), Dienesch (+), Diligent (+), Donnez (A), Doublet (+), Douro (+), Elles (+), Enright (-), Estgen (+), Estier (A), Ewing (+), Fanti (O), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (A), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (+), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (+), Ferrero (A), Ferri (A), Fich (-), Filippi (+), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (A), Forster (+), Forth (+), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (+), Frischmann (A), Früh (+), Fuchs (A), Fuillet (A), Gabert (-), Gaiotti de Biase (+), Gallagher (A), Galland (+), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (-), Gautier (A), Gendebien (-), Geurtsen (+), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (+), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (-), Goede de (-), Gonella (+), Goppel (A), Gouthier (O), Gredal (-), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (+), Haagerup (+), Habsburg (+), Hahn (+), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (-), Hänsch (A), Harmar-Nicholls (+), Harris (+), Hassel von (+), Helms (+), Henckens (+), Herklotz (A), Herman (+), Heuvel van den (-), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (+), Hord (+), Howell (+), Hume (A), Hutton (+), Ippolito (A), Irmer (+), Israel (+), Jackson C. (+), Jackson R. (+), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (+), Jaquet (-), Johnson (+), Jonker (+), Josselin (A), Jürgens (A), Katzer (+), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (+), Kellett-Bowman El. (+), Key (A), Kirk (+), Klepsch (+), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (A), Krouwel-Vlam (-), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (+), Lange (A), Langes (+), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (+), Lega (+), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (+), Lenz (+), Leonardi (O), Lezzi (A), Ligios (+), Lima (A), Linde (A), Linkohr (-), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (A), Louwes (+), Lücker (+), Luster (+), Lynge (A), Macario (+), Macciocchi (+), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (+), Maij-Weggen (+), Majonica (+), Malangré (A), Malène de la (+), Marchais (A), Marshall (A), Martin M. (A), Martin S. (+), Martinet (A), McCartin (+), Megahy (-), Mertens (+), Michel (+), Mihr (A), Minnen van (-), Modiano (+), Møller (+), Moorhouse (+), Moreau J. (-), Moreau L. (+), Moreland (+), Motchane (-), Müller-Hermann (+), Muntingh (-), Narducci (+), Newton Dunn (+), Nicolson (+), Nielsen J. (=), Nielsen T. (+), Nord (+), Nordlohne (+), Normanton (+), Notenboom (+), Nyborg (+), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (+), O'Hagan (+), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (+), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (+), Papapietro (A), Patterson (+), Pearce (+), Pedini (+), Pelikan (A), Penders (+), Percheron (A), Peters (-), Petronio (A), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (+), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (+), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (+), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (A), Pöttering (+), Prag (+), Pranchère (A), Price (+), Prout (+), Provan (+), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (+), Quin (A), Rabbethge (+), Radoux (-), Remilly (+), Rey (+), Rhys Williams (+), Rinsche (+), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (+), Rogers (A), Romualdi (A), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (+), Sablé (A), Salisch (-), Sälzer (A), Sarre (A), Sassano (+), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (+), Schall (+), Schieler (A), Schinzel (-), Schleicher (+), Schmid (-), Schmitt (A), Schnitker (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (A), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (+), Scrivener (+), Seal (A), Seefeld (-), Seeler (-), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (-), Seitlinger (+), Seligman (+), Sherlock (+), Sieglerschmidt (-), Simmonds (+), Simonnet (+),

Simpson (+), Skovmand (-), Spaak (-), Spencer (+), Spicer (+), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (O), Stewart-Clark (+), Sutra (-), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (+), Tindemans (+), Tolman (+), Travaglini (+), Tuckman (+), Turner (+), Tyrrell (+), Van Miert (-), Vandewiele (+), Vanneck (+), Vayssade (-), Veil (A), Vergeer (+), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (+), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (O), Verroken (+), Vetter (-), Viehoff (-), Visentini (A), Vitale (O), Vring von der (-), Wagner (A), Walter (-), Walz (+), Warner (+), Wawrzik (+), Weber (-), Weiss (A), Welsh (+), Wettig (-), Wieczorek-Zeul (-), Wogau von (+), Woltjer (A), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A).

Rule 26 (as a whole)

Abens (-), Adam (-), Adonnino (+), Aerssen van (+), Agnelli (+), Aigner (+), Albers (+), Albers (A), Alemann von (+), Almirante (A), Ansart (A), Ansquer (A), Antoniozzi (+), Arfè (A), Arndt (O), Baduel Glorioso (A), Baillot (O), Balfe (-), Balfour (+), Bangemann (+), Barbagli (+), Barbarella (O), Barbi (+), Bartersby (+), Baudis (+), Beazley (+), Berkhouwer (+), Berlinguer (A), Bersani (+), Bethell (A), Bettiza (+), Beumer (+), Bismarck von (+), Blaney (-), Blumenfeld (+), Bocklet (+), Bøgh (-), Bonaccini (O), Bonde (-), Bonino (A), Boot (+), Boserup (-), Boyes (A), Brandt (A), Brok (+), Brookes (A), Buchan (-), Buchou (A), Buttafuoco (A), Caborn (A), Caillavet (A), Calvez (+), Capanna (-), Cardia (A), Carettoni Romagnoli (O), Cariglia (A), Carossino (O), Cassanmagnago Cerretti (+), Castellina (-), Castle (-), Catherwood (A), Cecovini (+), Ceravolo (A), Chambeiron (O), Charzat (A), Chouraqui (A), Cinciari Rodano (O), Clinton (+), Clwyd (-), Cohen (-), Colla (-), Colleselli (+), Collins (-), Collomb (+), Combe (A), Coppieters (-), Costanzo (+), Cottrell (+), Courcy Ling de (+), Craxi (A), Cresson (A), Cronin (A), Croux (+), Curry (+), D'Angelosante (O), Dalsass (+), Dalziel (+), Damette (A), Damseaux (+), Dankert (A), Davern (+), De Clercq (+), De Gucht (A), De Keersmaeker (A), De March (O), De Pasquale (A), De Valera (A), Debré (A), Dekker (-), Del Duca (+), Delatte (+), Deleau (+), Delmotte (A), Delorozoy (+), Delors (-), Denis (O), Deschamps (+), Desmond (A), Diana (+), Didò (A), Dienesch (+), Diligent (+), Donnez (A), Doublet (+), Douro (+), Elles (+), Enright (-), Estgen (+), Estier (A), Ewing (+), Fanti (O), Fanton (A), Faure E. (A), Faure M. (A), Fellermaier (A), Fergusson (+), Fernandez (A), Ferranti de (+), Ferrero (A), Ferri (A), Fich (-), Filippi (+), Fischbach (A), Flanagan (A), Flesch (A), Focke (-), Forster (+), Forth (+), Friedrich B. (A), Friedrich I. (+), Frischmann (A), Früh (+), Fuchs (+), Fuillet (A), Gabert (-), Gaiotti de Biase (+), Gallagher (A), Galland (+), Galluzzi (A), Gaspard (A), Gatto (-), Gautier (A), Gendebien (-), Geurtsen (+), Ghergo (A), Giavazzi (+), Gillot (A), Giummarra (A), Glinne (-), Goede de (-), Gonella (+), Goppel (A), Gouthier (O), Gredal (-), Gremetz (A), Griffiths (A), Groes (A), Gun van der (+), Haagerup (+), Habsburg (+), Hahn (+), Hamilius (A), Hammerich (-), Hänsch (A), Harmar-Nicholls (+), Harris (+), Hassel von (+), Helms (+), Henckens (+), Herklotz (-), Herman (+), Heuvel van den (-), Hoff (A), Hoffmann J. (A), Hoffmann K. (A), Hooper (A), Hopper (+), Hord (+), Howell (+), Hume (A), Hutton (+), Ippolito (A), Irmer (+), Israel (+), Jackson C. (+), Jackson R. (+), Jakobsen (A), Jalton (A), Janssen van Raay (+), Jaquet (-), Johnson (+), Jonker (+), Josselin (A), Jürgens (+), Katzer (+), Kavanagh (A), Kellett-Bowman Ed. (+), Kellett-Bowman El. (+), Key (A), Kirk (+), Klepsch (+), Klinkenborg (A), Köhler (A), Krouwel-Vlam (-), Kühn (A), Labbé (A), Lalor (+), Lange (A), Langes (A), Le Roux (A), Lecanuet (+), Lega (A), Lemmer (A), Lentz-Cornette (+), Lenz (+), Leonardi (O), Lezzi (A), Ligios (+), Lima (A), Linde (-), Linkohr (-), Lizin (A), Lomas (A), Loo (A), Louwes (+), Lücker (+), Luster (+), Lynge (A), Macario (+), Macciocchi (-), Maffre-Baugé (A), Maher (+), Maij-Weggen (+), Majonica (+), Malangré (A), Malène de la (+), Marchais (A), Marshall (A), Martin M. (A), Martin S. (+), Martinet (A), McCartin (+), Megahy (-), Mertens (+), Michel (+), Mihr (A), Minnen van (-), Modiano (+), Møller (+), Moorhouse (+), Moreau J. (-), Moreau L. (+), Moreland (+), Motchane (-), Müller-Hermann (+), Muntingh (-), Narducci (+), Newton Dunn (+), Nicolson (+), Nielsen J. (+), Nielsen T. (+), Nord (+), Nordlohne (+), Normanton (+), Notenboom (+), Nyborg (+), O'Connell (A), O'Donnell (+), O'Hagan (+), O'Leary (A), Oehler (A), Orlandi (A), Ormesson d' (+), Paisley (A), Pajetta (A), Pannella (-), Papapietro (A), Patterson (+), Pearce (+), Pedini (+), Pelikan (A), Penders (+), Percheron (A), Peters (-), Petronio (A), Pfennig (A), Pflimlin (O), Piccoli (A), Pininfarina (A), Pintat (+), Piquet (A), Pisani (A), Plumb (+), Poirier (A), Poncelet (A), Poniatowski (+), Pöttering (+), Prag (+), Pranchère (A), Price (+), Prout (+), Provan (+), Pruvot (A), Puletti (A), Purvis (+), Quin (A), Rabbethge (+), Radoux (-), Remilly (+), Rey (+), Rhys Williams (+), Rinsche (+), Ripa di Meana (A), Roberts (+), Rogers (A), Romualdi (A), Rossi (A), Roudy (A), Ruffolo (A), Rumor (A), Ryan (+), Sablé (A), Salisch (-), Sälzer (+), Sarre (A), Sassano (+), Sayn-Wittgenstein-Berleburg (+), Schall (+), Schieler (A), Schinzel (-), Schleicher (+), Schmid (-), Schmitt (A), Schnitker (A), Schön Karl (A), Schön Konrad (+), Schwartzenberg (A), Schwencke (A), Scott-Hopkins (+), Scrivener (+),

Seal (A), Seefeld (O), Seeler (-), Segre (A), Seibel-Emmerling (-), Seitlinger (+), Seligman (+), Sherlock (+), Sieglerschmidt (-), Simmonds (+), Simonnet (A), Simpson (+), Skovmand (-), Spaak (=), Spencer (+), Spicer (+), Spinelli (A), Squarcialupi (O), Stewart-Clark (+), Sutra (-), Taylor J. D. (A), Taylor J. M. (+), Tindemans (+), Tolman (+), Travaglini (+), Tuckman (+), Turner (+), Tyrrell (+), Van Miert (-), Vandewiele (+), Vanneck (+), Vayssade (-), Veil (A), Vergeer (+), Vergès (A), Verhaegen (+), Vernimmen (A), Veronesi (O), Verroken (+), Vetter (-), Viehoff (-), Visentini (A), Vitale (O), Vring von der (-), Wagner (A), Walter (-), Walz (+), Warner (+), Wawrzik (+), Weber (-), Weiss (A), Welsh (+), Wettig (-), Wieczorek-Zeul (-), Wogau von (+), Woltjer (-), Wurtz (A), Zaccagnini (A), Zagari (A), Zecchino (A).

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SITTING OF THURSDAY, 10 JULY 1980

IN THE CHAIR: MR KATZER

Vice-President

(The sitting was opened at 10 a.m.)

1. Approval of minutes

Mr Pannella spoke.

The minutes of the previous day's sitting were approved.

2. Documents received

The President announced that he had received from the Council requests for opinions on:

— the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Decision supplementing Annex IV to the Convention on the protection of the Rhine against chemical pollution (Doc. 1-309/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection;

— the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities—to the Council for a Regulation amending, for the benefit of unemployed workers, Regulation (EEC) No 1408/71 on the application of social security schemes to employed persons and their families moving within the Community_(Doc. 1-310/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment;

- the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for:
 - I. a Regulation for the stimulation of agricultural development in the less-favoured areas of Northern Ireland
 - II. a Regulation on a common measure to improve the conditions under which agricultural products in the eggs, poultrymeat, cereals and cattlefeed sectors in Northern Ireland are processed and marketed

— amendment of proposal II from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Regulation on a common measure to improve the conditions under which agricultural products in the eggs, poultrymeat, cereals and cattlefeed sectors in Northern Ireland are processed and marketed (Doc. 1-314/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Agriculture as the committee responsible, and to the Committee on Budgets for an opinion.

3. Composition of committees

At the request of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Parliament ratified the appointment of Mr Sälzer as member of the European Parliament delegation to the Joint Parliamentary Committee of the EEC-Greece Association.

At the request of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, Parliament ratified the appointment of Mr Doublet as member of the Committee on Transport.

4. Decision on urgency

The first item on the agenda was the decision on the urgency of four motions for resolutions:

 Motion for a resolution by Mr Sarre and others on the car industry (Doc. 1-311/80)

Mr Bangemann spoke on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group.

Mr Sarre withdrew the request for urgent debate and the first two paragraphs of the motion for a resolution.

The following spoke: Mr Davignon, Member of the Commission, Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the

European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Baillot and Miss Forster.

Pursuant to Rule 25, this motion for a resolution was referred to the appropriate committee, in this case, the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs as the committee responsible and the Committee on External Economic Relations and the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment for opinions.

— Motion for a resolution by Mr Rinsche and others on the border incident between Vietnamese and Thai troops (Doc. 1-312/80)

Mr Rinsche and Mr Pannella spoke.

Urgent procedure was adopted.

This motion for a resolution was placed on the agenda for the sitting on Friday, 11 July.

Mr Fergusson raised a point of order.

 Motion for a resolution by Mr Capanna and others on the 'Seveso' Directive (Doc. 1-313/80)

The following spoke: Mr Capanna, Mr Collins, Chairman of the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection, Mrs Scrivener, Mr Sherlock, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Pannella, Mrs Seibel-Emmerling, on behalf of the Socialist Group and Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group).

Urgent procedure was rejected.

Pursuant to Rule 25, this motion for a resolution was referred to the appropriate committee, in this case the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection.

 Motion for a resolution by Ms Clwyd and others on air-conditioning systems (Doc. 1-315/80)

The following spoke: Mr Klepsch, Ms Clwyd, Mr Provan, on behalf of the European Democratic Group and Mrs Weber, on behalf of the Socialist Group.

Mr Galland raised a point of order.

Urgent procedure was rejected.

Pursuant to Rule 25, this motion for a resolution was referred to the appropriate committee, in this case the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection.

Mr Sherlock raised a point of order.

5. Agenda

— Mr Prout requested that his report on consumer credit (Doc. 1-161/80), which had been placed on the agenda for that day's sitting, should be referred back to committee.

The following spoke: Mr Seeler, Mr Prout, Mr Collins, Chairman of the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection, and Mr Janssen van Raay, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group).

Pursuant to Rule 26 (2), this report was referred back to committee.

Mr Johnson spoke.

— Mr Lange, Chairman of the Committee on Budgets, requested that the next two items on the agenda — the Janssen van Raay report (Doc. 1-274/80) and the Commission statement on the preliminary draft general budget for 1981 — should be reversed.

Mr Janssen van Raay agreed to this request.

— Pursuant to Rule 26 (2), Mr Blaney requested that his report on flax and hemp (Doc. 1-306/80), which had been placed on the agenda for the next day's sitting, should be referred back to committee.

Pursuant to Rule 26 (2), this report was referred back to committee.

6. Preliminary draft budget of the Communities for

Mr Tugendhat, Member of the Commission, presented the preliminary draft general budget of the European Communities for the financial year 1981.

Mr Lange, Chairman of the Committee on Budgets, spoke.

Mr Sutra raised a point of order.

7. Air traffic control (debate)

The next item was the report by Mr Janssen van Raay, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Transport, on the development of a coordinated European air traffic control system (Doc. 1-274/80) which had initially been scheduled for the sitting on 7 July but which, due to lack of time, had not been dealt with on that day (see item 17 of minutes of 7 July 1980).

Mr Janssen van Raay introduced his report.

IN THE CHAIR: MR MØLLER

Vice-President

The following spoke: Mr Albers, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Notenboom, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Cottrell, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Carossino, Communist and Allies Group, Mr Berkhouwer, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Miss Roberts, Mr Martin, Mr Moorhouse, Mr Combe, Mr Seefeld, Chairman of the Committee on Transport, and Mr Burke, Member of the Commission.

The following raised points of order: Mr Van Minnen, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Peters, Mrs Hoff and Mrs Wieczorek-Zeul.

He declared the debate closed.

The following raised points of order: Mr van Minnen, on behalf of the Socialist Group Mr Peters, Mrs Hoff and Mrs Wieczorek-Zeul.

(The sitting was suspended at 12.55 p.m. and resumed at 3 p.m.)

IN THE CHAIR: MR DANKERT

Vice-President

8. Verification of credentials

On a proposal from the Bureau, pursuant to Rule 3 (1), Parliament ratified the mandate of Mr Doublet whose appointment had been announced during the sitting of Monday, 7 July (see item 2 of that day's minutes).

9. Urgent debate

The President announced that he had received a motion for a resolution from Mr Klepsch, Mrs Cassanmagnago Cerretti, Mr Vergeer, Mr Bersani, Mr Herman, Mr Beumer, Mr Estgen, Mr Diligent, Mr Wawrzik, Mr Michel, Mr Deschamps, Mr Barbi, Mr van der Gun, Mr Narducci, Mr Verhaegen, Mr Pedini, Mr Vandewiele, Mr van Aerssen, Mr Macario, Mrs Lenz, Mrs Maij-Weggen, Mr Majonica and Mr Penders, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), and Mr Glinne, Mr Enright, Mr Sieglerschmidt, Mr Colla, Mr van Minnen, Mrs Buchan, Mr Linkohr, Mr Pelikan and Mrs van den Heuvel, on behalf of the Socialist Group, with request for urgent debate pursuant to Rule 14, on the serious violations of human rights and international law by the Argentinian military regime (Doc. 1-318/80).

He announced that the reasons supporting this request for urgent debate were contained in the document itself.

Pursuant to Rule 14 (1), second subparagraph, the vote on this request for urgency would be held at the beginning of the next day's sitting.

10. Development of an air traffic control system (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Janssen van Raay (Doc. 1-274/80).

Sir Peter Vanneck gave an explanation of vote.

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

Thursday, 10 July 1980.

RESOLUTION

on the development of a coordinated European air traffic control system

The European Parliament,

- having regard to the motion for a resolution tabled by Mr Berkhouwer (Doc. 1-554/79),
- having regard to its previous resolutions (1) and reports on the promotion of efficient air traffic control (Doc. 49/78 and Doc. 106/79),
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Transport (Doc. 1-274/80),
- 1. Regrets to note that, despite its numerous initiatives on European aviation policy and a European approach to management and control of air traffic, there has been no increase in intra-European cooperation and there is now a trend towards 'renationalization';
- 2. Draws attention in this context to Eurocontrol, which is threatened by a more or less radical erosion of its powers and even, perhaps, dismantlement;
- 3. Recalls that Eurocontrol is the only European organization with executive functions in a specific field, namely active air traffic control, the quality of which is, moreover, undisputed;
- 4. Notes with regret that the difficulties concerning Eurocontrol and the threat to its future are due solely to a lack of political will and a resurgence of national egoism;
- 5. Points out that, although air transport today is characterized by a relatively high level of safety, everything possible must be done to reduce the dangers and risks of aviation without delay, and stresses here the suggestions and recommendations it has already formulated on the subject;
- 6. Notes that, because of the compartmentalization of the already limited Western European air space and the lack of cooperation and coordination between national air traffic services, air traffic in Western Europe displays a number of serious shortcomings;
- 7. Draws particular attention to:
- (a) the disturbing underutilization of capacity of the air traffic control systems;
- (b) needless overburdening of air traffic control staff and services and air crew;
- (c) all too frequent congestion with the resultant disruption, diversions and delays for air traffic and inconvenience for passengers;
- (d) unsatisfactory coordination between military and civil air traffic;

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 131, 5. 6. 1978, p. 31 and OJ No C 140, 5. 6. 1979, p. 20.

- (e) frequent incompatibility of expensive air traffic control apparatus and equipment;
- (f) unjustifiable increases in costs and waste of money and fuel;
- 8. Is firmly convinced that these deficiencies can be relieved or removed only by far-reaching cooperation and coordination between the various national air navigation authorities in the management and control of air traffic;
- 9. Proposes to this end the setting-up of an integrated European system for the management of air traffic flows, to be responsible in particular for the tactical and strategic planning of air traffic;
- 10. Ask that this task be entrusted to Eurocontrol;
- 11. Considers it desirable that for active air traffic control a similar integrated system be introduced involving the Eurocontrol Agency;
- 12. Considers it necessary therefore that Eurocontrol continue its operational tasks in the upper airspace of Belgium, the Federal Republic of Germany and Luxembourg, that the Netherlands fulfil its obligation to transfer control to Eurocontrol, that, with the accession of Italy and Denmark in prospect, negotiations with these countries be intensified and that France, Ireland, Italy and the United Kingdom give favourable consideration to transferring these tasks to the Agency;
- 13. Believes that, if there is not sufficient political will to achieve this in the immediate future, the Eurocontrol Convention which expires in 1983 ought to be prolonged automatically in its present form so that at least the air traffic control centres of Eurocontrol at Maastricht and Karlsruhe can be maintained;
- 14. Considers that such an extension should be made use of for the execution, at the Commission's expense, of a basic study of the relationship between the development of a common air transport policy and an integrated air traffic control system; believes, moreover, that this study needs to be geared to the future, based on a cost-benefit analysis and drawn up in consultation with the sectors concerned;
- 15. Instructs its President to forward this resolution to the Council and the Commission, to the competent authorities in Eurocontrol's member States and to the chairmen of the appropriate committees in the national parliaments.

11. Restructuring of the steel industry (debate)

The next item was the joint debate on two reports concerning the steel industry and including the oral question by Sir Fred Catherwood, Mrs Wieczorek-Zeul, Mr van Aerssen and Mr Seal, on behalf of the

Committee on External Economic Relations, to the Commission, on relations between the EEC and the United States in the steel sector (Doc. 1-296/80).

Mr Peters introduced his report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment, on:

- I. the communication from the Commission on the social aspects of the restructuring of the steel industry, and
- II. the revised draft of a Commission Decision concerning the creation of special temporary allowances to assist workers in the iron and steel industry under the Community restructuring plan

(Doc. 1-215/80)

Mr Albers raised a point of order.

Mrs Hoff introduced her report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Budgets, on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council (Doc. 1-157/80) for a Decision with regard to contributions to be granted to the European Coal and Steel Community out of the general budget of the European Communities (Doc. 1-266/80).

The following spoke: Mr Van Minnen, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr van der Gun, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Ansart, Communist and Allies Group, Mr Calvez, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Miss de Valera, on behalf of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, Mrs Dekker, non-attached member, Mr Vetter, Mr Nordlohne, Mr Prag, Mr Petronio and Mr Oehler.

IN THE CHAIR: MR JAQUET

Vice-President

The following spoke: Mr Barbi, Mr Boyes, Mr Davignon, Member of the Commission, Mr Boyes, who continued his statement, Mr Simpson, Mr Seal, Mr I. Friedrich, Mr Abens, Sir John Stewart-Clark, Mr Vredeling, Vice-President of the Commission, and Mr Colla.

Mr Barbi, Mr Nordlohne and Mrs Castle raised points of order.

The following spoke: Mrs Dekker, Mr Vredeling, Mr Tugendhat, Member of the Commission, Mr Davignon and Mr Peters, rapporteur.

The President stated that the motions for resolutions would be put to the vote, together with the amendments tabled to them, at the next voting time (see item 15 of minutes of 11 July 1980).

He announced that he had received from Mr Seal, Mrs Wieczorek-Zeul, Mr Caborn and Mr Seeler, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr van Aerssen, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Sir Fred Catherwood, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Donnez, Mr Louwes, Mr Irmer and Mr Calvez, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Mrs Chouraqui, on behalf of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, and Mr Leonardi, a motion for a resolution with request for an early vote, pursuant to Rule 47 (5), to wind up the debate on the oral question on relations between the EEC and the United States in the steel sector (Doc. 1-296/80) — (Doc. 1-316/80).

He stated that the vote on this request would be taken at the beginning of the next day's sitting.

He declared the debate closed.

12. Industrial products from third countries — motor vehicles, certain construction plant, textile names, electrical equipment and biodegradability — powered industrial trucks

The next item was the joint debate on three reports.

Mr von Wogau introduced his reports, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs, on:

- the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council (Doc. 1-7/80) for a Directive on a special Community certification procedure for industrial products originating in third countries (Doc. 1-236/80);
- the proposals from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for Directives:
 - I on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to rear-view mirrors for two or three-wheeled motor vehicles (Doc. 1-703/79)
 - II. (a) on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to roll-over protective structures (ROPS) for certain construction plant
 - (b) on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to falling-object

protective structures (FOPS) for certain construction plant (Doc. 1-711/79)

- III. amending Directive 71/307/EEC on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to textile names (Doc. 1-759/79)
- IV. on the approximation of the laws of the Member States' concerning electrical equipment for use in potentially explosive atmospheres in mines susceptible to fire-damp (Doc. 1-805/79)
- V. on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to methods of testing the biodegradability of non-ionic surfactants and amending Directive 73/404/EEC (Doc. 1-823/79)

(Doc. 1-141/80).

Mr de Ferranti introduced his report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs, on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council (Doc. 192/79) for a Directive on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to powered industrial trucks (Doc. 1-224/80).

Mr Moreland, Draftsman of the Opinion of the Committee on Transport, spoke.

IN THE CHAIR: MR ZAGARI

Vice-President

The following spoke: Mr Turner on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Delorozoy, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Mr Nyborg, on behalf of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, Mrs Hammerich, Mr Davignon, Member of the Commission, Mr de Ferranti and Mr von Wogau, rapporteurs.

The President announced that the motions for resolutions would be put to the vote, together with the amendments tabled to them, at the next voting time (see item 16 of minutes of 11 July 1980).

He declared the debate closed.

13. Integration of railway undertakings (debate)

Mr Cottrell introduced his report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Transport, on the report from the Commission to the Council on the objectives to be pursued in the long term and the measures to be taken to promote partial or total integration of railway undertakings at Community level (Doc. 1-267/80).

(The sitting was suspended at 8 p.m. and resumed at 9 p.m.)

IN THE CHAIR: MR DE FERRANTI

Vice-President

The following spoke: Mr Albers, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Janssen van Raay, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Moorhouse, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Carossino, Communist and Allies Group, Mrs Le Roux and Mr Burke, Member of the Commission.

The President announced that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote, together with the amendments tabled to it, at the next voting time (see item 17 of minutes of 11 July 1980).

He declared the debate closed.

14. Projects of Community interest in transport infrastructure (debate)

Mr Buttafuoco introduced his report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Transport, on the amendment to the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council (Doc. 1-46/80) for a Council Regulation on support for projects of Community interest in transport infrastructure (Doc. 1-218/80).

The following spoke: Mr Albers, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Janssen van Raay, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Moreland, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Martin, Communist and Allies Group, Mr Carossino, Mr Turner and Mr Burke, Member of the Commission.

The President announced that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote at the next voting time (see item 18 of minutes of 11 July 1980).

He declared the debate closed.

15. Implementation of the 1979 budget (debate)

Mr Aigner introduced his report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Budgetary Control, on the implementation of the 1979 budget (financial situation as at 31 December 1979) (Doc. 1-76/80) — (Doc. 1-275/80).

The following spoke: Mr Tugendhat, Member of the Commission, Mr Colla, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Irmer, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, the rapporteur and Mr Tugendhat.

The President announced that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote at the next voting time (see item 19 of minutes of 11 July 1980).

He declared the debate closed.

16. Budgetary control aspects of the Data-Processing Centre (debate)

Mr Kellett-Bowman introduced his interim report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Budgetary Control, on the budgetary control aspects of the Data-Processing Centre of the Commission of the European Communities (Doc. 1-283/80).

The following spoke: Mr Notenboom, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), and Mr Tugendhat, *Member of the Commission*.

The President announced that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote, together with the amendments tabled to it, at the next voting time (see item 20 of minutes of 11 July 1980).

He declared the debate closed.

17. Situation of the refugees in the Horn of Africa (debate)

Mr Marshall introduced his report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Development and Cooperation, on the dramatic situation of the refugees, especially the children amongst them, in the Horn of Africa (Doc. 1-289/80).

The following spoke: Mr Griffiths, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Cheysson, Member of the

Commission, Mr Michel on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), sir Frederick Warner, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Coppieters, Group for the Technical Coordination and Defence of Independent Groups and Members, the rapporteur and Mr Cheysson.

The President announced that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote, together with the amendments tabled to it, at the next voting time (see item 21 of minutes of 11 July 1980).

He declared the debate closed.

18. Composition of Parliament

The President announced that Mr Rey had informed him of his resignation as Member of the European Parliament.

Pursuant to Article 12 (2), second subparagraph, of the Act concerning the election of representatives of the Assembly by direct universal suffrage, Parliament established that there was a vacancy and duly informed the Member State concerned.

19. Agenda for next sitting

The President announced the following agenda for the sitting on Friday, 11 July:

9 a.m.:

- procedure without report;
- decision on urgency and on a request for an early vote;
- joint debate on three motions for resolutions on refugees in South China, aid to Kampuchea and the border incident between Vietnamese and Thai troops;
- Giummarra report on the importation of fresh lemons;
- Gautier report on fishery resources;
- Colleselli report on statistical surveys under vines.

10.30 a.m.

after 10.30 a.m.

- vote on motions for resolutions on which the debate has closed.
- texts will be put to the vote at the end of each debate.

(The sitting was closed at 12.20 a.m.)

H.-J. OPITZ

Pieter DANKERT

. Secretary-General

Vice-President

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SITTING OF FRIDAY, 11 JULY 1980

IN THE CHAIR: MR DANKERT

Vice-President

(The sitting was opened at 9 a.m.)

1. Approval of minutes

The minutes of the previous day's sitting were approved.

2. Documents received

The President announced that he had received:

- (a) from the Council, a request for an opinion on:
 - the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Directive laying down basic standards for the health protection of workers and the general public against the dangers of microwave radiation (Doc. 1-323/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection;

- (b) the following motions for resolutions, tabled pursuant to Rule 25:
 - motion for a resolution by Mr Gendebien on the transport of radioactive substances and radioactive waste (Doc. 1-317/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Transport as the committee responsible, and to the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection for an opinion;

— motion for a resolution by Mr Diana, Mr Adonnino, Mr Arfè, Mr Barbi, Mr Bettiza, Mrs Cassanmagnago Cerretti, Mr Clinton, Mr Damseaux, Mr Diligent, Mrs Gaiotti De Biase, Mr Gatto, Mr Modiano, Mr Orlandi, Mr Pininfarina, Mr Ripa di Meana and Mr Travaglini, on the restructuring of economic and monetary policies in connection with the Council Decision of 30 May 1980 (Doc. 1-319/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs as the committee responsible, and to the Committee on Agriculture, the Committee on Budgets and the Committee on Regional Policy and Regional Planning for opinions;

 motion for a resolution by Mrs Roudy, Mr Jaquet, Mr Sutra, Mrs Fuillet, Mr Oehler and Mrs Vayssade on prostitution in Europe (Doc. 1-320/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment;

— motion for a resolution by Mr Key, on behalf of the Socialist Group, on concessionaire labour on European registered vessels (Doc. 1-321/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Transport as the committee responsible, and to the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment for an opinion;

— motion for a resolution by Mr Moreland and Mr Cottrell on road haulage (Doc. 1-322/80)

which had been referred to the Committee on Transport;

motion for a resolution by Mr. Klepsch, Mrs Cassanmagnago Cerretti, Mr Vergeer, Mr Habsburg, Mr Rumor, Mr Blumenfeld, Mr Tindemans, Mr Penders, Mr Antoniozzi, Mr d'Ormesson, Mr Clinton, Mr Estgen, Mr Diligent, Mr von Hassel, Mr Bocklet, Mr I. Friedrich, Mr. Seitlinger, Mr Schall and Mr Konrad Schön, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), on the refusal of exit visas to enable Andrei Sakharov and Rainer Baurich to attend the hearing arranged by the European Parliament on the next Conference on Security and Cooperation in Europe (Doc. 1-324/80)

which had been referred to the Political Affairs Committee.

3. Text of treaties forwarded by the Council

The President announced that he had received from the Council certified true copies of the following documents:

- act of notification of the approval by the Community of the Agreement in the form of an exchange of letters between the European Economic Community and the Government of Canada concerning the extension of their Agreement on fisheries;
- act of notification of the approval by the Community of the Agreement between the Government of the Republic of Senegal and the European Economic Community on fishing off the coast of Senegal and of the protocol and the exchanges of letters referring thereto;
- act of notification of the approval by the Community of the Agreement between the Government of the Republic of Guinea Bissau and the European Economic Community on fishing off the coast of Guinea Bissau;
- act of notification of the approval by the Community of the Agreement between the European Economic Community and the Government of Sweden on certain measures for the purpose of promoting the reproduction of salmon in the Baltic Sea;
- act of notification of the approval by the Community of the Agreement on fisheries between the European Economic Community and the Government of Denmark and the Home Government of the Faroe Islands;
- act of notification of the approval by the Community of the Agreement on fisheries between the European Economic Community and the Kingdom of Norway;
- act of notification of the approval by the Community of the Agreement on fisheries between the European Economic Community and the Government o Sweden.

4. Petitions

The President announced that, at the request of the Committee on the Rules of Procedure and Petitions:

- petition Nos 24/80, 25/80 and 28/80 had been filed without further action, pursuant to Rule 48 (4) (No 24/80 had been forwarded for information to the Political Affairs Committee, No 25/80 had been forwarded for information to the petitions committee of the Bundestag and No 28/80 had been forwarded for information to the Bureau of Parliament and to the Political Affairs Committee);
- petition No 27/80 had been referred to the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection and the Committee on Regional Policy and Regional Planning for opinions;
- petition No 23/80 had been referred to the Political Affairs Committee for an opinion;
- petition Nos 29/80 and 30/80 had been referred to the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment for an opinion and forwarded for information to the Ad hoc Committee on Women's Rights;
- petition Nos 32/80 and 33/80 had been referred to the Committee on Youth, Culture, Education, Information and Sport for an opinion.

Parliament took note of this information.

5. Composition of Parliament

The President announced to Parliament that the competent Belgian authorities had informed him that Mr Luc Beyer de Ryke had been appointed member of the European Parliament to replace Mr Rey, who had resigned.

He welcomed the new member and pointed out that, pursuant to Rule 3 (3), any member whose credentials had not yet been verified provisionally took his seat in Parliament and on its committees with the same rights as other members.

6. Composition of committees

At the request of the Socialist Group, Parliament ratified the appointment of Mr Hänsch as member of the Committee on External Economic Relations to replace Mr Fellermaier.

At the request of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Parliament ratified the appointments of:

- Mr Damseaux as member of the Political Affairs Committee,
- Mr Combe as member of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs to replace Mr Damseaux,
- Mr Beyer de Ryke as member of the Committee on Youth, Culture, Education, Information and Sport to replace Mr Bangemann.

7. Procedure without report

Since no-one had asked leave to speak and no amendments had been tabled to it, the President declared approved under the procedure without report provided for in Rule 27A the following Commission proposal that had been announced at the sitting of 7 July:

— proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No 456/80 on the granting of temporary and permanent abandonment premiums in respect of certain areas under vines and of premiums for the renunciation of replanting (Doc. 1-211/80).

8. Decision on a request for an early vote

The first item on the agenda was the decision on the request for an early vote on the motion for a resolution by Mr Seal and others on EEC-United States relations in the steel sector (Doc. 1-316/80).

Parliament decided to take an early vote. This would be held at the next voting time (see_item 23_of these minutes).

9. Decision on urgency

The next item was the decision on the urgency of the motion for a resolution by Mr Klepsch and others on human rights in Argentina (Doc. 1-318/80).

Lady Elles and Mr Vergeer spoke.

Urgent procedure was adopted.

This motion was entered on the agenda for that sitting.

10. Aid to refugees in the South China Sea — Aid to Kampuchea — Border incident between Vietnamese and Thai troops (debate)

The next item was the joint debate on three motions for resolutions (Docs 1-284/80, 1-301/80/rev. and 1-312/80).

Mr Schieler introduced the motion for a resolution which, with others on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Wawrzik and others, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), and Mrs Agnelli and others, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, he had tabled on aid to refugees in the South China Sea (Doc. 1-284/80).

Mr Israel introduced the motion for a resolution which, with Mr Baudis, Mr Berkhouwer, Mr Bersani, Mr Bettiza, Mr Cariglia, Mrs Cassanmagnago Cerretti, Mr Cecovini, Mrs Chouraqui, Mr Delorozoy, Mr Donnez, Mr Doublet, Mrs Ewing, Mr Fanton, Mr Labbe, Mr Michel, Mr Modiano, Mr Nord, Mr d'Ormesson, Mr Pannella, Mr Puletti, Mr Prout, Mrs Pruvot, Mr Remilly, Mr Rey, Mr Sable, Mr Schinzel, Mr Seitlinger, Mr Vandewiele and Mrs Weiss, he had tabled on the follow-up to the Geneva International Conference on humanitarian aid to Kampuchea (Doc. 1-301/80/rev.).

Mr Rinsche introduced the motion for a resolution which, with Mr Janssen van Raay, Mr Jonker, Mr Cottrell, Mrs Kellett-Bowman, Mr Spicer, Mr De Clercq, Mr Haagerup, Mr Wawrzik, Mrs von Alemann, Mr Brok, Mr Prag, Mrs Agnelli, Mr Bettiza, Mr Irmer, Mr Damseaux, Mrs Dekker, Mr Baudis, Mr Cecovini, Mr Berkhouwer, Mr Majonica, Mr van Aerssen, Mr Bocklet, Mr Früh, Mr Travaglini, Mr Penders, Mr Blumenfeld, Mr Mertens and Mrs Lenz, he had tabled on the border incident between Vietnamese troops from Cambodia and Thai troops in Thailand (Doc. 1-312/80).

The following spoke: Mr Wawrzik, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mrs van Alemann, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group, Mr Fergusson, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mrs Dienesch, on behalf of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, Mr Purvis, Mr Seeler, Mr Israel and Mr Cheysson, Member of the Commission.

The President stated that the motions for resolutions would be put to the vote, together with the amendment which had been tabled, at the next voting time (see item 22 of these minutes).

He declared the debate closed.

11. Human rights in Argentina (debate)

Mr Penders introduced the motion for a resolution which had been tabled by Mr Klepsch, Mrs Cassanmagnago Cerretti, Mr Vergeer, Mr Bersani, Mr Herman, Mr Beumer, Mr Estgen, Mr Diligent, Mr Wawrzik, Mr Michel, Mr Deschamps, Mr Barbi, Mr van der Gun, Mr Narducci, Mr Verhaegen, Mr Pedini, Mr Vandewiele, Mr van Aerssen, Mr Macario, Mrs Lenz, Mrs Maij-Weggen and Mr Majonica and himself, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), and Mr Glinne, Mr Enright, Mr Sieglerschmidt, Mr Colla, Mr van Minnen, Mrs Buchan, Mr Linkohr, Mr Pelikan and Mrs van den Heuvel, on behalf of the Socialist Group, on the serious violations of human rights and international law by the Argentinian military regime (Doc. 1-318/80).

Mr Glinne spoke on behalf of the Socialist Group.

The President announced that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote at the next voting time (see item 24 of these minutes).

He declared the debate closed.

12. Importation of fresh lemons (debate)

Deputizing for the rapporteur, Mr Del Duca introduced the report drawn up by Mr Giummarra, on behalf of the Committee on External Economic Relations, on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council (Doc. 1-34/80) for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No 471/76 as regards the period of suspension of the application of the condition on prices governing the importation into the Community of fresh lemons originating in certain Mediterranean countries (Doc. 1-285/80).

Mr Cheysson, Member of the Commission, spoke.

The President announced that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote at the next voting time (see item 25 of these minutes).

He declared the debate closed.

13. Conservation and management of fishery resources (debate)

Mr Gautier introduced his report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Agriculture, on the proposals from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for:

- I. a Regulation allocating catch quotas among the Member States for vessels fishing in the waters of the Faroe Islands
- II. a Regulation allocating catch quotas among the Member States for vessels fishing in the waters of Sweden
- III. a Regulation allocating catch quotas among the Member States for vessels fishing in the Norwegian exclusive economic zone (Doc. 1-232/80)
- IV. a Regulation laying down for the year 1980 certain measures for the conservation and management of fishery resources off the West Greenland coast applicable to vessels flying the flag of a Member State (Doc. 1-270/80)

(Doc. 1-304/80).

The following spoke: Mr Cheysson, Member of the Commission, Miss Quin, on behalf of the Socialist Group, Mr Battersby, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Mr Nyborg, on behalf of the Group of European Progressive Democrats, Mr Kirk and Mr Provan.

The President announced that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote at the next voting time (see item 26 of these minutes).

He declared the debate closed.

14. Statistical surveys of areas under vines (debate)

Mr Colleselli introduced his report, drawn up on behalf of the Committee on Agriculture, on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council (Doc. 1-133/80) for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No. 357/79 on statistical surveys of areas under vines (Doc. 1-302/80).

Mr Brunner, Member of the Commission, spoke.

The President stated that the motion for a resolution would be put to the vote at the next voting time (see item 27 of these minutes).

He declared the debate closed.

15. Restructuring of the steel industry (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motions for resolutions contained in the report by Mr Peters (Doc. 1-215/80) and report by Mrs Hoff (Doc. 1-266/80).

— Motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Peters (Doc. 1-215/80)

Parliament adopted the preamble and paragraph 1.

On paragraph 2, Mr Klepsch had tabled, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), amendment No 12 seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur indicated that he was prepared to accept this amendment provided that it was added to paragraph 2.

Mr Klepsch agreed to this solution.

Amendment No 12 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraph 2 thus amended.

On paragraph 3, Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, had tabled amendment No 20 seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 20 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 3 and then paragraph 4.

On paragraph 5, Mrs Salisch, on behalf of the Socialist Group, had tabled amendment No 1 seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 1 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 5 and then paragraphs 6 and 7.

On paragraph 8, Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, had tabled amendment No 21 seeking to amend this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 21 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraph 8 thus amended.

On paragraph 9, two amendments seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text had been tabled:

- No 22 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group,
- No 32 by Mrs Dekker.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 22 was rejected.

Amendment No 32 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 9.

On paragraph 10, three amendments had been tabled:

- No 23 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group,
- No 2 by Mrs Salisch, on behalf of the Socialist Group;
 - both seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text;
- No 13/rev. by Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), seeking to amend this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 23 was rejected.

Amendment No 2 was rejected.

Amendment No 13/rev was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraph 10 thus amended.

After paragraph 10, Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), had tabled amendment No 35 seeking to insert a new paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 35 was adopted.

On paragraph 11, two amendments had been tabled:

- No 24 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, seeking to delete this paragraph,
- No 3 by Mrs Salisch, on behalf of the Socialist Group, seeking to expand this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 24 was rejected.

Amendment No 3 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 11 and then paragraph 12.

On paragraph 13, two amendments had been tabled:

- No 25 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, seeking to amend this paragraph,
- No 14 by Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 25 was rejected.

Amendment No 14 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 13.

On paragraph 14, Mrs Salisch, on behalf of the Socialist Group, had tabled amendment No 4 seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 4 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 14.

On paragraph 15, Mrs Salisch, on behalf of the Socialist Group, had tabled amendment No 5/rev. seeking to expand this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 5/rev. was rejected.

Still on paragraph 15, five amendments had been tabled:

- No 15 by Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group) (withdrawn),
- No 10 by Mr Herman and Mr Beumer,
- No 26 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group,
- No 33 by Mrs Dekker,
- No 6 by Mr Michel,

all seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 10 was rejected.

Amendment No 26 was rejected.

Amendment No 33 was rejected.

Amendment No 6 was rejected.

Parliament rejected paragraph 15.

On paragraph 16, three amendments had been tabled:

- No 27 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, seeking to delete this paragraph,
- No 34 by Mrs Dekker,
- No. 16 by Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group),

the latter two both seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 27 was rejected.

Amendment No 34 was rejected.

Amendment No 16 was adopted.

On paragraph 17, two amendments had been tabled:

- No 17 by Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), seeking to amend this paragraph,
- No 7 by Mr Michel also seeking to amend this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 17 was adopted.

Amendment No 7 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraph 17 thus amended.

After paragraph 17, Mr Michel had tabled amendment No 8 seeking to insert a new paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 8 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraphs 18 to 20.

On paragraph 21, two amendments seeking to delete this paragraph had been tabled:

- No 18 by Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group),
- No 28 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 18 was adopted.

Amendment No 28 therefore fell.

On paragraph 22, three amendments had been tabled:

 No 19 by Mr Klepsch, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group),

- No 29 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group:
 both seeking to delete this paragraph,
- No 9 by Mr Michel seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 19 was adopted.

Amendment Nos 29 and 9 therefore fell.

On paragraph 23, two amendments had been tabled:

- No 30/rev. by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group,
- No 11 by Mrs Salisch, on behalf of the Socialist Group:
 both seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 30/rev. was adopted.

Amendment No 11 therefore fell.

On paragraph 24, Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, had tabled amendment No 31 seeking to delete this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 31 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 24 and then paragraph 25.

The following gave explanations of vote: Sir Peter Vanneck, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, Ms Clwyd, Mr Martin, on behalf of the French-Members of the Communist and Allies Group, Mr van Minnen, the rapporteur, Mr Nordlohne, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), Mr Oehler, Mrs Kellett-Bowman and Mr Calvez, on behalf of the Liberal and Democratic Group.

Mr Balfe spoke.

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

on

- I. the communication from the Commission on the social aspects of the restructuring of the steel industry and
- II. the revised draft of a Commission Decision concerning the creation of special temporary allowances to assist workers in the iron and steel industry under the Community restructuring plan

The European Parliament,

- having regard to the communication from the Commission to the Council on the social aspects of the restructuring of the steel industry (COM(79) 199 final),
- having regard to the revised draft of a Commission Decision concerning the creation of special temporary allowances to assist workers in the iron and steel industry under the Community restructuring plan (COM(79) 436 final),
- having regard to the resolution of 6 July 1979 of the ECSC Consultative Committee,
- having regard to the interim report of the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment (Doc. 1-465/79),
- having regard to the motion for a resolution tabled by Ms Clwyd and others on the British steel industry (Doc. 1-836/79),
- having regard to the motion for a resolution tabled by Mr Rogers and others on the steel industry in Wales (Doc. 1-8/80),
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment (Doc. 1-215/80),
- 1. Points with concern to the serious effects on the labour market since 1974 of surplus production capacity in the iron and steel sector combined with a decline in demand, which cannot be offset by increased exports because of the worldwide economic crisis and the welcome progress-made by the developing countries;
- 2. Expresses its regret at the absence of action and provisions on the part of the Community, although the Commission was aware of the foreseeable development of steel production and markets; expresses its regret that the existing Community instruments for an active employment policy cannot be satisfactorily deployed as there is too little money in the relevant funds and the Council's position on this point has not been made sufficiently clear;
- 3. Regrets the fact that the absence of a consistent industrial policy is leading to the phasing-out of a large proportion of production capacity, thereby causing a significant reduction in the number of jobs available; further notes that the rapid restructuring taking place in the steel industry throughout the Community is causing considerable loss of jobs in other industries as well as in iron and steel;
- 4. Draws particular attention to the position of workers in the iron and steel industry which is already precarious and which is made more difficult by the fact that in certain steel-producing areas there is practically no scope for reconversion;
- 5. Regrets that the necessary restructuring of the steel industry in certain Member States was delayed, thus increasing the danger of accelerated closures;

- 6. Points out that national measures which hitherto were mainly concerned with ensuring the economic viability of undertakings, were able to achieve quite considerable successes in terms of restructuring without serious social repercussions in the periods of economic prosperity in the sixties and early seventies in some Member States, since alternative (substitute) jobs were available in other sectors of the economy;
- 7. Points out that in the present situation a rational employment policy is possible only if there is an active regional development policy; this policy should be worked out, financed and implemented by the Member States and by the Community institutions;
- 8. Points out that the aid available under Article 56 (2) (b) of the ECSC Treaty, which within the restricted scope of this provision is effective, provides only social assistance on loss of jobs;
- 9. Stresses that, in addition to the creation of new jobs, which is necessary for social and economic reasons, priority must be given to maintaining existing employment, and that therefore full use should continue to be made of Article 56 (2) (b), while noting that these measures are far from adequate;
- 10. Supports therefore the measures proposed by the Commission in the revised draft decision, which go beyond the usual ECSC provisions:
- (a) early retirement,
- (b) restrictions on overtime,
- (c) improvements in conditions and duration of work,
- (d) new patterns of shiftwork;
- 11. Emphasizes that the proposed measures must have a favourable impact on employment opportunities without harming company competitiveness, the restoration or, as appropriate, improvement of which is essential in order to maintain as many jobs as possible;
- 12. Considers it important that the early retirement measures proposed should actually benefit the workers, for example, so that the unemployment aid granted under Article 56 (2) (b) is not subject to a means test and that early retirement does not in the final analysis represent a form of concealed redundancy;
- 13. Takes the view that the proposed age limit of 55 for early retirement must be extended to all European workers in the iron and steel industry on a voluntary basis and that it needs to be made much more flexible for workers with particularly arduous jobs, and urges that the three-year period for which the allowances are granted should be extended in future;
- 14. Advocates the elimination of structural and temporary overtime by means of a uniform Community Regulation which must also ensure that minimum wages are adjusted; advocates, therefore, the elimination of systematic overtime by means of a uniform Community Regulation which must at the same time provide for progressive increases in the lowest salaries, and recommends that the Commission investigate to what extent—these measures may be monitored or controlled via the systems for recording or approving overtime which are required in most countries of the Community;
- 15. Proposes that in so far as additional Community funds can be made available, allowances for improvements in conditions and duration of work be granted to workers

whose working time is reduced with a view to enabling redundancies caused by partial or complete closure of an undertaking to be spread over a period of time (1), although the acutal form of implementation must be a matter for negotiations.

- 16. Calls for new patterns of shift work, principally by Regulations providing for extra rest shifts for older workers and those with particularly arduous jobs;
- 17. Expresses its concern at the fact that, in addition to older workers, young people are affected by restructuring or fail to find alternative training places or opportunities for rehabilitation in single-industry areas, and requests that vocational training, retraining and further training programmes, as well as worker mobility should receive more Community assistance;
- 18. Calls on both the Governments of the Member States and the Commission to do their utmost to ensure that industrial redevelopment is carried out in the areas affected by the restructuring of the steel industry and to this end requests the Commission to lay before the Council without delay a plan of action as part of a European industrial policy;
- 19. Notes that the measures proposed together constitute a package of measures eligible for aid, to be combined and implemented in line with national and regional requirements;
- 20. Points out that these measures do not preclude national social aid programmes but require a contractual guarantee to the Community from national governments for 50 or 25 % of the financing of any given programme;
- 21. Considers that neither the European Institutions nor the national governments are entitled to decide the framework within which the two sides of industry are to operate and conclude agreements i.e. all possible forms of restructuring should be offered at European level so as to provide the negotiating parties with the optimum scope for combinations of whichever measures are appropriate in the circumstances;
- 22. Strongly condemns the negative attitude of the Council;
- 23. Still supports the Commission proposal that 100 million EUA be entered in the general budget and proposes that, in view of the urgency of the matter, 60 million EUA should be made available in 1981 and 40 million EUA in 1982;
- 24. Urges that the assistance provided to the Member States by the Community should be granted retrospectively from the date on which the first restructuring measures with social consequences were applied;
- 25. Instructs its President to forward this resolution and the report of its committee to the Council and Commission.

⁽¹⁾ COM(79) 436 final, p. 2 Article 4 (1).

— Motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mrs Hoff (Doc. 1-266/80)

Parliament adopted the preamble and paragraph 1.

On paragraph 2, two amendments had been tabled:

- No 5 by Mr Bonde, Mr Bøgh, Mrs Hammerich, Mr Skovmand and Mrs Boserup seeking to delete this paragraph,
- No 3 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, seeking to amend this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 5 was rejected.

Amendment No 3 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 2.

On paragraph 3, Mr Bonde and others had tabled amendment No 6 seeking to delete this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 6 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 3.

On paragraphs 4 and 5, five amendments had been tabled:

- Nos 7 and 8 by Mr Bonde and others seeking to delete these paragraphs,
- Nos 1 and 2 by Mr Peters, on behalf of the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment (withdrawn),

— No 4 by Mr Spencer, on behalf of the European Democratic Group, seeking to replace these paragraphs with a new single paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 7 was rejected.

Amendment No 8 was rejected.

Amendment No 4 was rejected.

As the result of the show of hands was doubtful, Parliament took a fresh vote by sitting and standing and rejected paragraphs 4 and 5.

The rapporteur spoke in connection with this vote.

After paragraph 5, Mr Bonde and others had tabled amendment No 9 seeking to insert two new paragraphs.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 9 was rejected.

The following raised points of order: Mr Lange, Mr Bangemann, Mr Arndt, Mr Klepsch, Mr Seal and Mr Balfe.

Mr Spencer and Mrs Kellett-Bowman gave explanations of vote.

Mr Provan raised a point of order.

Mr Bonde gave an explanation of vote.

The rapporteur and Mr Calvez spoke.

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

embodying the opinion of the European Parliament on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Decision with regard to contributions to be granted to the European Coal and Steel Community out of the General Budget of the European Communities

The European Parliament,

— having regard to the first proposal, now withdrawn, for a Council Decision allocating to the European Coal and Steel Community a special financial contribution (COM(79) 345 final),

- having regard to the Commission's new budget proposals of 29 February 1980 for the 1980 financial year,
- having regard to the new proposal for a Council Decision with regard to contributions to be granted to the ECSC (1),
- having been consulted by the Council (Doc. 1-157/80),
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Budgets and the opinion of the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment (Doc. 1-266/80),
- 1. Affirms that the difficulties currently being experienced by the Community's coal and steel industry must be alleviated by a Community programme for the restructuring of these branches of industry, and is aware that Community measures cannot be confined to streamlining production and adapting productivity to the requirements of competition on the world market, but must also include social measures designed to improve the serious situation on the labour market;
- 2. Welcomes the fact that the Commission, in its new budget proposal of 29 February 1980 for the 1980 financial year, has now, in accordance with Parliament's original demands, classified contributions to the ECSC as non-compulsory expenditure;
- 3. Acknowledges that the Commission has now taken a vital step in the right direction in proposing that the amount of the contributions envisaged should be determined under the annual budgetary procedure.

 Industrial products from third countries — Motor vehicles, certain construction plant, textile names, electrical equipment and biodegradability — Powered industrial trucks (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motions for resolutions contained in the reports by Mr von Wogau (Doc. 1-236/80 and Doc. 1-141/80) and the report by Mr de Ferranti (Doc. 1-224/80).

— Motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr von Wogau (Doc. 1-236/80)

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C.118, 13. 5. 1980, p. 6.

RESOLUTION

embodying the opinion of the European Parliament on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Directive on a special Community certification procedure for industrial products originating in third countries

The European Parliament,

- having regard to the proposal from the Commission to the Council (1),
- having been consulted by the Council pursuant to Article 100 of the EEC Treaty (Doc. 1-7/80),
- having regard to the agreement on technical barriers to trade concluded as part of the multilateral GATT negotiations (2),
- having regard to the Council Decision of 15 January 1980 laying down provisions on the introduction and implementation of technical regulations and standards (3),
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs and the opinion of the Committee on External Economic Relations (Doc. 1-236/80),
- 1. Welcomes the Agreement on technical barriers to trade concluded within GATT as a contribution to the further development of the policy of free trade which has been a feature of the industrialized countries' trade policy since the Second World War and is an essential precondition of continuing economic growth;
- 2. Assumes that the concessions resulting from the GATT agreement are based on the principle of reciprocity, and also agrees therefore to the Community establishing a procedure that guarantees such reciprocity in practice;
- 3. Points out that a procedure of this nature should not be used as a means to protect Community manufacturers for a period of time from excessively strong foreign competition; calls on the Commission, therefore, to this end to spell out more clearly some of the provisions of the Directive;
- 4. Believes that application of the procedure should be the exception rather than the rule; calls on the Commission therefore to:
- (a) alter Article 1 (2) from an optional to a compulsory provision;
- (b) define more closely the product categories to which the procedure will apply;
- 5. Emphasizes that it must be the task of the Community and not that of the Member States to ascertain whether reciprocity exists;
- 6. Feels it is unnecessary to set up a new committee when one committee has already been set up in the Community with the task of implementing the GATT agreement on technical barriers to trade;
- 7. Calls for the greatest possible clarity in the rules applicable within the European Community; urges the Commission, therefore, to ensure complete consistency between the proposed Directive and the Council Decision of 15 January 1980, and feels, moreover, that it would be appropriate for all these provisions to be consolidated in one legal act;

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 54, 4. 3. 1980, p. 5.

⁽²⁾ OJ No L 71, 17. 3. 1980.

⁽³⁾ OJ No L 14, 19. 1. 1980.

- 8. Approves the proposal only on condition that the Council adopts, simultaneously with this directive, the relatively large number of proposals relating to the elimination of technical barriers to trade which, from the technical point of view, have completed all their stages but whose adoption has been blocked by the problem of third countries;
- 9. Requests the Commission to incorporate the following amendments in its proposal pursuant to Article 149, second paragraph, of the EEC Treaty.

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES (1) TEXT AMENDED

BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

Council Directive on a special Community certification procedure for products originating in third countries

Preamble and recitals unchanged

Article 1

- 1. The Community certification procedures provided for in the Community Acts relating to the removal of technical barriers to trade shall apply to industrial products from third countries, if the procedure laid down in this Directive leads to a positive result.
- 2. However, where a special agreement exists between the Community and a third country on the mutual recognition of controls, the procedure laid down in this Directive may be waived.
- 3. As and when necessary, specific procedures may be laid down in Directives, in order to take account of the special features of individual products.

Article 1

- 1. unchanged
- 2. However, where a special agreement exists between the Community and a third country on the mutual recognition of controls, the procedure laid down in this Directive shall be waived.
- 3. unchanged

Article 2 unchanged

Article 3

1. Member States shall take every appropriate step to ensure that they are informed of any application for EEC certification in respect of a product manufactured in a third country, and that the Community certification procedure only be initiated at the expiry of the procedure set out in this Article.

Article 3

1. unchanged

⁽¹⁾ For full text, see OJ No C 54, 4. 3. 1980, p. 5.

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES

- 2. When such an application has been submitted, the Member State concerned shall examine whether:
- (a) the applicant is willing and able to satisfy the technical requirements of the Community certification procedure;
- (b) the conditions referred to in the first sentence of Article 14 (2) of the Agreement on technical barriers to trade run the risk of not being fulfilled.

- 3. The Member State concerned shall notify the other Member States and the Commission of the conclusions of the examination referred to in paragraph 2.
- 4. If within 20 days of these conclusions being dispatched no objection has been lodged by a Member State or by the Commission, the Member State shall either refuse access to the Community certification procedure or shall initiate this procedure in accordance with the abovementioned conclusions.
- 5. Where objections to these conclusions have been lodged, the Commission shall convene, at the earliest opportunity, the Committee referred to in Article 4.

In such an event, appropriate measures shall be taken in accordance with the procedure laid down in Article 5.

Article 4

- 1. A committee on EEC certification of products subject to Community Acts aimed at the removal of technical barriers to trade, hereinafter referred to as 'the Committee' is hereby set up; it shall consist of representatives of the Member States with a representative of the Commission as chairman.
- 2. The Committee shall adopt its own rules of procedure.

TEXT AMENDED BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

- 2. When such an application has been submitted, the Member State concerned shall examine whether:
- (a) unchanged
- (b) an advantage directly or indirectly resulting from the Agreement on technical barriers to trade has been nullified or impaired or whether the attainment of one of the objectives of the Agreement has been impaired by the third country in question, whether its trading interests are significantly affected and whether reciprocity between the concessions made by the Community under the Agreement and those actually applied by the third country has consequently been nullified or impaired.
- 3. unchanged
- 4. If within 30 days of these conclusions being dispatched no objection has been lodged by the Commission, the Member State shall either refuse access to the Community certification procedure or shall initiate this procedure in accordance with the abovementioned conclusions.
- 5. Where the Commission lodges objections to these conclusions, it shall convene, at the earliest opportunity the Committee set up pursuant to Article 8 of the Council Decision of 15 January 1980 laying down provisions on the introduction and implementation of technical regulations and standards. (1).

In such an event, appropriate measures shall be taken in accordance with the procedure laid down in Article 5.

Article 4

- 1. Delete
- 2. Delete

⁽¹⁾ OJ No L 14, 19. 1. 1980.

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES

TEXT AMENDED BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

Article 5

- 1. Where the procedure laid down in this Article is to be followed, matters shall be referred to the Committee by the chairman, either on his own initiative or at the request of the representative of a Member State.
- 2. The representative of the Commission shall submit to the Committee a draft of the decisions to be taken.

The Committee shall deliver its opinion on the draft within a time limit set by the chairman having regard to the urgency of the matter. Opinions shall be adopted by a majority of 41 votes, the votes of Member States being weighted as provided for in Article 148 (2) of the Treaty. The chairman shall not vote.

- 3. On obtaining the opinion of the Committee, the Commission shall adopt its Decision and notify the Member States accordingly.
- 4. Where this Decision is not in accordance with the opinion of the Committee, it shall become final if within 20 days of notification no Member State has referred the matter to the Council or if, in the event of such referral, the Council has not amended this decision by a qualified majority within 60 days of its referral.

Article 5

- 1. unchanged
- 2. The representative of the Commission shall submit to the Committee a draft of the Decisions to be taken.

The Committee shall deliver an advisory opinion on the draft within a time limit set by the chairman having regard to the urgency of the matter.

- 3. On obtaining the opinion of the Committee, the Commission shall adopt its Decision and notify the Council and the Member States accordingly.
- 4. The Commission's Decision shall enter into force following a period of 20 working days unless a Member State brings the matter before the Council during that period. At the request of a Member State made within the said period of 20 working days, the Council, acting by a qualified majority, may confirm, amend or repeal the Commission's Decision. The Commission's Decision shall be applicable after a period of 60 days from the date on which the matter is referred to the Council if the latter has not acted within that period.

Articles 6 to 8 unchanged

— Motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr von Wogau (Doc. 1-141/80)

Parliament adopted the preamble and paragraphs 1 and 2.

Mr Moreland had tabled two amendments:

- No 1 seeking to amend paragraph 3,
- No 2 seeking to add a new paragraph after paragraph 3.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 1 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraph 3 thus amended.

Amendment No 2 was adopted.

On paragraph 4, Mr de Ferranti, Lady Elles and Mr Hopper had tabled amendment No 3 (withdrawn).

Parliament adopted paragraph 4.

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

embodying the opinion of the European Parliament on the proposals from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for Directives:

- I. on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to rear-view mirrors for two or three-wheeled motor vehicles
- II. (a) on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to roll-over protective structures (ROPS) for certain construction plant
 - (b) on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to falling-object protective structures (FOPS) for certain construction plant
- III. amending Directive 71/307/EEC on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to textile names
- IV. on the approximation of the laws of the Member States concerning electrical equipment for use in potentially explosive atmospheres in mines susceptible to fire-damp
- V. on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to methods of testing the biodegradability of non-ionic surfactants and amending Directive 73/404/EEC

The European Parliament,

- having regard to the proposals from the Commission to the Council (COM(79) 772 final, COM(79) 786 final, COM(79) 778 final/2, COM(80) 12 final and COM(80) 40 final),
- having been consulted by the Council, pursuant to Article 100 of the EEC Treaty (Docs 1-703/79, 1-711/79, 1-759/79, 1-805/79 and 1-823/79,
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs and the opinions of the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection, the Committee on Transport and the Legal Affairs Committee (Doc. 1-141/80),
- 1. Emphasizes that Council directives on the approximation of the laws of the Member States should be issued only when essential for the removal of barriers to trade, provided this cannot be achieved by other means;
- 2. Asks the Commission to formulate more clearly Articles 5 and 7 of the proposal for a Directive on textile names (Doc. 1-759/79) in accordance with the opinion of the Legal Affairs Committee;
- 3. Approves without amendment the Commission's proposals relating to protective structures (Doc. 1-711/79) electrical equipment (Doc. 1-805/79) and non-ionic surfactants (Doc. 1-823/79);

- 4. Approves the Commission's proposal relating to rear-view mirrors subject to the amendment that three-wheeled saloon cars (with standard car steering wheels) should not be required to install two exterior mirrors fitted on either side of the vehicle but should be required to fit one internal and one offside external rear-view mirror.
- 5. Urges the Council to complete as soon as possible its consideration of the Commission's proposal of 1975 on a framework Directive on 'common provisions for constructional plant and equipment' (1), thereby making it possible to achieve a gradual removal of technical barriers to trade in this sector and to strengthen the competitive position of European producers on the international market.
- (1) OJ No C 82, 14. 4. 1975.

— Motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr de Ferranti (Doc. 1-224/80)

Parliament adopted the preamble and paragraphs 1 to 3.

On paragraph 4, Mr Delorozoy had tabled amendment No 1 seeking to amend this paragraph.

Deputizing for the rapporteur, Lady Elles spoke.

Amendment No 1 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 4 and then paragraphs 5 and 6.

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

embodying the opinion of the European Parliament on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Directive on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to powered industrial trucks

The European Parliament,

- having regard to the proposal from the Commission to the Council (1),
- having been consulted by the Council pursuant to Article 100 of the EEC Treaty (Doc. 192/79),
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs (Doc. 1-224/80),
- 1. Is determined to take the necessary detailed interest in Directives formulated under Article 100 to ensure that barriers to trade are removed in a way that:

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 165, 2. 7. 1979, p. 1.

- (a) meets safety, environmental and consumer considerations;
- (b) maintains the confidence of producers that a decision has been made which is in the best interests of all and not biased towards any particular interest;
- (c) adds rather than detracts from the European industries' competitive position in world markets;
- 2. Recognizes that only in rare instances will it be necessary to put in the substantial effort required to examine a Directive in detail;
- 3. Insists that all other Directives which do not raise a political issue should be dealt with as speedily as possible by all Community institutions in view of the urgent need to make the common market in goods a reality;
- 4. Having examined this Directive in detail, strongly recommends that the Member States ensure minimum statutory training of drivers, and believes that three amendments are necessary to meet the criteria stated in point 1 above.
- (a) the requirement that the fuel tanks should be detachable from the machine should be deleted;
- (b) the requirement that the pedal and control arrangements should be similar to those on a motor car should be replaced by a requirement that pedals and controls should be in accordance with ISO standard 3691 without modification in order to meet both the safety considerations and the criteria in point 1;
- (c) the Directive should be changed from an optional to a total Directive five years from the date of its adoption;
- 5. Expresses strongly the view that the Council should adopt the Directive relating to common provisions for lifting and mechanical handling appliances so that this and other important Directives for the establishment of the common market can come into effect;
- 6. Requests the Commission to incorporate the following amendments in its proposal, pursuant to Article 149 (2), of the EEC Treaty.

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES (1)

TEXT AMENDED

BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

Council Directive on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to powered industrial trucks

Preamble and Articles 1 to 3 unchanged

Article 4

Article 4

No Member State may, on grounds relating to the requirements laid down in this Directive, refuse,

1. No Member State may, on grounds relating to the requirements laid down in this Directive, refuse,

⁽¹⁾ For complete text see OJ No C 165, 2. 7. 1979, p. 1.

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES

TEXT AMENDED BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

prohibit or restrict the placing on the market and the entry into service of EEC trucks which meet the requirements laid down in Annex I. Where such trucks are accompanied by a certificate of conformity and bear the mark of conformity referred to in Article 3 indicating that they comply with the requirements of this Directive, it shall be presumed that they so comply.

prohibit or restrict the placing on the market and the entry into service of EEC trucks which meet the requirements laid down in Annex I. Where such trucks are accompanied by a certificate of conformity and bear the mark of conformity referred to in Article 3 indicating that they comply with the requirements of this Directive, it shall be presumed that they so comply.

2. Five years after the notification of this Directive the Member States shall ensure that only trucks meeting the requirements laid down in Annex 1 be placed on, and enter into service in the Community market.

Articles 5 and 6 unchanged

Article 7

- 1. Member States shall bring into force the laws, regulations and administrative provisions necessary in order to comply with this Directive within 18 months after its notification. However, they shall bring into force the provisions necessary in order to comply with points 10.5.1.2 and 10.7.1.2.2 of Annex I on 1 January 1985. They shall forthwith inform the Commission thereof.
- 2. As soon as this Directive has been notified, Member States shall also ensure that the Commission is informed, in sufficient time for it to submit its comments, of any draft laws, regulations or administrative provisions which they intend to adopt in the field covered by this Directive.

Article 7

1. Member States shall bring into force the laws, regulations and administrative provisions necessary in order to comply with this Directive within 18 months after its notification. However, five years after the date of notification of this Directive, they shall bring into force the provisions necessary in order to comply with Article 4 (2).

unchanged

Article 8 unchanged

ANNEX I

ANNEX I

paragraphs 1 to 10.4 unchanged

10.5. Controls

10.5. Controls

10.5.1. Direction of travel controls

10.5.1. Direction of travel controls in accordance with ISO Standard 3691 (points 8.1 to 8.2.3.3, 8.3.1 (a), (b), (e), 8.3.1.1 to 8.4.3.2)

10.5.1.1. Applicable up to and including 31 December 1984 in accordance with ISO Standard 3691 (points 8.1 to 8.2.3.3, 8.3.1 (a), (b), (e), 8.3.1.1 to 8.4.3.2)

delete

10.5.1.2. Applicable from 1 January 1985 in accordance with ISO Standard 3691, delete

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES

TEXT AMENDED

BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

points 8.1 to 8.2.3.3, 8.3.1 (a), (b), (e), 8.3.1.1 to 8.4.3.2 with the following modifications:

8.4.1.1. Pedals

Accelerator and service brake pedals and clutch pedals when fitted to sit-on trucks shall be arranged in accordance with automotive rules and practice as shown in Figure 25 (the paragraph which follows is deleted).

8.4.1.2. Gear-change lever The positions for gear engagement shall be clearly indicated

8.4.1.3. Direction-change lever It shall be obligatory to operate the direction-change levers by hand. The direction-change levers shall be arranged in such a way that their operation corresponds to the required direction of travel.

8.4.1.4. Safety control and brakes — sit-on electric-powered trucks

- the first two paragraphs have been retained;
- the last three paragraphs have been replaced by:

The accelerator shall be operated by the right foot and shall increase travel speed when depressed. The service brakes shall be operated by the right foot and shall be applied by depressing the pedal.

- 8.4.1.5. Safety control and brakes sit-on internal combustion engine powered trucks
- the first clause of the first paragraph is retained;
- the second clause of the first paragraph is replaced by:

The accelerator shall be operated by the right foot and shall increase travel speed when depressed.

The two following paragraphs are replaced by:

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES

TEXT AMENDED
BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

The service brakes shall always be operated by the right foot and shall be applied by depressing the pedal. If a clutch is fitted, declutching shall be carried out by pressing on the pedal with the left foot. This pedal may also operate the brakes. In the latter case, one large pedal may be utilized to carry out both operations provided its surface area is approximately equal to the total surface area of the brake and clutch pedal shown in Figure 25. Declutching shall be effected by the initial depressing movement of the pedal, the final movement shall apply the brakes.

10.5.2 to 10.7.1.1.2 unchanged

10.7.1.2. Fuel tanks

If a tank is within or contiguous to the engine compartment, the tank and/or filling arrangement shall be isolated from the electrical and exhaust systems by a separate enclosure or by baffles. The tank location and facilities for filling shall be such that spillage or leakage will drain to the ground and not into the engine or operator's compartment or on to electrical or exhaust system parts. Fuel spillage shall not be possible under operating conditions.

10.7.1.2. Fuel tanks

If a tank is within or contiguous to the engine compartment; the tank and/or filling arrangement shall be isolated from the electrical and exhaust systems by a separate enclosure or by baffles. The tank location and facilities for filling shall be such that spillage or leakage will drain to the ground and not into the engine or operator's compartment or on to electrical or exhaust system parts. Fuel spillage shall not be possible under operating conditions.

The fuel tank and fill fittings shall be so located and their design such as to minimize the possibility of damage and ease the thorough cleansing of the tank prior to repairs being carried out.

10.7.1.2.1. Applicable up to and including 31
December 1984
The fuel tank and fill fittings shall be so located as to minimize the possibility of damage to the tank and its fittings.

delete

10.7.1.2.3. Applicable from 1 January 1985

The fuel tank shall be removable. The fuel tank and fill fittings shall be so located as to

delete

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES

TEXT AMENDED
BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

minimize the possibility of damage to the tank and its fittings.

10.7.1.3 to 12 unchanged

Annexes II and III unchanged

17. Integration of railway undertakings (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for resolution contained in the report by Mr Cottrell (Doc. 1-267/80).

Parliament adopted the preamble.

On paragraph 1, Mr Travaglini, Mr Müller-Hermann, Mr Helms, Mr Janssen van Raay, Mr Jonker and Mr Sassano had, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), tabled amendment No 1 seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 1 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraph 2.

On paragraph 3, Mr Travaglini and others had, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), tabled amendment No 2 seeking to expand this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 2 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraph 3 thus amended and then the opening part of paragraph 4.

On subparagraph (a) of paragraph 4, Mr Travaglini and others had, on behalf of the Group of the European

People's Party (CD Group), tabled amendment No 3 seeking to amend this subparagraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 3 was adopted.

Parliament adopted subparagraph (a) thus amended.

Parliament adopted subparagraph (b) of paragraph 4.

On paragraph 5, Mr Travaglini and others had, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), tabled amendment No 4 seeking to amend this paragraph.

Mr Janssen van Raay withdrew this amendment.

Parliament adopted paragraph 5 and then paragraphs 6 to 8.

On paragraph 9, Mr Travaglini and others had, on behalf of the Group of the European People's Party (CD Group), tabled amendment No 5 seeking to amend this paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 5 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraph 9 thus amended and then paragraph 10.

RESOLUTION

on the report by the Commission to the Council on the objectives to be pursued in the long term and the measures to be taken to promote partial or total integration of railway undertakings at Community level

- having regard to the report by the Commission to the Council (COM(79) 205 final),
- having regard to the Council resolution of 7 December 1970 on cooperation among railway undertakings,
- having regard to Article 11 of Council Decision 75/327/EEC of 20 May 1975,
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Transport (Doc 1-267/80),
- 1. Approves the broad lines of the Commission report, except on the points set out below, and shares the view implicitly contained in it that at this stage conditions are still not ripe for total integration of railway undertakings at Community level;
- 2. Emphasizes that, given their relatively low energy consumption, 'soft' impact on the environment and suitability both to automated technology and combined transport, the railways have a potentially important contribution to make towards the furtherance of the general economic and social objectives of the Community;
- 3. Invites the Commission to provide a detailed analysis of the advantages to be derived from increased cooperation among European railway undertakings, and notes that measures must also be taken to counter the distortions of competiton which confront the railways, having full regard to Article 80 (2) of the EEC Treaty where it refers to regional policy, on which the Commission is requested to take appropriate measures;
- 4. Therefore urges the Commission, in cooperation with the Group of Nine, to undertake further comprehensive studies with a view to:
- (i) establishing a medium- and long-term programme for the Community railway network, and showing the technical advances and essential infrastructure developments projected over that period;
- (ii) identifying the particular problems for Community railway undertakings arising from the accession of new Member States;
- 5. Requests the Commission to examine possible ways of promoting the coordination of:
- (a) railway investment and finance within the European Community (also encompassing the possibility of private capital funding of such projects as electrification, inter-city passenger services and intra-Community freight services);
- (b) the technological advance of railway operations leading to greater operational efficiency;
- (c) the commercial and operational structures of networks, especially in the goods market-(including common goods wagons and tariffs), in order to facilitate cross-frontier traffic;

- (d) all other areas in which there exists a 'community of interest' among the railway undertakings of the Member States;
- 6. Considers unacceptable, moreover, that the Commission only intends to report again to the Council 'around 1985' on 'the establishment of common bodies';
- 7. Calls on the Commission to report back to the European Parliament by the end of 1981 on its conclusions with regard to the promotion of the coordination advocated above, and on the advisability of its submitting a proposal to the Council to this effect;
- 8. Requests the Commission to inform Parliament of progress achieved hitherto with regard to the implementation of Article 15 (1) and (2) of Council Decision 75/327/EEC of 20 May 1975 concerning the financial balance of railway undertakings and public service obligations;
- 9. Calls on the Commission to submit a general communication to the Council without delay declaring its intention to initiate progress on Community railway policy, in the light of the above considerations and within the framework of an overall common transport policy designed among other things to achieve the gradual integration of railway undertakings;
- 10. Instructs its President to forward this resolution and the report of its committee to the Council and Commission.

18. Projects of Community interest in transport infrastructure (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Buttafuoco (Doc. 1-218/80).

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

embodying the opinion of the European Parliament on the amendment to the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for Council Regulation on support for projects of Community interest in transport infrastructure

- having regard to the proposal from the Commission to the Council (1),
- having been consulted by the Council (Doc. 1-46/80),
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Transport (Doc. 1-218/80),
- 1. Welcomes the Commission's proposal to extend eligibility for Community transport infrastructure support to projects to be carried out on the territory of non-member States;

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 89, 10. 4. 1980, p. 4.

- 2. Calls on the Commission and the Council, however, to include sea and air transport infrastructures in this programme and to amend the consultation procedure (Decision 78/174/EEC of 20 February 1978 (1) accordingly;
- 3. Approves the Commission's proposals, subject to the incorporation of the following amendments, pursuant to Article 149, second subparagraph, of the EEC Treaty.
- (1) OJ No L 54, 25. 2. 1978.

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES (1)

TEXT AMENDED
BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

Council Regulation on support for projects of Community interest in transport infrastructure

THE COUNCIL OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES,

Having regard to the Treaty establishing the European Economic Community, and in particular Article 75 thereof,

THE COUNCIL OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES.

Having regard to the Treaty establishing the European Economic Community, and in particular Articles 75 and 84 (2) thereof,

remainder of preamble and recitals unchanged

Article 1

The Community, under the conditions laid down in the following articles, may grant its financial support for the execution of transport infrastructure projects of Community interest referred to in Article 1 of the Council Decision of 20 February 1978 (2) setting up a consultation procedure and establishing a Committee for Transport infrastructure.

The aim looked for is to give selective assistance for the undertaking of a limited number of important projects.

The projects likely to be financed fall particularly in the following groups:

- projects to be undertaken in the territory of a Member State the failure of which to be undertaken creates a bottleneck in Community traffic,
- cross-frontier projects which are not sufficiently viable to pass the threshold, based on available

Article 1

The Community, under the conditions laid down in the following articles, may grant its financial support for the execution of transport infrastructure projects, including sea and air transport infrastructures, of Community interest referred to in Article 1 of the Council Decision of 20 February 1978 (1) setting up a consultation procedure and establishing a Committee for Transport infrastructure.

unchanged

unchanged

⁽¹⁾ For complete text, see OJ No C 89, 10. 4. 1980, p. 4.

⁽²⁾ OJ No L 54, 25. 2. 1978.

⁽¹⁾ OJ No L 54, 25. 2. 1978.

TEXT PROPOSED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES

TEXT AMENDED

BY THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

resources, where a Member State would be willing to intervene.

- projects having a socio-economic profitability at the national level which is insufficient to justify their undertaking but from the Community point of view, taking account of the Community's objectives, having a greater benefit,
- projects which facilitate the standardization of equipment and the synchronization of work on the Community communications network.

Articles 1a-and 2 to 8 unchanged

19. Implementation of 1979 budget (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Aigner (Doc. 1-275/80).

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

on the implementation of the 1979 budget (financial situation of the European Communities as at 31 December 1979)

- having regard to the Financial Regulation and in particular Article 29 thereof,
- having regard to the financial situation of the European Communities as at 31 December 1979, and in particular the section relating to Commission expenditure (Doc. 1-76/80),
- considering that it is important that political control over the implementation of appropriations voted in the budget should be as up-to-date as possible,
- considering that the analysis of the results of a particular budget provides valuable information for future budgetary decisions,
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Budgetary Control (Doc. 1-275/80),
- 1. Is compelled to point out that, during the 1979 financial year,
- (a) the unsuitability of the administrative structures and the procedures in the Member States again substantially impeded the utilization of payment appropriations in respect of

- the Social Fund (Article 500 agricultural and textile sectors; Article 505 measures to help women; Chapter 52 pilot schemes),
- the Regional Fund (33·1 % of the payment appropriations for the financial year were utilized),
- certain EAGGF, Guidance Section, measures (Article 811 cessation of farming;
 Item 8322 reorganization of fruit production; Item 8350 conversion premium (wine sector); Article 853 citrus fruit),
- financial and technical cooperation with the non-associated developing countries;
- (b) although there was some improvement with regard to the previous year, the lack of coordination between legislative and budgetary decisions led to substantial carry-overs or cancellations of funds for:
 - energy policy (Item 3201 joint projects in prospecting for hydrocarbons; Article 324 demonstration projects),
 - the non-quota section of the Regional Fund (no appropriations were utilized),
 - EAGGF, Guidance Section common measures concerning agricultural infrastructures.
 - measures in the scientific and technical field (Article 362),
 - food aid;

the Commission must bear particular responsibility for the failure to implement appropriations relating to:

- the reorganization and redevelopment of crisis-hit sectors (Item 3750) (no part of the allocation for the financial year was utilized),
- the social consequences of industrial conversion (Article 512) (no appropriations were utilized),
- financial cooperation with the non-associated developing countries (2.19 % of the payment appropriations for the financial year were utilized);
- (c) the rate of utilization of appropriations for the following measures was overestimated when the budgetary decision was taken, as a result of the failure to take account of a substantial volume of appropriations to be carried over:
 - Social Fund commitment appropriations, which were increased during the year by cancellations and commitments from previous financial years remaining to be cleared,
 - Regional Fund payment appropriations, which were supplemented during the year by carry-overs,
 - technological development projects in the hydrocarbons sector,
 - EAGGF, Guidance Section measures for the marketing and processing of agricultural products (Article 821) and for citrus fruit (Article 853);
- (d) administrative difficulties within the Commission resulted in substantial delays in individual projects under the EAGGF, Guidance Section;

- 2. Stresses that the percentages indicated by the Commission in the document on the financial situation as at 31 December 1979 in general relate both to appropriations for the 1979 financial year and to appropriations carried over and that the rate of utilization of the appropriations for the financial year, which is more significant from the budgetary authority's point of view, is in fact lower than the Commission's figures suggest;
- 3. Must point out that:
- (a) responsibility for the low rate of utilization of appropriations lies in the first instance with the Commission, which is assigned by the Treaty the task of implementing the budget;
- (b) this responsibility is heightened to the extent that the Commission did not consult Parliament, on the basis of specific communications, about the difficulties it was encountering;
- (c) the Council, by not taking the legislative decisions which are a necessary consequence of the entering of appropriations, particularly where these concern new policies, is failing in its duty, disregarding the budgetary powers of Parliament and hampering the implementation of the Community budget drawn up jointly by the institutions;
- 4. Will devote particular attention, during the discharge procedure for 1979, to consideration of the management of EAGGF, Guarantee Section, appropriations, and above all:
- (a) the arrangements for informing the Commission of market movements and the way it reacts to them with regard to the management of the EAGGF;
- (b) the extent to which the Commission and the national bodies comply with the limits on appropriations decided by the budgetary authority;
- 5. Instructs its appropriate committees:
- (a) within the context of future budgetary procedures to envisage solutions which the Commission must adopt to correct these shortcomings;
- (b) to accompany proposals for new appropriations by directives relating to their implementation and, where these directives cannot be applied immediately, to adjust the budgetary proposals accordingly.

20. Budgetary control aspects of the Data-Processing Centre (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the interim report by Mr Kellett-Bowman (Doc. 1-283/80).

The rapporteur stated that the three amendments tabled to this motion for a resolution had not been moved during the debate.

Mr Colla and the rapporteur spoke.

Pursuant to Rule 29 (1), third subparagraph, Parliament did not consider these amendments.

RESOLUTION

on the budgetary control aspects of the Data-Processing Centre of the Commission of the European Communities

- recalling its earlier resolution on the budgetary aspects of the operations of the data-processing centre (1),
- wishing to ensure that wasteful use of resources does not occur and that there is no avoidable overlapping of acquisition of equipment by the institutions of the European Communities,
- desirous that full information on all matters undergoing political audit should be available to its Committee on Budgetary Control,
- conscious of the need to make available to the institutions of the Community an adequate data-processing service,
- stressing the importance of transparency of the budgetary presentation of appropriations for data-processing as well as for other services,
- believing that it is desirable to have regard to the medium-term and longer-term options in the sphere of data-processing, if Community needs are to be met economically,
- having regard to the interim report of the Committee on Budgetary Control (Doc. 1-283/80),
- 1. Notes the apparent transitional difficulties experienced by the data processing centre in effecting the changeover to new equipment-intended to cope with an increasing work load;
- 2. Calls for (a) thoroughgoing periodic reviews of existing programmes so as to verify that there is a continuing justification for them, and (b) a careful screening of proposed new programmes in order to ensure optimum use of equipment and staff time;
- 3. Expects that staff savings should result from the use of data-processing techniques and equipment, and asks the Commission to have special regard to this aspect in its annual reports on data-processing;
- 4. Is conscious of the escalating cost of manning the centre and is anxious to effect tight control over outlay in this area;
- 5. Expresses its concern that difficulties in regard to the recruitment, motivation and management of the appropriate personnel should be manifest at the centre, and expects an early improvement in this regard;
- 6. Considers that the Commission's data-processing centre should be fully utilized by the other institutions so as to avoid overlapping of effort or the acquisition of costly duplicate installations, and asks the Commission to evolve an appropriate legal formula which will guarantee access by the other institutions to the data-processing centre;

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 76, 7. 4. 1975, p. 5.

- 7. Insists that the Commission, and all other Community institutions and bodies, should make available all necessary data and background material to Parliament's Committee on Budgetary Control in a frank and prompt manner so that fully-informed democratic control can be effected;
- 8. Would like to be assured that, where possible, Community data processing operations of an ad hoc nature are offered for tender so as to ensure the most economic solutions, and believes that regard should always be had to the prospective medium- and longer-term situation when solutions to short-term issues are being sought;
- 9. Attaches great importance to the clarity and transparency of budget presentation as this is essential (a) to the work of the budgetary authority in considering the draft budget and (b) to the work of control;
- 10. Will consider a further report from its Committee on Budgetary Control when the report of the Court of Auditors on the matter is to hand and the Commission has provided further information on the recent acquisition of equipment and on its views on (a) the longer-term requirements of the Community in this sphere, and (b) the organization of data processing activity;
- 11. Urges that, pending reception of this further report, no institution should take steps that would pre-empt the establishment of a Community wide data-processing service;
- 12. Recognizes that an appropriate procurement policy for data processing equipment at the level of the Community institutions could constitute a valuable element in the integration of European industrial policy;
- 13. Instructs its President to forward this resolution and the report of its Committee to the other institutions of the Community.

21. Situation of refugees in the Horn of Africa (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Marshall (Doc. 1-289/80).

Parliament adopted the first indent of the preamble.

After the first indent of the preamble, Mr Coppieters and Mrs Castellina had tabled amendment No 4 seeking to insert a new indent.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 4 was adopted.

Parliament adopted the second and third indents of the preamble.

After the third indent of the preamble, Mr Coppieters and Mrs Castellina had tabled amendment No 5 seeking to insert a new indent.

The rapporteur spoke.

As the result of the show of hands and of the first vote by sitting and standing was doubtful, Parliament took a fresh vote by sitting and standing and adopted amendment No 5.

On paragraph 1, two amendments had been tabled:

- No 1 by Mr Narducci, Mrs Cassanmagnago Cerretti, Mr Bersani, Mr Vergeer and Mr Michel,
- No 6 by Mr Coppieters and Mrs Castellina,
 both seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 1 was rejected.

Amendment No 6 was adopted.

After paragraph 1, two amendments had been tabled seeking to insert a new paragraph:

- No 2 by Mr Narducci and others,
- No 7 by Mr Coppieters and Mrs Castellina.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 2 was adopted.

Amendment No 7 was adopted.

On paragraph 2, Mr Narducci and others had tabled amendment No 3 seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 3 was adopted.

Parliament adopted paragraph 3.

On paragraph 4, Mr Coppieters and Mrs Castellina had tabled amendment No 8 seeking to replace this paragraph with a new text.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 8 was rejected.

Parliament adopted paragraph 4 and then paragraph 5.

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

on the dramatic situation of the refugees, especially the children amongst them, in the Horn of Africa

- very preoccupied by the disastrous situation of the refugees in the Horn of Africa,
- noting that the situation has been worsening rapidly in recent months and that not only refugees but the rest of the population of Somalia and neighbouring countries will be threatened with starvation in the coming months,
- recalling its resolution of 14 December 1979 on the tragic plight of refugees, particularly children, in the Horn of Africa (1),
- noting that, in addition to the threat of starvation and the dramatic shortage of water, there is also a real danger of epidemics of disease, in particular cholera,
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Development and Cooperation (Doc. 1-289/80),

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 4, 7. 1. 1980, p. 75.

- 1. Calls for an increase of the Community's food-aid programme and its exceptional aid programme based on Article 59 of the Lomé Convention, especially in order to meet the increasing food needs of this region of Africa in the final half of 1980, and for emergency measures, including, if need be, a special airlift to ensure that the aid rapidly reaches those for whom it is intended;
- 2. Insists on the need for combined use of all available instruments of cooperation in order to provide a serious response to the alarming situation of the million and a half refugees in Somalia who are threatened with famine and epidemics of the plague and cholera and are, in many cases, experiencing a situation of total deprivation which is unacceptable to the international conscience;
- 3. Calls on the Commission and Council to take urgent steps to provide the financial and technical assistance needed to meet the specific problem of water supplies, in particular by the provision of shallow wells;
- 4. Welcomes the Community's increased aid to the UN High Commission for Refugees, and asks the Community to continue its close collaboration with this organization and to strengthen substantially its support for the non-governmental organizations which are implementing local aid projects vital to the survival of the most deprived sectors of the population;
- 5. Appeals again to the Foreign Ministers meeting in political cooperation to take all the necessary diplomatic initiatives to end the conflict between Ethiopia and Somalia;
- 6. Asks the European Commission to submit half-yearly reports on the Community's aid to countries in the Horn of Africa, thus enabling its Committee on Development and Cooperation to monitor this work;
- 7. Instructs its President to forward this resolution to the Council, the Commission, the Foreign Ministers of the Nine meeting in political cooperation and the Secretaries-General of the United Nations, the OAU and the ACP Group.

Mr Griffiths gave an explanation of vote.

22. Aid to refugees in the South China Sea — Aid to Kampuchea — Border incident between Vietnamese and Thai troops (vote)

The next item was the vote on three motions for resolutions.

— Motion for a resolution by Mr Schieler and others (Doc. 1-284/80)

Lady Elles gave an explanation of vote on behalf of the European Democratic Group.

RESOLUTION

on aid to refugees in the South China Sea

The European Parliament,

- recalling its resolutions of 19 July 1979 on the tragedy of the Indo-Chinese refugees (1) and 23 May 1980 on the deaths of thousands of Cambodian children (2),
- having regard to the dramatic increase in the flood of refugees in the South China Sea (10 000 refugees per month and rising),
- aware that a large number of refugees perish by drowning in the sea,
- in the knowledge that only one European vessel (Cap Anamur) equipped to rescue shipwrecked refugees is still operating in the China Sea, now that other European ships have had to call off their rescue operations,
- 1. Calls on the Council to prevail upon the Governments of the Member States to increase the overall quota of refugees in view of the upsurge in their numbers and to make an allocation among the Member States of the Community;
- 2. Calls on the Commission to use Community budget appropriations to support the rescue vessel Cap Anamur rather than a separate European Community vessel;
- 3. Instructs its President to forward this resolution to the Council and the Commission.

— Motion for a resolution by Mr Israel and others (Doc. 1-301/80/rev.)

Parliament rejected the preamble and paragraphs 1 to 4.

After paragraph 4, Mrs Weiss had tabled amendment No 1 seeking to insert a new paragraph.

The rapporteur spoke.

Amendment No 1 was rejected.

Parliament rejected paragraph 5.

The motion for a resolution was therefore rejected.

— Motion for a resolution by Mr Rinsche and others (Doc. 1-312/80)

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 203, 13. 8. 1979, p. 27.

⁽²⁾ OJ No C 147, 16. 6. 1980, p. 119.

RESOLUTION

on the border incident between Vietnamese troops from Cambodia and Thai troops in Thailand

- having regard to its resolution on relations between the European Community and Asean (1),
- having regard to its resolutions on the tragic situation of South-East Asian refugees, and in particular those from Cambodia (2),
- most concerned by the serious border incident between Vietnamese and Thai forces around Ban Non Makmoon village in Thailand from 23 to 26 June 1980 and the continuing tension on this border where many thousands of refugees were existing through the efforts of the Thai Government and the international agencies, in particular, UNHCR, Unicef and the ICRC,
- fearful of the consequences of this incident for the lives of the refugees in the area,
- 1. Declares its full support for the statement made on 2 July 1980 by the Foreign Ministers of the Member States meeting in political cooperation, which reaffirmed the European Community's solidarity with Asean in their joint commitment to world peace, economic development, social justice and human rights;
- 2. Deplores, with them, the violation by Vietnamese troops of the territorial integrity and national sovereignty of Thailand, a member State of Asean;
- 3. Also reaffirms with them the joint conviction that all governments should base their international conduct on principles embodying the respect for sovereignty, territorial integrity, the independence of states, the non-resort to force or threat of the use of force and non-interference in the internal affairs of other states, principles most recently not respected in South-East and South-West Asia;
- 4. Calls for the re-opening as a matter of urgency of the land bridge between Thailand and Cambodia so that humanitarian aid from international organizations and from the EEC may once again reach the many thousands of refugees in that area;
- 5. Instructs its Political Affairs Committee to follow closely the activities and statements of the Foreign Ministers meeting in political cooperation concerning the possibilities of stationing a UN observer team on the Thai side of the Thailand-Cambodian border and on the early withdrawal of Vietnamese troops from Cambodia;
- 6. Instructs its President to forward this resolution to the Council, the Commission, the Foreign Ministers meeting in political cooperation and for information to the Asean Brussels Committee the diplomatic representatives of the Asean States accredited to the European Community.

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 85, 8. 4. 1980, p. 83.

⁽²⁾ OJ No C 147, 16. 6. 1980, OJ No C 117, 12. 5. 1980, OJ No C 59, 10. 3. 1980,

OJ No C 289, 19. 11. 1979, OJ No C 266, 22. 10. 1979, and OJ No C 203, 13. 8. 1979.

23. EEC-United States relations in the steel sector (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution by Mr Seal and others (Doc. 1-316/80).

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

on relations betweeen the EEC and the United States in the steel sector

The European Parliament,

- having regard to its resolution of 18 April 1980 (1),
- stressing the economic and social implications of the present problems in the steel sector between the USA and the EEC,
- 1. Emphasizes that the EEC is honouring the 1977 OECD Agreement and complying with the GATT anti-dumping code;
- 2. Affirms that in the steel trade between the EEC and USA, neither confrontation nor protectionism will produce a settlement in the interest of the partner countries and the working population;
- 3. Calls on the US Government to ask US Steel to withdraw its antidumping procedure and start urgent negotiations with the Commission;
- 4. Stresses that, if such an agreement cannot be reached and if the American Government infringes the GATT provisions, the EEC should immediately take appropriate countermeasures;
- 5. Asks the Commission to report back to Parliament at the September 1980 part-session;
- 6. Instructs its President to forward this resolution to the Commission of the European Communities and to the United States Government.

24. Human rights in Argentina (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution by Mr Klepsch and others (Doc. 1-318/80).

Lady Elles raised a point of order on behalf of the European Democratic Group.

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 117, 12. 5. 1980, p. 86.

RESOLUTION

on the serious violations of human rights and international law by the Argentinian military regime

- having regard to the resolution in which it undertook to promote respect for human rights throughout the world and to its earlier resolutions on Argentina,
- having learnt with horror of the abduction by Argentinian troops, with the assistance of members of the Peruvian armed forces, of four Argentinian political exiles who had sought refuge in Lima, Mrs Noemi Ester Gianetti de Molfino, Mrs Julia Inès Santos Achabal, Mr Frederico Frias Alberga and Mr Julio Cesar Ramirez, on 11, 12 and 13 June:
- 1. Expresses its profound admiration for the Peruvian political leaders such as Antonio Maza Cuadra and Luis Bedoya Reyes, Members of Parliament, for their immediate public denunciation of the terrorist operation carried out by the Argentinian military forces with the aid of some members of the Peruvian forces in direct violation of the right to asylum and of the national sovereignty of Peru and for having thereby prevented the abduction of further Argentinian exiles;
- 2. Makes an urgent appeal for everything possible to be done at all levels to trace and save the four Argentinian citizens who have disappeared since their abduction, assuming that they have not already died as a result of torture;
- 3. Expresses once again its condemnation of the Argentinian military junta, which consistently violates the basic rights and fundamental freedoms of human beings in the name of its criminal ideology of 'national security';
- 4. Denounces the secret plan of cooperation between the Argentinian and Peruvian forces aimed at eliminating all the exiled opponents of the Argentinian regime, and the increasing collusion among the police forces of the dictatorial regimes of South America, which has resulted in many political exiles being abducted and killed;
- 5. Objects violently, furthermore, to the repeated attempts by the Argentinian secret services to intimidate exiles in Europe;
- 6. Calls on the Commission and Council to undertake, in close collaboration with the appropriate committees of Parliament, a critical study of economic and trade relations between the EEC and Argentina;
- 7. Invites the Foreign Ministers meeting in political cooperation jointly and systematically to take steps to urge the Argentinian authorities to free all political detainees and prisoners and to respect the right of the families of the missing exiles to be informed and to be protected against paramilitary and parapolice terrorism, and to coordinate their action within the various international organizations responsible for such-questions;
- 8. Undertakes to strengthen its cooperation with the Latin-American Parliament and, bearing in mind the Fifth European/Latin-American Interparliamentary Conference scheduled for the beginning of 1985, to put forward again the Granelli proposals for the setting up of a permanent joint information centre to provide for urgent action where

human rights are violated, as such a centre would ensure the necessary coordination with all bodies such as the Inter-American Human Rights Commission, United Nations agencies and its working party set up to enquire into cases of persons who have disappeared;

- 9. Instructs its Political Affairs Committee to monitor the action taken on this resolution and to submit a report in due course;
- 10. Instructs its President to forward this resolution to the Council, the Commission, the Foreign Ministers of the Nine meeting in political cooperation, the President of the Latin-American Parliament and the Secretary-General of the United Nations.

25. Importation of fresh lemons (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Giummarra (Doc. 1-285/80).

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

embodying the opinion of the European Parliament on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No 471/76 as regards the period of suspension of the application of the condition on prices governing the importation into the Community of fresh lemons originating in certain Mediterranean countries

The European Parliament,

- having regard to the proposal from the Commission to the Council (1),
- having been consulted by the Council pursuant to Articles 43 and 113 of the EEC Treaty (Doc. 1-34/80);
- having regard to the report of the Committee on External Economic Relations and the opinion of the Committee on Budgets (Doc. 1-285/80),

Approves the Commission's proposal.

26. Conservation and management of fishery resources (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Gautier (Doc. 1-304/80).

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 67, 18. 3. 1980, p. 2.

RESOLUTION

embodying the opinion of the European Parliament on the proposals from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for

- I. a Regulation allocating catch quotas between Member States for vessels fishing in Faroese waters
- II. a Regulation allocating catch quotas between Member States for vessels fishing in Swedish waters
- III. a Regulation allocating certain catch quotas between Member States for vessels fishing in the Norwegian exclusive economic zone, and
- IV. a Regulation laying down for the year 1980 certain measures for the conservation and management of fishery resources off the West Greenland coast applicable to vessels flying the flag of a Member State

- having regard to the proposals from the Commission to the Council (1),
- having been consulted by the Council pursuant to Article 43 of the EEC Treaty (Doc. 1-232/80 and Doc. 1-272/80),
- having regard to the report by the Committee on Agriculture (Doc. 1-304/80),
- whereas fisheries agreements with third countries are important to the future of the Community's fishing industry,
- 1. Emphasizes that the quotas to be allocated to the Community by Norway represent a considerable reduction on quotas allocated in previous years, without there being a reduction equivalent in quantity in the quotas allocated by the Community to Norway;
- 2. Expresses the deepest concern at the considerable hardship such a reduction will cause to Community fishermen;
- 3. Believes, furthermore, that the Commission's proposals should be modified in order to respect the distribution of catch quotas between Member States in previous years;
- 4. Rejects therefore the Commission's proposals concerning Faroese, Swedish and Norwegian waters;
- 5. Approves the proposal concerning measures off the West-Greenland coast;
- 6. Asks the Commission to justify its failure to adopt for the proposal relating to Swedish waters, which concerns Denmark and Germany alone, the agreement worked out between these two countries;
- 7. Emphasizes the utmost importance of proper surveillance and control of these and all other quota allocations;
- 8. Underlines the fact that it was unable to make a proper comparison of the quotas to be granted and received by the Community when considering the Commission's proposal to grant quotas to Norway;

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 142, 11. 6. 1980, p. 8, 10 and 12 and COM(80) 291 final.

- 9. Considers that any opinion given by the European Parliament on the Commission's proposals must inevitably be devoid of any significance since the negotiations with the countries concerned have been concluded;
- 10. Believes, therefore, that the roles of both Parliament and the Council have been reduced to rubber-stamping negotiations conducted solely by the Commission;
- 11. Considers, therefore, that the European Parliament, and the Council, should examine:
- (a) the purpose of continuing to grant a benediction to proposals which cannot be modified;
- (b) the steps to be taken to ensure that sufficient information is provided, before and during negotiations, on the fish stock situation and the broad requirements of the Community and the third countries concerned, with more formal negotiating mandates being drawn up for consideration by Parliament and the Council.

27. Statistical surveys of areas under vines (vote)

The next item was the vote on the motion for a resolution contained in the report by Mr Colleselli (Doc. 1-302/80).

Parliament adopted the following resolution:

RESOLUTION

embodying the opinion of the European Parliament on the proposal from the Commission of the European Communities to the Council for a Regulation amending Regulation (EEC) No 357/79 on statistical surveys of areas under vines.

- having regard to the proposal from the Commission to the Council (1),
- having been consulted by the Council pursuant to Article 43 of the EEC Treaty (Doc. 1-133/80),
- having regard to the report of the Committee on Agriculture and the opinion of the Committee on Budgets (Doc. 1-302/80),
- 1. Recognizes the real difficulties encountered by Italy in carrying out the first basic statistical survey of areas under vines and her commitment, in spite of these difficulties to supply the Commission with all data necessary for a full understanding of the situation;
- 2. Requests the Commission to propose 31 December 1981 as the deadline for carrying out the first basic survey on areas under vines in Italy;

⁽¹⁾ OJ No C 107, 30. 4. 1980, p. 9.

3. Also requests the Commission to examine in conjunction with the government concerned the possibility of carrying out the survey in Italy using techniques similar to those already planned for the register of olive cultivation, namely aerial photography, remote surveys and electronic data processing, so as to improve the quality of the results and to enable the planned intermediate surveys to be carried out as quickly and efficiently as possible.

Lord O'Hagan spoke.

28. Composition of committees

At the request of the European Democratic Group, Parliament ratified the appointment of:

- Sir John Stewart-Clark as member of the Political Affairs Committee to replace Mr Jakobsen,
- Mr Hord as member of the Committee on Agriculture to replace Mr Howell,
- Mr Newton Dunn and Mr Howell as members of the Committee on Budgets to replace Lord O'Hagan and Mr Hord respectively,
- Mr Beazley as member of the Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs to replace Sir Peter Vanneck,
- Mr Price and Mr Moreland as members of the Committee on Energy and Research to replace Lord Douro and Sir Peter Vanneck respectively,
- Mr Spicer and Lord O'Hagan as members of the Committee on External Economic Relations to replace Mr de Courcy Ling and Mr Kellett-Bowman respectively,
- Mr J. D. Taylor as member of the Committee on Social Affairs and Employment to replace Miss Roberts,
- Sir Peter Vanneck as member of the Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Consumer Protection to replace Mr Newton Dunn,
- Mr Curry, Mr Cottrell and Mr Hutton as members of the Committee on Youth, Culture, Education, Information and Sport to replace Mr Johnson, Mr Welsh and Mr Price respectively,

- Mr Sherlock and Mr Kellett-Bowman as members of the Committee on Development and Cooperation to replace Mr Marshall and Mr Simmonds respectively,
- Mr Patterson as member of the Committee on Budgetary Control to replace Mr J. M. Taylor,
- Mr de Courcy Ling as member of the Committee on the Rules of Procedure and Petitions to replace Mr Tyrrell.

29. Composition of Parliament

The President informed Parliament that the competent French authorities had informed him of the election of Mr Jean-José Clément as member of the European Parliament to replace Mr Labbé, who had resigned.

He welcomed the new member and pointed out that, pursuant to Rule 3 (3), any member whose credentials had not yet been verified provisionally took his seat in Parliament and on its committees with the same rights as other members.

30. ACP — EEC Consultative Assembly

Parliament ratified the appointments of the members of the European Parliament to the ACP—EEC Consultative Assembly which had been submitted to it by the political groups, it being understood that one post remained to be filled (1).

⁽¹⁾ See Annex.

31. Dates for next part-session

32. Approval of minutes

Pursuant to Rule 17 (2), Parliament approved the minutes of that day's sitting.

On a proposal from the enlarged Bureau, Parliament decided to hold its next part-session from 15 to 19 September 1980 in Strasbourg.

33. Adjournment of session

The President declared the session of the European Parliament adjourned.

(The sitting was closed at 12.25 p.m.)

H.-J. OPITZ

Secetary-General

Pieter DANKERT

Vice-President

Members appointed to the ACP-EEC consultative assembly

Abens Victor van Aerssen Jochen Ansart Gustave

Baduel-Glorioso Maria Fabrizia

Balfe Richard
Balfour Neil
Barbi Paolo
Battersby Robert
Bersani Giovanni
Beumer Bouke
Bonaccini Aldo
Boserup Bodil Kathrine
Brok Elmar

Carettoni Romagnoli Tullia

Cassanmagnago Ceretti Maria Luisa

Castellina Luciana
Castle Barbara
Clement Jean-José
Cohen Robert
Colla Marcel G. B.
Cronin Jeremiah
Dalsass Joachim
Dalziel Ian M.
Damseaux André
De Clercq Willy

Delatte Charles
Deleau Gustave
Delmotte Fernand
Denis Jacques
Deschamps Pierre
Elles Diana Louie
Enright Derek
Estgen Nicolas

Ewing Winifred Fergusson Adam Ferrero Bruno

Ferrero Bruno Fich Ove Filippi Renzo Eligio

Flanagan Seán Flesch Colette Focke Katharina Forster Norvela Früh Isidor Gabert Volkmar

Galland Yves Galluzzi Carlo Alberto

Geurtsen Aart Glinne Ernest Gremetz Maxime Griffiths Winston Haagerup Niels Jørgen

Habsburg Otto
Hänsch Klaus
Henckens Jaak
Herklotz Luise
Howell Paul
Hume John
Irmer Ulrich
Jakobsen Erhard
Jaquet Gérard
Johnson Stanley

Jürgens Heinrich Klepsch Egon Kühn Heinz

Lemmer Gerd Ludwig Lentz-Cornette Marcelle

Lezzi Pietro
Ligios Giosuè
Loo Charles-Emile
Lücker Hans August
Luster Rudolf

Lynge Finn McCartin John Joseph Marchais Georges Marshall John Leslie

Marshail John Leshe Michel Victor Moreau Jacques Moreland Robert Narducci Angelo Normanton Tom Nyborg Kai O'Leary Michael d'Ormesson Olivier Pajetta Giancarlo Pannella Marco

Pearce Andrew
Pedini Mario
Pelikan Jiri
Penders Johannes
Poirier Henriette
Poniatowski Michel

Puletti Ruggero Rabbethge Renate-Charlotte Rhys Williams Brandon

Rinsche Günther Ripa di Meana Carlo

Rogers Allan Ryan Richie Sablé Victor Sarre Georges Schieler Rudolf Schmitt Heinz Schön Konrad

Schwartzenberg Roger-Gérard

Seefeld Horst
Sherlock Alexander
Simmonds Richard
Skovmand Sven
Spicer James
Taylor John David
Turner Amédée
Vandewiele Marcel
Veil Simone
Vergeer Willem
Vergès Paul
Walz Hanna
Wawrzik Kurt

Weber Beate Woltjer Eisso